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“RE-BUILDING THE CITY’S WATER SYSTEMS FOR THE 21ST CENTURY” 

Sewerage & Water Board OF NEW ORLEANS
625 ST. JOSEPH STREET 

NEW ORLEANS, LA  70165  504-529-2837 OR 52-WATER 
www.swbno.org

            June 30, 2019 

TO:  The Honorable LaToya Cantrell, President, and  
         Members of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans 
         625 St. Joseph Street 
         New Orleans, LA 70165 

We are pleased to present our latest Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ending 
Dec. 31, 2018. This yearly exercise provides our Board of Directors, investors, customers and the public at large 
with the latest, most complete financial portrait of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (SWBNO).  

As management of this utility, we take full responsibility for the accuracy of the data and completeness and 
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures.  It is our belief that the data, as presented, is accurate in all 
material respects. This report is designed to present fairly SWBNO’s financial position and results of operation 
for the SWBNO Enterprise and Pension Trust Funds. Included are all disclosures necessary for readers to gain an 
understanding of SWBNO’s financial activities.

The Board retained Postlethwaite & Netterville (P&N), a Professional Accounting Corporation, to serve as its 
independent auditor. P&N has issued an unmodified opinion on the Board’s financial statements for the years 
2018 and 2017. The independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the Financial Section of this report. 

THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

The CAFR is organized into four sections: 

Introductory Section: This section includes this letter of transmittal, as well as various governance, leadership 
and organizational charts. This transmittal letter is designed to complement the MD&A (see Financial Section) 
and should be read in conjunction with it. 

Financial Section: This section includes the Independent Auditor’s Report, Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A), all financial statements and notes and required supplementary information (RSI). The MD&A 
is a GAAP requirement that provides an overview and analysis of the basic financial statements.  

Statistical Section: This section presents graphs and details that demonstrate financial trends and revenue and 
debt capacity as context for understanding SWBNO’s overall financial health and operating capacity.  

Supplemental Section: This section includes additional historical schedules. 
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The following financial statements were prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) and audited by a firm of independent certified public accountants retained by the Board. 
This utility meets the criteria for classification as an “other stand-alone government” as described in 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61.   

Pursuant to LA Rev Stat § 24:513(A), SWBNO is required to have its financial position examined and 
audited each year by licensed certified public accountants.   

SWBNO’s management is responsible for the reliability of the information contained in this report, based 
upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that is established for this purpose.  The internal 
control framework is designed to give reasonable assurance that cost on internal controls should not exceed 
the benefits derived from the controls and that the financial statements are free from material misstatements.  
The internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, 
SWBNO’s executive director and the chief financial officer and the finance administrator, and effected by 
the Board of Directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purpose in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

PROFILE OF SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

SWBNO is a public utility that owns, maintains and operates New Orleans’ vast networks of water and 
sewer mains, as well as the larger components of the city’s drainage system. The water and sewer systems, 
and overall administration of SWBNO, are funded through service rates, which are approved by the City 
Council of New Orleans. Maintenance, operations and improvements to the drainage system are financed 
through three ad valorem taxes set at rates of 3 mills, 6 mills and 9 mills, respectively. These taxes, received 
in bulk once a year, are the utility’s only dedicated revenue streams for drainage. 

The finances of the three systems – water, sewer, and drainage – make up the utility’s Enterprise Fund. 
SWBNO also provides for a Pension Trust Fund.  

SWBNO was founded in 1899 by state law and merged with the New Orleans Drainage Commission in 
1903 to eventually assume its present-day mission: To serve the people of New Orleans and improve their 
quality of life by providing safe drinking water; removing waste water for safe return to the environment; 
and draining storm water to protect the community. Its team of experts does this reliably, continuously, and 
at a reasonable cost. This utility’s vision is to earn and hold the trust and confidence of customers and 
community for reliable and sustainable water services, and to be a model utility in the water industry. 

Today, SWBNO serves 364 square miles of the City of New Orleans, plus providing drainage services to 
approximately 2,550 acres of neighboring Jefferson Parish. Its drinking water comes from the Mississippi 
River. It operates a drainage system of approximately 280 miles of open and underground canals and 24 
pumping stations that house 120 drainage pumps. Both systems are powered by a combination of modern, 
60-Hertz electricity and self-generated, 25-Hertz power that dates back to the early 20th century. The Board 
meets the criteria for classification as an “other stand-alone government” as described in Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61.  The reporting entity includes the Enterprise Fund and the 
Pension Trust Fund.  The Enterprise Fund is composed of three (3) independent systems: Water, Sewerage 
and Drainage. 

SWBNO is under federal consent decree to overhaul New Orleans sewerage system. This effort is scheduled 
to be completed in 2025. Sewer operations are managed by an independent contractor. 
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This utility operates independently of city government under the oversight of its 11-member Board of 
Directors. Effective Jan. 1, 2019 under state law, this governing body consists of: 

The mayor of New Orleans, serving as president; 
A member of the City Council’s Public Works, Sanitation and Environmental Committee or his/her 
designee;
Two members of the city’s debt manager, the Board of Liquidation, City Debt; 
And seven citizen members appointed by the mayor with consent of the City Council. 

Citizen members must represent each of New Orleans’ five City Council districts; two must be considered 
consumer advocates; and one must be a retired civil engineer. The Board of Directors is responsible for, 
amongst other things, for passing resolutions adopting the budget, appointing committees and hiring the 
Board’s Executive Director and General Superintendent.  The Board’s Executive Director is responsible 
for carrying out the policies and resolutions of the governing board and overseeing the day-to-day 
operations of the Board.  

SWBNO and its more than 1,350 employees stand at a pivotal moment in the utility’s history. Its aging 
infrastructure presents daily challenges, from water main breaks to surprise power outages. In 2018, this 
utility made important improvements, especially to its drainage and power systems, after a major flood 
event in August 2017 exposed a host of deficiencies.  

Under new leadership, SWBNO is making a concerted effort to end its reliance on antiquated steam power 
and evolve into a model, modern utility. Green infrastructure to complement traditional storm water 
management is an emerging priority for this utility and the City of New Orleans as it grapples with 
subsidence and rising sea levels. 

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

One of the last major ports before the Mississippi River empties into the Gulf of Mexico, New Orleans is a 
central hub for commerce and an economic engine for the broader Gulf Coast region. It is also a large nexus 
for rail and truck routes. The city has witnessed a steady population increase in the last seven years, 
according to the U.S. Census Bureau, although that trend may be ending. Mid-2018 estimates show the 
population declined from 391,538 in 2017 to 391,006 – a 0.1 percent decrease.  However, projections 
developed for our ongoing consent decree program indicate that citywide population could increase an 
additional 13% by 2038 base on recent property-level occupancy trends analysis from 2010 to the fall of 
2018, as well as analysis of planned residential projects and major institutional expansions throughout the 
City.  
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Annual Estimates of the Resident Population: April 1, 2010 to July 1, 2018 
2018 Population Estimates 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Population Division 

New Orleans continues to be a center for higher learning with more than 50,000 students enrolled in the 
region's 11 higher education institutions. Its economy is also strongly tied to industries such as leisure and 
hospitality, construction, manufacturing, trade, health services and a growing information technology 
sector. 

New Orleans metropolitan area unemployment rate (3.9%) was the same as the national rate (3.9%) at the 
end of 2018 according to the US Department of Labor.   The unemployment rate for the New Orleans area 
decreased 1.3% from the 5.2% reported in Quarter 2 of 2017, with a 0.2% increase since December 2017. 

All Topics

New 
Orleans

city,
Louisiana

Population 

Population estimates, July 1, 2018, (V2018) 391,006
Population estimates base, April 1, 2010, (V2018) 343,828

Population, percent change - April 1, 2010 (estimates base) to July 1, 2018, (V2018) 13.7%
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New Orleans Metropolitan Statistical Area Unemployment Rate; U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of 
Labor Statistics

New Orleans Metropolitan Statistical Area Employment Rate; U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of 
Labor Statistics

Average hourly wages in the New Orleans area are lower than national averages.   

I-5



According to Choose New Orleans, the 2017 cost of living index for the New Orleans metropolitan area 
was slightly below the average of many other similar areas. Occupations that reported the highest hourly 
wage include Human Resource Managers, Accountants and Auditors, Registered Nurses, and Chemical 
Plant and System Operators. Occupations with median hourly wages include Plumbers, Pipefitters & 
Steamfitters, Sailors & Marine Oilers, Construction Laborers, Customer Service Technicians, and 
Pharmacy Technicians. Occupations with the lowest hourly wages include Retail Salespersons, Maids and 
Housekeeping Cleaners, and Cooks, Fast food.   

MANAGEMENT INITIATIVES 

After the emergency efforts and spending in response to the August 2017 flood event, SWBNO faced 
serious financial hurdles to restore stability. While the reliability of the drainage system was greatly 
improved, the drainage system had to borrow from other systems in the Enterprise Fund to cover those 
costs. A landmark deal struck in 2019 among the city, the state and the hospitality industry provided an 
immediate remedy for much of that uncertainty. The negotiations yielded $50 million in one-time funding 
to support various operations and capital needs, and another $20 - $26 million in recurring tax revenue 
annually for the next 99 years.   

With this new funding at the ready, SWBNO has made a significant shift in its asset-based strategy from a 
“stable” outlook to a visionary outlook.  Rather than continuing to repair old and poorly maintained 
equipment, the utility has made an affirmative policy decision to replace outdated assets with modern 
infrastructure.  Capital resources will be used first to move from steam-based to gas-based power 
generation. SWBNO also is moving forward with a plan to construct a new electrical substation at the 
Carrollton Water Plant, thereby enabling the utility to purchase power at a lower cost than it can be 
generated.

It is critical that SWBNO begin a master plan to guide its modernization efforts over the coming years.  In 
addition to the projects detailed above, the utility must move forward with an automated meter system, 
extensive water line replacements, and other significant projects that will require advance financial and 
logistical planning.  While each of these projects is independently crucial to the health and safety of New 
Orleans, they will be successful only with appropriate planning and prioritization.  In that vein, SWBNO 
has developed a new organization chart and is working with other governmental agencies to implement and 
will be filling critical vacancies in the coming months to be able to move the utility into the future.  
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FINANCIAL PLANNING 

To help reconcile years of stagnant response to growing annual costs, the City Council approved in 2012 a 
water and sewer service rate plan that provides SWBNO annual rate increases of 10 percent through 2020. 
This effort has much improved the financial outlook of the utility, but more likely is needed. The recurring 
funding to begin in 2019 will help to reduce the burden to ratepayers, but discussions are underway to 
launch a comprehensive rate study to close the gaps.  This discussion would include assessments of not 
only water and sewer services, but also stormwater management. 

General Operations

The change in net position for the year ended December 31, 2018 was an increase of approximately $41.0 
million, as opposed to the approximately $34.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017. SWBNO’s 
total operating revenues increased by 3% to approximately $211.2 million due primarily to rate increases 
effective January 1, 2018, and total non-operating revenue increase by 26% to approximately $59.1 million. 

Budgetary Control 

SWBNO maintains internal budgetary control through the preparation and monitoring of an annual 
operating and capital budget for the Water, Sewerage, and Drainage funds. Financial Statements - Statement 
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, statement of net assets; and statements of cash flow - are 
prepared for each system. Also, monthly budget reports are provided to department level managers to assist 
them in their fiscal responsibilities. The 2019 approved budget of $231.8 million is 6% greater than the 
2018 approved fiscal budget of $217.3 million. The Board has $421.9 million in outstanding senior lien 
municipal bond debt; $7.7 million in Drainage Bonds, $216.9 million in Sewer Revenue Bonds and $197.3 
million in Water Revenue Bonds. SWBNO has been issued an A & A- rating from Standard & Poor (S&P) 
for sewerage and water respectively and an A- for water and sewer from Fitch rating agency. In addition, 
the S&P and Fitch ratings for special tax bonds are AA- and A+ respectively.  

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

SWBNO has a 10-year capital improvement program that factors in resources and expenses for the repair, 
rehabilitation, and replacement of water, sewer, and drainage capital assets. The program provides the 
utility with the ability to compare the impact of future financial activity and issues to determine the most 
appropriate method of maintaining financial stability over the next ten years. This includes capital 
improvements to infrastructure for the completion of projects from Hurricane Katrina repairs, for ongoing 
rehabilitation, to handle anticipated growth, to maintain compliance with regulatory requirements, 
technology changes, and to bring the system into the 21st century. At the end of 2018, there were 38 active 
capital projects with total budgets of $3 billion. Due to the 2017 storm event, the winter freeze of 2018 and 
limited access to new capital resources, the entire program of capital needs could not be funded in 2018. 

EMERGENCY PROJECTS 

As noted earlier, the Board responded to a major storm event in 2017 and initiated a number of emergency 
procurement contracts that were completed in 2018 or are still in progress: 

Emergency repairs of Gas Turbine Generator No. 5 completed. 
Emergency repairs to Drainage Pump Station No. 7 (Pump C) completed.
Installation of new pump and new motor for Drainage Pump Stations No. 2
Installation of Permanent Generator for Underpass Pump Station No.2-Canal Blvd.
Installation of Permanent Generator for Underpass Pump Station No. 3-Franklin Ave.
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Installation of Permanent Generator 3 for Underpass Pump Station No. 5-New Carrollton Ave.  
Installation of Permanent Generator for Underpass Pump Station No. 7-Paris Ave. 
Installation of Permanent Generator for Underpass Pump Station No. 9-Press Dr. 

WATER SYSTEM MAJOR INITIATIVES 

Below is a list of the major water system initiatives completed in 2018 and those that are still in progress: 

Carrollton Water Purification Plant 

Construction of new filter backwash pump for Sycamore Filter Gallery in progress.
Construction and design of valves, actuators and controls at Sycamore Filter Gallery in progress.
Design of new sludge line to the Mississippi River in progress.
Design of new chemical bulk storage and feed facility in progress.
Design of Resiliency Complex including hardening of Engineering Building, rehabilitation of Head 
House Facility and new Infill Building in progress.
Design for the demolition to basins C7 and C8 in completed. 
Design of improvement to Claiborne Ave Pumping, Panola and High Lift Stations in progress.
Conceptual study of new electrical substation on the west side of the facility in progress.
Design of the repairs to the fender system at New River and Oak St Raw Water Intake Structures 
in progress.
Construction of emergency temporary backwash pump for Sycamore Filter Gallery completed.
Construction of one 2M gallon water tower and associated piping completed.  Construction second 
water tower in construction.

Algiers Water Purification Plant 

Design of water storage tank mixing in progress.
Design of improvement to the Algiers Water Plant in progress including replacement of Clarifier 
1, improvements to Clarifiers 2, 3, and 4, a new flourosilicic acid storage and feed system, and 
SCADA improvements completed.  Construction started at the end of 2018.
Staff design of filter media replacement and repair to valves and actuators in progress.

Water Distribution System 

Repairs and improvements to the Michoud Water Tank in progress. 
Construction of secondary chlorination station in Venetian Isles in progress. 
Ongoing coordination with the Department of Public Works to rehabilitate water mains in 
association with the Joint Infrastructure Recovery Roads Program and other roadway rehabilitation. 
Ongoing management of twenty-two engineering consultants designing water main replacement 
projects for approximately sixty-two neighborhoods with a total value of $185M. 

Water Pumping and Power

Refurbishment of Steam Turbine Generator No. 4 completed. 
Emergency repairs of Steam Turbine Generator No. 3 completed. 
Purchase and Installation of five 2.5MW – 25Hz Electromotive Mechanical Device and associated 
auxiliary equipment completed.   
Installation of new 25Hz generator load bank equipment completed. 
Replacement of various 25Hz power distribution cables in progress. 
Construction of emergency fuel storage improvements in progress. 
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Refurbishment and repairs of boilers 1-6 in progress. 
Design of new boiler controls, deaerators, piping and SCADA in progress. 
Structural improvements to the power plant completed. 
Replacement of 25Hz pumps, motors, electrical components, piping, flow meters and valves 
associated with Oak St Raw Water Intake Station in progress. 

SEWER SYSTEM INITIATIVES 

Below is a list of the major sewer system initiatives completed in 2018 and those that are still in progress: 

Sewerage Pumping Stations 

Design of structural improvements to SPS A and Station D in progress. 
Construction of new Sewer Pumping Station No. 8 in progress. 
Design of catch-all improvements of various sewage pumping stations in progress. 

East Bank Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Construction of Phase 2 Electrical Improvements in progress. 
Construction of Bio-Reactor Train No. 4 Clean-out – Completed November 2018. 
Construction for the installation of the sludge dryer – Contract Awarded Sept 2018, but Work Order 
delayed. 
Construction for the rehabilitation of Clarifier #8 – Substantial Completion April 2, 2018 
Design for a new 1000 HP effluent pump in progress – 95% design completed February; 100% 
design due by 4/30/19. 
Preliminary design of a new 66” effluent discharge line to the Mississippi River in progress – not 
started.

West Bank Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Replacement of a new Vulcan bar screen – completed August 2018.  

DRAINAGE SYSTEM INITIATIVES 

Below is a list of the major drainage system initiatives completed in 2018 and those that are still in progress: 

Drainage Pumping Stations 

Construction of permanent emergency generators at five underpass pumping stations completed. 
Design of permanent emergency generators at three additional underpass stations completed. 
Rehabilitation of the Broad St Underpass Station in progress. 
Construction of the three new lakefront pumping stations (17th, Orleans & London) completed and 
managed by SLFPA-E. 
Construction of anti-siphon mechanisms at Drainage Pumping Station 1 completed. 
Rehabilitation of Pumps C, D, and E at Drainage Pumping Station 4 in progress. 
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Canals

Construction of Florida Ave Canal Phases II/III from Peoples Ave is 85% complete. 
Construction of Florida Ave Canal Phase IV is 36% complete. 
Construction of Jefferson Ave Canal Phase I is 100% complete. 
Construction of Louisiana Ave Canal is 100% complete. 
Design of General DeGaulle Canal Improvements from Shirley Dr to Holiday Dr is in progress. 

OTHER FINANICAL INFORMATION 

In December 2018, SWBNO went live with a new $2.3 million Payroll/HR system to replace its outdated 
Governmental Human Resources Systems (GHRS) Payroll/HR system. The system is utilized for current 
employee payroll processing, retiree pension benefits, and employees receiving workers’ compensation 
benefits.

The utility’s new leadership has made great strides in improving the Customer Service Management (CSM) 
billing system implemented in November of 2016, including eliminating the backlog of transfer accounts, 
providing additional training, improved reconciliations, updated meter reading routes, and resolving customer 
questions and inquiries. Additionally, third parties were engaged to assist and identify areas of improvement 
and many of those recommendations are already underway or completed. The outdated Customer Account 
Management (CAM) billing system was replaced due to its inability to interface with modern system 
functions such as online bill services that would allow customers to pay their bills online and routinely check 
account activity. 

In 2019, there will be an upgrade to the CSM billing system, and SWBNO will initiate planning for investment 
in new technologies such as Automated Metering Infrastructure, a general ledger/accounts payable 
replacement system, a centralized procurement System, asset management and work order systems, and other 
systems that may enhance the efficiency, customer access and financial reporting of the organization.  

Based on the dedication of its employees, SWBNO has received the Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting for 35 (thirty-five) years for past submissions of its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR). The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award-recognizing conformance with the 
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.  In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
CAFR whose contents conform to program standards.  Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.  We believe that the current report conforms to the 
Certificate of Achievement program requirements and we will submit this CAFR to the GFOA. 
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The following financial statements were prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) and audited by a firm of independent certified public accountants retained by the Board. 
This utility meets the criteria for classification as an “other stand-alone government” as described in 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61.  

Pursuant to LA Rev Stat § 24:513(A), SWBNO is required to have its financial position examined and 
audited each year by licensed certified public accountants.  

SWBNO’s management is responsible for the reliability of the information contained in this report, based 
upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that is established for this purpose.  The internal 
control framework is designed to give reasonable assurance that cost on internal controls should not exceed 
the benefits derived from the controls and that the financial statements are free from material misstatements.  
The internal control over financial reporting is a process deigned by, or under the supervision of, SWBNO’s 
executive director and the chief financial officer and the finance administrator, and effected by the Board 
of Directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purpose in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles.

PROFILE OF SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

SWBNO is a public utility that owns, maintains and operates New Orleans’ vast networks of water and 
sewer mains, as well as the larger components of the city’s drainage system. The water and sewer systems, 
and overall administration of SWBNO, are funded through service rates, which are approved by the City 
Council of New Orleans. Maintenance, operations and improvements to the drainage system are financed 
through three ad valorem taxes set at rates of 3 mills, 6 mills and 9 mills, respectively. These taxes, received 
in bulk once a year, are the utility’s only dedicated revenue streams for drainage.

The finances of the three systems – water, sewer, and drainage – make up the utility’s Enterprise Fund. 
SWBNO also provides for a Pension Trust Fund. 

SWBNO was founded in 1899 by state law and merged with the New Orleans Drainage Commission in 
1903 to eventually assume its present-day mission: To serve the people of New Orleans and improve their 
quality of life by providing safe drinking water; removing waste water for safe return to the environment; 
and draining storm water to protect the community. Its team of experts does this reliably, continuously, and 
at a reasonable cost. This utility’s vision is to earn and hold the trust and confidence of customers and 
community for reliable and sustainable water services, and to be a model utility in the water industry.

Today, SWBNO serves 364 square miles of the City of New Orleans, plus providing drainage services to 
approximately 2,550 acres of neighboring Jefferson Parish. Its drinking water comes from the Mississippi 
River. It operates a drainage system of approximately 280 miles of open and underground canals and 24 
pumping stations that house 120 drainage pumps. Both systems are powered by a combination of modern, 
60-Hertz electricity and self-generated, 25-Hertz power that dates back to the early 20th century. The Board 
meets the criteria for classification as an “other stand-alone government” as described in Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61.  The reporting entity includes the Enterprise Fund and the 
Pension Trust Fund.  The Enterprise Fund is composed of three (3) independent systems: Water, Sewerage 
and Drainage.

SWBNO is under federal consent decree to overhaul New Orleans sewerage system. This effort is scheduled 
to be completed in 2025. Sewer operations are managed by an independent contractor.
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

The following Management Discussion and Analysis provides an overview of the financial performance 
of the Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans’ (the Board) for the fiscal years that ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the 
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. The Board’s financial statements 
follow this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Recovery from Hurricane Katrina, the resulting flooding and an ongoing consent decree program 
continued to have significant impacts on operations and capital activities during 2018. Repairs and 
replacements to the water, sewerage, and drainage systems, and rehabilitation and replacement of 
buildings will continue through 2025. 

On August 5, 2017, New Orleans experienced a significant storm event resulting in localized flooding.  In 
response, an investment was made in the emergency repair and upgrade to various aspects of the drainage 
system that continued into 2018.  Substantial resources were utilized to ensure the resiliency and 
reliability of the drainage operations going forward. In addition, a declared winter freeze emergency in 
January 2018 resulted in large emergency repairs to multiple water mains around the Parish.   

In May 2019, in an effort to replenish funding for the Board, Mayor LaToya Cantrell led the charge to 
obtain $50 million in one-time funding to support various operations and capital needs of the Board.  In 
addition, the Mayor was able to secure ongoing funding under House Bills 522, 617 & 43 which is 
anticipated to result in $20 - $26 million in recurring tax revenue. 

Enterprise Fund 

The major highlights in the Board’s enterprise fund were as follows: 

2018 

The SWBNO’s net position totaled $3.5 billion in 2018, an increase of 3.7% compared to 2017. 
Revenues from Water and Sewer services increased by approximately $3.4 million from 2017 to 
2018, for a total of approximately 205.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2018. 
Total operating expenses decreased in 2018 by $20.1 million, or 6.4% compared to 2017.  
Total assets increased $124.7 million, or 3.7% from 2017 to 2018. 
For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Board had total outstanding senior lien municipal 
debt of $421.9 million, which includes $7.7 million in Drainage bonds, $216.9 million in Sewer 
Revenue Bonds, and $197.3 million in Water Revenue Bonds. 
The Board’s additions to its major systems approximated $253.3 million. 
The Southeast Louisiana (SELA) drainage system project, a major upgrade by the Corps of 
Engineers, resulted in additions of approximately $57.1 million to work in progress during the 
year. 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Disaster Public Assistance grants revenues 
totaled approximately $13.0 million and Hazard Mitigation grants totaled approximately $31.1 
million.
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2017 

The Board’s additions to its major systems approximated $333.9 million. 
The Southeast Louisiana (SELA) drainage system project, a major upgrade by the Corps of 
Engineers, resulted in additions of approximately $98.9 million to work in progress during the 
year. 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Disaster Public Assistance grants revenues 
totaled approximately $29.4 million and Hazard Mitigation grants totaled approximately $19.5 
million.
Revenues from Water and Sewer services increased by approximately $13.5 million to a total of 
approximately $202.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

Pension Trust Fund 

The major highlights in the Board’s fiduciary fund were as follows: 

2018 

The net depreciation of the fair value of investments was $8.5 million in 2018 compared to a net 
appreciation of $22.5 million in 2017. The net position restricted for pension benefits decreased by $20.0 
million during 2018 to $215.3 million at December 31, 2018. 

2017  

The net appreciation of the fair value of investments was $22.5 million in 2017 compared to a net 
appreciation of $11.8 million in 2016. The net position restricted for pension benefits increased by $10.9 
million during 2017 to $235.3 million at December 31, 2017. 

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This financial report consists of five parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the 
financial statements, the notes to the financial statements, required supplementary information, and other 
supplementary information. 

Government-wide Financial Statements – Enterprise Fund 

The Board’s principal activities of providing water, sewerage, and drainage services are accounted for in 
a single proprietary fund – the enterprise fund.  Enterprise funds are used to report business activities.  
Since the enterprise fund is the Board’s single activity, its financial statements are presented as the 
Board’s government-wide financial statements. 

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Board’s overall 
financial status.  The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the 
financial statements and provide more detailed data.  The statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary information and other supplementary information that further explain and support the 
information in the financial statements. 

The Board’s financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units.  
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses 
are recognized in the period in which they are incurred, and depreciation of property, plant, and 
equipment is recognized in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  All 
assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Board are included in the Statements of Net 
Position.

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on all of the Board’s assets, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.  Over time, increases 
and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
Board is improving or deteriorating. 

Fund Financial Statements – Pension Trust Fund 

The Board’s fiduciary fund financial statements consist of its pension trust fund.  As a fiduciary fund, the 
pension trust fund is held for the benefit of employees and retirees of the Board.  The pension trust fund is 
not reflected in the government-wide financials because the resources are not available to the Board for its 
activities.  The accounting for the pension trust fund is much like that used by the enterprise fund. 
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE BOARD

ENTERPRISE FUND 

2018 Net Position 

The Board’s total assets and deferred outflows at December 31, 2018 were approximately $3.5 billion, a 
3.7% increase from December 31, 2017 (see Table A-1). 

Table A-1
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Net Position
(Restated) Increase Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Current unrestricted assets 150,478,786$     194,955,962$     (44,477,176)$      -22.8%
Restricted assets 69,484,786         116,611,194       (47,126,408)        -40.4%
Property, plant, and equipment - net 3,208,862,077     3,019,092,797     189,769,280       6.3%
Other assets 7,478,739           12,291,080         (4,812,341)         -39.2%

Total assets 3,436,304,388     3,342,951,033     93,353,355         2.8%

Deferred outflows of resources 48,123,085         16,734,173         31,388,912         187.6%
Total deferred outflows of resources 48,123,085         16,734,173         31,388,912         187.6%

Total assets and deferred outflows 3,484,427,473$   3,359,685,206$   124,742,267$     3.7%

Current liabilities 167,662,980$     148,037,878$     19,625,102$       13.3%
Long-term liabilities 1,054,308,552     1,040,787,916     13,520,636         1.3%

Total liabilities 1,221,971,532     1,188,825,794     33,145,738         2.8%

Deferred inflows of resources 17,653,950         1,867,968           15,785,982         845.1%
Total deferred inflows of resources 17,653,950         1,867,968           15,785,982         845.1%

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,543,371,049     2,405,347,069     138,023,980       5.7%
Restricted 46,042,585         46,606,340         (563,755)            -1.2%
Unrestricted (344,611,643)      (282,961,965)      (61,649,678)        21.8%

Total net position 2,244,801,991     2,168,991,444     75,810,547         3.5%
Total liabilities, deferred inflows,
 and net position 3,484,427,473$   3,359,685,206$   124,742,267$     3.7%

The net increase in total assets of $124.7 million resulted primarily due to a net increase in property, 
plant, and equipment of $189.8 million. There was a decrease in restricted assets of about $47.1 million as 
funds were used for construction projects. Current unrestricted assets decreased by $44.5 million in 2018 
mainly due to a decrease in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $18.4 million and a decrease in 
grants receivable of $37.5 million, offset by an increase in outstanding customers receivable balance, net 
of related allowance, of $9.1 million. 
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

Current liabilities increase by $19.6 million primarily due to an increase in Accounts Payable of $16.1 
million as a result of increased capital expenditures during 2018 and timing of payments. Long-term 
liabilities increased by $13.5 million primarily due to an increase in net pension liability of $40.9 million 
due to changes in actuarial assumption and investment returns, offset by a decrease of $19.0 million 
decrease in total other post-employment benefits liability (Total OPEB Liability) and a decrease of $19.5 
million in total outstanding bonds. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
increased by $31.4 million and $15.8 million, respectively, due to changes in actuary’s assumption on 
investment returns and demographic factors related to the pension plan. 

2017 Net Position 

The Board’s total assets and deferred outflows at December 31, 2017 were approximately $3.4 billion, a 
4.4% increase from December 31, 2016 (see Table A-2). 

Table A-2
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Net Position
(Restated) Increase Increase

2017 2016 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Current unrestricted assets 194,955,962$     219,980,110$     (25,024,148)$      -11.4%
Restricted assets 116,611,194       219,761,583       (103,150,389)      -46.9%
Property, plant, and equipment - net 3,019,092,797     2,744,691,660     274,401,137       10.0%
Other assets 12,291,080         11,824,788         466,292             3.9%

Total assets 3,342,951,033     3,196,258,141     146,692,892       4.6%

Deferred outflows of resources 16,734,173         20,506,855         (3,772,682)         -18.4%
Total deferred outflows of resources 16,734,173         20,506,855         (3,772,682)         -18.4%

Total assets and deferred outflows 3,359,685,206$   3,216,764,996$   142,920,210$     4.4%

Current liabilities 148,037,878$     97,567,295$       50,470,583$       51.7%
Long-term liabilities 1,040,787,916     888,379,320       152,408,596       17.2%

Total liabilities 1,188,825,794     985,946,615       202,879,179       20.6%

Deferred inflows of resources 1,867,968           2,396,433           (528,465)            -22.1%
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,867,968           2,396,433           (528,465)            -22.1%

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,405,347,069     2,251,197,095     154,149,974       6.8%
Restricted 46,606,340         47,217,981         (611,641)            -1.3%
Unrestricted (282,961,965)      (69,993,128)        (212,968,837)      304.3%

Total net position 2,168,991,444     2,228,421,948     (59,430,504)        -2.7%
Total liabilities, deferred inflows,
 and net position 3,359,685,206$   3,216,764,996$   142,920,210$     4.4%
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

The net increase in total assets of $146.7 million resulted primarily due to an increase in property, plant, 
and equipment of $274.4 million. There was a decrease in restricted assets of about $103.2 million as 
funds were used for construction projects. Current unrestricted assets decreased by $25.0 million in 2017 
mainly due to a decrease in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $31.3 million, offset by an increase 
in outstanding customers receivable balance, net of related allowance, of $4.9 million.  

Current liabilities increase by $50.5 million primarily due to an increase in Accounts Payable of $44.7 
million as a result of increased capital expenditures during 2017 and timing of payments. Long-term 
liabilities increased by $152.4 million primarily due to an increase in claims payable of $41.6 million 
related to a class-action suit, an increase in the Southeast Louisiana Project liability of $37.9 million, and 
an increase of $97.1 million in the OPEB liability attributable to adoption of a new accounting standard. 
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources decreased by $3.8 million and 
$528,000, respectively, due to changes in actuary’s assumption on investment returns and demographic 
factors related to the pension plan. 

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 Changes in Net Position 

The change in net position for the year ended December 31, 2018 was an increase of approximately $75.8 
million, as opposed to approximately $34.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.  The Board’s 
total operating revenues increased by 2.8% to approximately $211.2 million due primarily to rate 
increases effective January 1, 2018. Total non-operating revenue increased by 23.5% to approximately 
$59.1 million due to a recovery of $3.2 million in grants previously determined to be uncollectable. 
Capital contributions from federal grants and construction of Board property was approximately $100.3 
million resulting primarily from capital additions reimbursable under the FEMA Disaster Public 
Assistance and FEMA Hazard Mitigation grants of approximately $13.0 million and $31.1 million, 
respectively, and approximately $57.1 million of capital contributions by the Army Corps of Engineers.  
The changes in net position are detailed in Table A-3; operating expenses are detailed in Table A-4. 

Table A-3
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Revenues , Expenses and Change in Net Position
Increase Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Operating revenues:
Sales of water and delinquent fees 90,287,081$       90,464,810$       (177,729)$          -0.2%
Sewerage service charges 114,614,157       111,063,719       3,550,438           3.2%
Plumbing inspection and license fees 648,332             588,330             60,002               10.2%
Other revenue 5,687,203           3,451,274           2,235,929           64.8%

Total operating revenues 211,236,773       205,568,133       5,668,640           2.8%

Operating expenses (Table A-4) 294,807,252       314,911,503       (20,104,251)        -6.4%

Operating loss (83,570,479)        (109,343,370)      25,772,891         23.6%

Non-operating revenues:
Property taxes 54,651,624         55,422,813         (771,189)            -1.4%
Other taxes 594,532             593,424             1,108                 0.2%
Federal noncapital grants 78,814               845                   77,969               9227.1%
Interest income 3,788,898           4,277,115           (488,217)            -11.4%
Interest expense (3,204,239)         (3,537,336)         333,097             -9.4%
Recovery (provison) for grants 3,183,641           (8,906,949)         12,090,590         -135.7%

Total non-operating revenues 59,093,270         47,849,912         11,243,358         23.5%

Income before capital contributions (24,477,209)        (61,493,458)        37,016,249         -60.2%

Capital contributions 100,287,756       96,336,075         3,951,681           4.1%

Change in net position 75,810,547         34,842,617         40,967,930         117.6%

Net position, beginning of year 2,168,991,444     2,228,421,948     (59,430,504)        -2.7%

Change in accounting principle -                    (94,273,121)        94,273,121         N/A

Net position, end of year 2,244,801,991$   2,168,991,444$   75,810,547$       3.5%
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
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Table A-4
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Operating Expenses
Increase Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Power and pumping 31,874,462$       36,552,523$       (4,678,061)$        -12.8%
Treatment 22,958,975         25,651,907         (2,692,932)         -10.5%
Transmission and distribution 46,530,018         36,409,559         10,120,459         27.8%
Customer accounts 5,243,276           4,460,155           783,121             17.6%
Customer service 4,476,414           4,217,543           258,871             6.1%
Administration and general 28,253,318         24,343,704         3,909,614           16.1%
Payroll related 49,416,581         38,126,322         11,290,259         29.6%
Maintenance of general plant 28,813,485         26,100,182         2,713,303           10.4%
Depreciation 63,501,190         59,450,076         4,051,114           6.8%
Provision for doubtful accounts 20,942,217         14,326,711         6,615,506           46.2%
(Recovery) provision for claims (7,202,684)         45,272,821         (52,475,505)        -115.9%

Total operating expenses 294,807,252$     314,911,503$     (20,104,251)$      -6.4%

Total operating expenses decreased by approximately $20.1 million or 6.4% compared to 2017. The 
increase of $6.6 million in provision for doubtful accounts was mainly due to customer billing and 
collection issues in 2018, and a recovery in claims was mainly attributable to a $11.0 million decrease in 
general liabilities claims in 2018 as the reserve for SELA project related claims was revised based on the 
final judgments during 2018. In addition, transmission and distributions increased by $10.1 million due to 
repairs and maintenance expenditures on the water, sewer, and drainage systems. Furthermore, payroll 
related expenses increased by approximately $11.3 million or 29.6% due to an increase in total number of 
employees from approximately 1,200 at December 31, 2017 to approximately 1,400 at December 31, 
2018. 
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2017 Changes in Net Position 

The change in net position for the year ended December 31, 2017 was an increase of approximately $34.8 
million, as opposed to approximately $145.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016.  The Board’s 
total operating revenues increased by 6.7% to approximately $205.6 million due primarily to rate 
increases effective January 1, 2017. Total non-operating revenue decreased by 21.9% to approximately 
$47.8 million due to a $8.9 million provision for grants recorded in the current year. Capital contributions 
from federal grants and construction of Board property was approximately $96.3 million resulting 
primarily from capital additions reimbursable under the FEMA Disaster Public Assistance and FEMA 
Hazard Mitigation grants of approximately $29.4 million and $19.5 million, respectively, and 
approximately $61.0 million of capital contributions by the Army Corps of Engineers.  The changes in net 
position are detailed in Table A-5; operating expenses are detailed in Table A-6. 

Table A-5
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Revenues , Expenses and Change in Net Position
Increase Increase

2017 2016 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Operating revenues:
Sales of water and delinquent fees 90,464,810$       83,158,940$       7,305,870$         8.8%
Sewerage service charges 111,063,719       104,795,184       6,268,535           6.0%
Plumbing inspection and license fees 588,330             638,502             (50,172)              -7.9%
Other revenue 3,451,274           4,078,380           (627,106)            -15.4%

Total operating revenues 205,568,133       192,671,006       12,897,127         6.7%

Operating expenses (Table A-6) 314,911,503       227,798,026       87,113,477         38.2%

Operating loss (109,343,370)      (35,127,020)        (74,216,350)        -211.3%

Non-operating revenues:
Property taxes 55,422,813         56,029,548         (606,735)            -1.1%
Other taxes 593,424             564,050             29,374               5.2%
Federal noncapital grants 845                   24,738               (23,893)              -96.6%
Interest income 4,277,115           4,667,470           (390,355)            -8.4%
Interest expense (3,537,336)         (32,471)              (3,504,865)         10793.8%
Provison for grants (8,906,949)         -                    (8,906,949)         N/A

Total non-operating revenues 47,849,912         61,253,335         (13,403,423)        -21.9%

Income before capital contributions (61,493,458)        26,126,315         (87,619,773)        -335.4%

Capital contributions 96,336,075         119,607,318       (23,271,243)        -19.5%

Change in net position 34,842,617         145,733,633       (110,891,016)      -76.1%

Net position, beginning of year 2,228,421,948     2,082,688,315     145,733,633       7.0%

Change in accounting principle (94,273,121)        -                    (94,273,121)        N/A

Net position, end of year 2,168,991,444$   2,228,421,948$   (59,430,504)$      -2.7%
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Table A-6
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Operating Expenses
Increase Increase

2017 2016 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Power and pumping 36,552,523$       13,499,216$       23,053,307$       170.8%
Treatment 25,651,907         20,300,344         5,351,563           26.4%
Transmission and distribution 36,409,559         37,174,706         (765,147)            -2.1%
Customer accounts 4,460,155           4,151,027           309,128             7.4%
Customer service 4,217,543           4,271,555           (54,012)              -1.3%
Administration and general 24,343,704         18,506,107         5,837,597           31.5%
Payroll related 38,126,322         43,990,879         (5,864,557)         -13.3%
Maintenance of general plant 26,100,182         23,979,309         2,120,873           8.8%
Depreciation 59,450,076         52,060,674         7,389,402           14.2%
Provision for doubtful accounts 14,326,711         3,413,404           10,913,307         319.7%
Provision for claims 45,272,821         6,450,805           38,822,016         601.8%

Total operating expenses 314,911,503$     227,798,026$     87,113,477$       38.2%

Total operating expenses increased by approximately $87.1 million or 38.2% compared to 2016. Increase 
of $10.9 million in provision for doubtful accounts was mainly due to customer billing issues in 2017, and 
increase in claims was mainly attributed to a $38.8 million increase in general liabilities claims in 2017. 
In addition, power and pumping increased by $23.1 million due to the August 2017 flood causing an 
increase in expenditures.  
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

PENSION TRUST FUND 

2018 Plan Net Position 

The Board’s total plan assets and net position of its pension trust fund at December 31, 2018 was 
approximately $215.3 million, an 8.5% decrease from December 31, 2017 (see table A-7).  

Plan net position decreased by approximately $20.0 million in 2018 primarily due to net depreciation in 
fair value of investments by approximately $8.5 million. An increase of employee and employer 
contributions of $0.6 million was offset by an increase of benefit payments of approximately $1.6 million 
in 2018. 

Table A-7
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Pension Trust Fund Net Position
Increase Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash 1,456$               230,946$           (229,490)$          -99.4%
Investments 217,136,196       234,711,857       (17,575,661)        -7.5%
Receivables 63,354               101,269             (37,915)              -37.4%
Due from other fund 73,777               240,245             (166,468)            -69.3%

Total assets 217,274,783       235,284,317       (18,009,534)        -7.7%

Other liabilities 1,995,000           -                    1,995,000           N/A
Total liabilities 1,995,000           -                    1,995,000           100.0%

Plan net position 215,279,783$     235,284,317$     (20,004,534)$      -8.5%
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2017 Plan Net Position 

The Board’s total plan assets and net position of its pension trust fund at December 31, 2017 was 
approximately $235.3 million, a 4.8% increase from December 31, 2016 (see table A-8).  

Plan net position increased by approximately $10.9 million in 2017 primarily due to appreciation in fair 
value of investment by approximately $22.5 million and contributions of $11.8 million offset by benefit 
payment and other deductions totaling $24.2 million in 2017. 

Table A-8
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Pension Trust Fund Net Position
Increase Increase

2017 2016 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash 230,946$           40,495$             190,451$           470.3%
Investments 234,711,857       224,250,456       10,461,401         4.7%
Receivables 101,269             111,733             (10,464)              -9.4%
Due from other fund 240,245             -                    240,245             N/A

Total assets 235,284,317       224,402,684       10,881,633         4.8%

Other liabilities -                    46,423               (46,423)              N/A
Total liabilities -                    46,423               (46,423)              0.0%

Plan net position 235,284,317$     224,356,261$     10,928,056$       4.9%
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2018 Changes in Plan Net Position 

Change in net position decreased by $31.0 million mainly attributable to a $31.2 million net investment 
(loss) income change. The decrease in net investment income in 2018 is due stock market performance 
near the end of 2018 causing depreciation in fair value of the equity investments that account for 
approximately half of the investment portfolio of the pension trust fund. 

Table A-9
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Change in Plan Net Position
Increase Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Additions:
Contributions 11,186,923$       11,795,214$       (608,291)$          -5.2%
Net (loss) income on investments (7,868,279)         23,326,273         (31,194,552)        -133.7%

Total additions 3,318,644           35,121,487         (31,802,843)        -90.6%

Deductions:
Benefits (18,565,085)        (16,974,995)        (1,590,090)         9.4%
Employee refunds (355,206)            (438,134)            82,928               -18.9%
Employee DROP contributions (4,402,887)         (6,780,302)         2,377,415           -35.1%

Total deductions (23,323,178)        (24,193,431)        870,253             -3.6%

Change in net position (20,004,534)        10,928,056         (30,932,590)        -283.1%

Plan net position, beginning of year 235,284,317       224,356,261       10,928,056         4.9%

Plan net position, end of year 215,279,783$     235,284,317$     (20,004,534)$      -8.5%
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2017 Changes in Plan Net Position 

Change in net position increased by $9.0 million mainly attributable to a $10.8 million net investment 
income change. The increase in net investment income is due to overall market conditions resulting 
appreciation in fair value of the investments and earnings from investments. 

Table A-10
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans

Change in Plan Net Position
Increase Increase

2017 2016 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Additions:
Contributions 11,795,214$       10,101,344$       1,693,870$         16.8%
Net income on investments 23,326,273         12,569,604         10,756,669         85.6%

Total additions 35,121,487         22,670,948         12,450,539         54.9%

Deductions:
Benefits (16,974,995)        (15,757,292)        (1,217,703)         7.7%
Employee refunds (438,134)            (421,087)            (17,047)              4.0%
Employee DROP contributions (6,780,302)         (4,563,835)         (2,216,467)         48.6%

Total deductions (24,193,431)        (20,742,214)        (3,451,217)         16.6%

Change in net position 10,928,056         1,928,734           8,999,322           466.6%

Plan net position, beginning of year 224,356,261       222,427,527       1,928,734           0.9%

Plan net position, end of year 235,284,317$     224,356,261$     10,928,056$       4.9%
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

2018 Capital Assets 

As of December 31, 2018, the Board had invested approximately $4.24 billion in capital assets.  Net of 
accumulated depreciation, the Board’s net capital assets at December 31, 2018 totaled approximately 
$3.21 billion. This amount represents a net increase (including additions and disposals, net of 
depreciation) of approximately $192.3 million, or 6.4%, over December 31, 2017.   

At December 31, 2018, the Board's budget for its ten-year capital improvements program totaled 
approximately $3 billion, which includes $166.7 million in capital expenditures for the year ending 
December 31, 2019 and provides for the following activities: 

Continue Joint Infrastructure Recovery Road in conjunction with City of New Orleans 
Department of Public Works;  
Comply with regulatory requirements under the Sewer Consent Decree; 
Complete second tower of Water Hammer project;  
Participate in drainage system improvements in coordination with SELA Program;  
Initiate Automated Meter Infrastructure project. 

Due to certain regulatory and legislative changes, additional capital improvements will probably be 
required.  Future capital improvement program expenditures may require the issuance of additional debt 
depending on the amount and timing of expenditures. 

See Note 4 for detailed capital asset activity during 2018. 

2017 Capital Assets 

As of December 31, 2017, the Board had invested approximately $4.00 billion in capital assets.  Net of 
accumulated depreciation, the Board’s net capital assets at December 31, 2017 totaled approximately 
$3.02 billion. This amount represents a net increase (including additions and disposals, net of 
depreciation) of approximately $274.4 million, or 10.0%, over December 31, 2016.   

At December 31, 2017, the Board's budget for its 10-year capital improvements program totaled 
approximately $3.16 billion including approximately $774.8 million for water, $497.7 million for 
sewerage, $832.0 million for drainage, and approximately $1.10 billion for a combination of water, 
sewerage, and drainage. Due to certain regulatory and legislative changes, additional capital 
improvements will probably be required.  Future capital improvement program expenditures may require 
the issuance of additional debt depending on the amount and timing of expenditures. As of December 31, 
2017, the Board has committed or appropriated $47.7 million in investments for use in future capital 
projects and has approximately $67.8 million remaining in restricted cash, cash equivalents, and 
investments for construction.  
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

The capital improvements budget for 2018 is $346.5 million, including $109.9 million for projects which 
are expected to be funded by federal grants and programs.  Significant projects included in property, plant 
and equipment in progress as of December 31, 2017 include the following: 

Hurricane Katrina-related Repairs and Replacements 
Southeast Louisiana Flood Control Program 

Sewer System Sanitation Evaluation and Rehabilitation Program 
Eastbank Sewer Treatment Plant 
Westbank Sewer Treatment Plant 

Wetlands Assimilation Project 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 

See Note 4 for detailed capital asset activity during 2017. 

2018 Debt Administration 

The Board continues to make its regularly scheduled payments on its bonds.  During 2018, $17.5 million 
in principal payments were made. 

The Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality has loaned the Board up to $9.0 million to fund 
construction of sewerage treatment works, implementing a management program under Section 1329 of 
the Water Quality Act of 1987, and developing and implementing a conservation and management plan 
under Section 1330 of the Federal Act. The outstanding balance is $6.5 million at December 31, 2018. 

The Costal Protection and Restoration Authority of Louisiana entered into an agreement with the 
Department of the Army for the Southeast Louisiana Flood Control Program. The United States 
Government has committed to 65% of the project costs and The Board is responsible for 35% of the 
project costs. At December 31, 2018, the accumulated amount due to the U.S. Government totaled 
approximately $227.1 million. This amount is estimated based on the actual cost of construction incurred 
to date.  Repayment of principal and interest is expected to start in 2019 through 2050. Total payment for 
the project is estimated to be approximately $388.9 million through 2050. The total cost of the project 
may increase in the upcoming years as additional construction costs continue to add to the project. 

See Note 6 for detailed long term debt activity during 2018. 
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SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017 

2017 Debt Administration 

The Board continues to make its regularly scheduled payments on its bonds.  During 2017, $17.6 million 
in principal payments were made. 

The Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality has loaned the Board up to $9.0 million to fund 
construction of sewerage treatment works, implementing a management program under Section 1329 of 
the Water Quality Act of 1987, and developing and implementing a conservation and management plan 
under Section 1330 of the Federal Act. The outstanding balance is $6.9 million at December 31, 2017. 

The Costal Protection and Restoration Authority of Louisiana entered into an agreement with the 
Department of the Army for the Southeast Louisiana Flood Control Program. The United States 
Government has committed to 65% of the project costs and The Board is responsible for 35% of the 
project costs. At December 31, 2017, the accumulated amount due to the U.S. Government totaled 
approximately $201.9 million. This amount is estimated based on the actual cost of construction incurred 
to date.  Repayment of principal and interest is expected to start in 2019 through 2050. Total payment for 
the project is estimated to be approximately $348.0 million through 2050. The total cost of the project 
may increase in the upcoming years as additional construction costs continue to add to the project. 

See Note 6 for detailed long term debt activity during 2017. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND RATES  

The Board, the City Council, and the Board of Liquidation City Debt approved a rate increase of ten 
percent for the Water and Sewer Departments effective January 1, 2013 and annually thereafter through 
2020.   

To meet the bond covenant for the 2014 Water and Sewer Revenue and Refunding Bonds and 2015 Water 
and Sewer Revenue Bonds, the cash in days is required to be maintained 90 days.  The SWBNO has 
exceeded the goals by 85 days and 49 days in the Water and Sewer system respectively. 

The total number of open accounts continue to increase modestly on an annual basis.  The total open 
accounts in 2018 were 135,968, an increase of 996 over 2017 open accounts of 134,972. 

CONTACTING THE BOARD’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our bondholders, patrons, and other interested parties with a 
general overview of the Board’s finances and to demonstrate the Board’s accountability for the money it 
receives.  If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the 
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans at (504) 585-2356. 

II-20



(RESTATED)
2018 2017

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTLFOWS OF RESOURCES

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 63,639,346$             82,011,826$             
Accounts receivable:

Customers, net of allowance 40,383,662               31,266,628               
Taxes 6,493,108                 9,652,824                 
Interest -                            -                            
Grants 26,810,346               64,315,311               
Miscellaneous 5,731,443                 2,044,764                 

Due from pension trust fund 1,995,000                 -                            
Inventory of supplies 4,888,702                 4,980,081                 
Prepaid expenses 537,179                    958,236                    

Total unrestricted and undesignated 150,478,786             195,229,670             

Total current assets 150,478,786             195,229,670             

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash, cash equivalents, and investments:
Cash and cash equivalents restricted for capital projects 21,245,567               67,533,646               
Debt service reserve 46,042,585      46,606,340      
Health insurance reserve 2,196,634        2,197,500        

Total restricted cash, cash equivalents, and investments 69,484,786               116,337,486             

Property, plant and equipment 4,243,049,265           3,995,723,910           
Less:  accumulated depreciation 1,034,187,188           976,631,113             

Property, plant and equipment, net 3,208,862,077           3,019,092,797           

Other assets:
Funds from/for customer deposits 7,427,424                 12,239,765               
Deposits 51,315                      51,315                      

Total other assets 7,478,739                 12,291,080               

Total noncurrent assets 3,285,825,602           3,147,721,363           

Total assets 3,436,304,388           3,342,951,033           

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 45,197,190               13,476,663               
Deferred loss on bond refunding 2,925,895                 3,257,510                 

Total deferred outflows of resources 48,123,085               16,734,173               

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 3,484,427,473$         3,359,685,206$         

(Continued)

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2018 and 2017

II-21



(RESTATED)
2018 2017

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

Current liabilities (payable from current unrestricted assets):
Accounts payable 100,761,801$            84,674,274$             
Due to City of New Orleans 842,664                    556,149                    
Disaster Reimbursement Revolving Loan (Note 14) 11,221,710               13,241,146               
Retainers and estimates payable 10,345,723               11,321,093               
Due to pension trust fund 116,376                    199,741                    
Accrued salaries 993,023                    1,121,435                 
Claims payable 4,354,711                 4,057,456                 
Total OPEB liability, due within one year 7,043,121                 -                                
Debt Service Assistance Fund loan payable 5,067,022                 4,842,337                 
Advances from federal government 4,751,868                 5,319,762                 
Other liabilities 467,459                    118,212                    

Total current liabilities (payable from current unrestricted assets): 145,965,478             125,451,605             

Current liabilities (payable from current restricted assets):
Accrued interest 2,725,236                 2,896,884                 
Bonds payable 16,900,000               17,461,000               
Retainers and estimates payable 2,072,266                 2,228,389                 

Total current liabilities (payable from current restricted assets): 21,697,502               22,586,273               

Total current liabilities 167,662,980             148,037,878             

Long-term liabilities:
Claims payable 44,068,031               55,102,939               
Accrued vacation and sick pay 9,693,790                 8,000,124                 
Net pension liability 123,873,465             82,933,718               
Total OPEB liability 151,569,144             170,658,516             
Bonds payable, net of current maturities 442,697,050             462,165,497             
Southeast Louisiana Project liability 227,139,545             201,926,585             
Debt Service Assistance Fund loan payable, net of current maturities 42,689,887               47,760,772               
Customer deposits 12,577,640               12,239,765               

Total long-term liabilities 1,054,308,552           1,040,787,916           

Total liabilities 1,221,971,532           1,188,825,794           

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 5,606,319                 1,867,968                 
Deferred amounts related to total OPEB liability 12,047,631               -                                

Total deferred inflows of resources 17,653,950               1,867,968                 

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,543,371,049           2,405,073,361           
Restricted for debt service 46,042,585               46,606,340               
Unrestricted (344,611,643)            (282,688,257)            

Total net position 2,244,801,991           2,168,991,444           

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 3,484,427,473$         3,359,685,206$         

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

(Continued)

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

December 31, 2018 and 2017
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

2018 2017
Operating revenues:

Sales of water and delinquent fees 90,287,081$              90,464,810$              
Sewerage service charges 114,614,157              111,063,719              
Plumbing inspection and license fees 648,332                     588,330                     
Other revenue 5,687,203                  3,451,274                  

Total operating revenues 211,236,773              205,568,133              

Operating expenses:
Power and pumping 31,874,462                36,552,523                
Treatment 22,958,975                25,651,907                
Transmission and distribution 46,530,018                36,409,559                
Customer accounts 5,243,276                  4,460,155                  
Customer service 4,476,414                  4,217,543                  
Administration and general 28,253,318                24,343,704                
Payroll related expenses 49,416,581                38,126,322                
Maintenance of general plant 28,813,485                26,100,182                
Depreciation 63,501,190                59,450,076                
Provision for doubtful accounts 20,942,217                14,326,711                
Provision for claims (7,202,684)                 45,272,821                

Total operating expenses 294,807,252              314,911,503              

Operating loss (83,570,479)               (109,343,370)             

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Three-mill tax 15,504,589                15,309,309                
Six-mill tax 15,576,221                16,229,098                
Nine-mill tax 23,570,261                23,881,671                
Two-mill tax 553                            2,735                         
Other taxes 594,532                     593,424                     
Federal noncapital grants 78,814                       845                            
Interest income 3,788,898                  4,277,115                  
Interest expense (3,204,239)                 (3,537,336)                 
Recovery (provision) for grants 3,183,641                  (8,906,949)                 

Total non-operating revenues 59,093,270                47,849,912                

(Loss) income before capital contributions (24,477,209)               (61,493,458)               

Capital contributions 100,287,756              96,336,075

Change in net position 75,810,547                34,842,617                

Net position, beginning of year 2,168,991,444            2,228,421,948            

Cummulative effect of change in accounting principle (Note 16) -                             (94,273,121)               

Net position, end of year, restated 2,244,801,991$          2,168,991,444$          

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

ENTERPRISE FUND
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customers 175,466,377$         182,957,643$         
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (111,566,403)          (81,124,197)            
Cash payments to employees for services (93,097,973)            (79,175,213)            
Other revenue 653,856                  3,698,417               

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (28,544,143)            26,356,650             

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Proceeds from property taxes 58,405,872             56,226,675             
Proceeds from federal noncapital grants 78,814                    845                          

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 58,484,686             56,227,520             

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (161,931,426)          (198,760,189)          
Principal payments and refundings of bonds payable (17,129,385)            (16,855,193)            
Principal payments on Debt Service Assistance Fund loan (4,846,200)              (4,627,616)              
Interest paid on bonds payable (26,712,563)            (27,816,506)            
Payments to construction fund (2,104,067)              (1,195,183)              
Proceeds from construction fund 84,631                    3,338,097               
Capital contributed by developers and federal grants 108,484,725           24,664,924             

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (104,154,285)          (221,251,666)          

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income 4,176,222               4,655,631               

Net cash provided by investing activities 4,176,222               4,655,631               

Net decrease in cash (70,037,520)            (134,011,865)          

Cash at the beginning of the year 204,697,353           338,709,218           

Cash at the end of the year 134,659,833$         204,697,353$         

Reconciliation of cash, designated cash, and restricted cash (Note 2)
Current assets - cash 67,816,770$           90,727,883$           
Restricted assets - cash 66,843,063             113,969,470           

                           Total cash 134,659,833$         204,697,353$         

(Continued)
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

ENTERPRISE FUND
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities is as follows:
Operating loss (83,570,479)$          (109,343,370)$       
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 63,501,190             59,450,076             
(Recovery) provision for claims (7,202,684)              45,272,821             
Provision for doubtful accounts 20,942,217             14,326,711             
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in customer receivables (30,059,251)            (19,198,445)            
Increase in due from other internal departments (1,995,000)              -                          
Decrease (increase) in inventory 91,379                    (223,886)                 
Decrease in prepaid expenses

and other receivables (3,265,622)              (681,613)                 
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources 

related to net pension liability (31,720,527)            3,427,875               
Increase in net pension obligation 40,939,747             2,184,060               
Increase in accounts payable 1,483,846               33,047,738             
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries, due to 

 pension and accrued vacation and sick pay 1,481,889               (1,492,268)              
Increase in customer deposits 337,875                  466,292                  
(Decrease) increase in total OPEB liability (12,046,251)            2,805,054               
Decrease in other liabilities (3,248,454)              (3,155,930)              
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources 

related to net pension liability and total OPEB liability 15,785,982             (528,465)                 

              Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (28,544,143)$          26,356,650$           

Schedule of non-cash capital and related financing activities
Contributions of capital assets 31,923,743$           71,671,151$           
Additions of property, plant and equipment in accounts payable 44,868,859$           30,265,178$           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

(Continued)
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUND
December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Assets:
Cash 1,456$                      230,946$                  
Receivables:

Investment income 63,354                      56,208                      
Employee contributions receivable -                           45,061                      

Due from other fund 73,777 240,245
Investments:

Money market 1,682,862                 975,593                    
LAMP 12,215,716               11,610,897               
Debt securities 79,846,858               81,607,684               
Hedge funds 16,979,004               20,968,656               
Equities 106,411,756             119,549,027             

Total assets 217,274,783             235,284,317             

Liabilities:
Due to other fund 1,995,000 -                           

Total Liabilities 1,995,000                 -                           

Net position - restricted for pension benefits 215,279,783$           235,284,317$           

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY PLAN NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUND
For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Additions:
  Contributions:
    Employee contributions 2,535,027$                2,139,705$                
    Employer contributions 8,419,441                  7,239,467                  
    City annuity and other transfers in 232,455                     2,416,042
Due from other fund 11,186,923                11,795,214                

Investment income:
  Interest income 329,929                     234,286                     
  Dividend income 1,363,919                  1,464,805                  
  Net (depreciation) appreciation (8,547,940)                 22,500,911

(6,854,092)                 24,200,002                
                    Less: investment expense 1,014,187                  873,729                     

                    Net investment (loss) income (7,868,279)                 23,326,273                

Due to other fund 3,318,644                  35,121,487                

Deductions:
  Benefits (18,565,085)               (16,974,995)               
  Employee refunds (355,206)                    (438,134)                    
  Employee contributions to DROP (4,402,887)                 (6,780,302)                 

                    Total deductions (23,323,178)               (24,193,431)               

                    Change in net position (20,004,534)               10,928,056                

Net position restricted for pension benefits
at beginning of year 235,284,317              224,356,261              

Net position restricted for pension benefits 
at end of year 215,279,783$            235,284,317$            

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. History and Organization 

The major operation of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board) is providing 
water, sewerage, and drainage services for the City of New Orleans (the City).  The Sewerage and 
Water Board of New Orleans was created by Act 6 of the Louisiana Legislature of 1899 as a special 
board independent of the City's government to construct, maintain, and operate a water treatment 
and distribution system and a public sanitary sewerage system for the City.  In 1903, the Legislature 
gave the Board control of and responsibility for the City's major drainage system and relieved the 
City of the duty of providing in its annual operating budget or otherwise for the maintenance and 
operations of the water, sewerage, and drainage systems.  

In accordance with the Louisiana Revised Statutes (LRS) 33:4096 and 4121, the Board has the 
authority to establish the water and sewerage rates to charge to its customers.  The rates are based 
on the actual water consumed and on the costs of maintenance and operation of the water and 
sewerage systems, including the costs of improvements and replacements.  The collections of water 
and sewerage revenues are to be used by the Board for the maintenance and operation of the 
systems, the cost of improvements, betterments, and replacements and to provide for the payments 
of interest and principal on the bonds payable.  On November 14, 2012, the Board approved both 
sewer and water rate increases commencing January 1, 2013. The sewer and water rates increase 
approximately 10% each year until the year of 2020. This increase was approved by the New 
Orleans City Council on November 14, 2012. 

The Board has also been given the authority to levy and collect various tax millages, which are 
used for the operation and maintenance of the drainage operations.  All excess revenues collected 
are made available for capital development of the system.  The proceeds of the rate collections and 
tax millages are invested in such investments as authorized by the LRS.  These investments are 
reflected in the combined statements of net position, as "restricted assets," as they are restricted to 
the purposes as described above. 

The Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans' eleven-member Board of Directors consists of the 
Mayor, the chair of the Public Works, Sanitation and Environment Committee of the New Orleans 
City Council or his designee, two representatives of the Board of Liquidation, and seven citizen 
members, of which five represent council districts and two consumer advocates and one of the 
appointments shall be a retired civil engineer. 

The Board's accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as applicable to utilities and to governmental units as set forth through the 
Government Accounting Standard Board.  The following is a summary of the more significant 
policies.
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_______________________________________________________________________
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

B. Reporting Entity 

In conformity with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's definition of a reporting entity, 
the Board includes an enterprise fund and a pension trust fund for financial reporting purposes.  The 
Board is considered a reporting entity based on the following criteria: 

1) Responsibility for surpluses/deficits. The Board is solely responsible for its surpluses/deficits.  
In accordance with LRS, no other governmental unit is responsible for the Board's deficits or 
has a claim to its surpluses. The Board’s operations are self-sustaining; revenues are generated 
through charges to customers and dedicated property taxes.  Other than grants, no funding is 
received from the State of Louisiana or the City of New Orleans. 

2) Budget Approval.  The Board is solely responsible for reviewing, approving, and revising its 
budget. 

3) Responsibility for Debt.  The LRS authorize the Board to issue bonds; such bonds must bear 
on their face a statement that they do not constitute a debt of the City.  The Board is solely 
responsible for payments to bondholders.  No other governmental unit is required by statute to 
make any payments to bondholders nor have any payments to bondholders ever been made by 
any governmental unit, except the Board. 

4) Designation of Management. The Board controls the hiring of management and employees. 

5) Special Financial Relationship.  The Board has no special financial relationships with any other 
governmental unit. 

6) Statutory Authority.  The Board's statutory authority was created by the State of Louisiana as 
an independent governmental unit.  Only an amendment to the state statutes can change or 
abolish the Board's authority. 

The Board is a stand-alone entity as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 
14 and No. 34 and GASB Codification Section 2100.  The Board is a legally-separate governmental 
organization that does not have a separately elected governing body and does not meet the 
definition of a component unit.  As a result of a Louisiana Supreme Court decision on March 21, 
1994, the Board was declared to be an autonomous or self-governing legal entity, legally 
independent of the City, State and other governments, created and organized pursuant to Louisiana 
Revised Statutes 33:4071 as a board, separate and independent of the governing authorities of the 
City and vested with autonomous or self-governing authority. No other government can mandate 
actions of the Board nor impose specific financial burdens, except the approval of the City Council 
and the Board of Liquidation in the case of bond issues and certain rate increases. As such, the City 
considers the Board to be a component unit of the City and includes the Board, as a discreetly 
presented component unit, in the City’s annual financial statements. However, the Board is fiscally 
independent to operate under its bond covenant and the provisions of LRS provisions.  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Basis of Financial Statement Presentation 

The Board’s basic financial statements consist of the government-wide statements which include 
the proprietary fund (the enterprise fund) and the fund financial statements which includes the 
fiduciary fund (the pension trust fund).   

The operations of the Board are accounted for in the following fund types: 

Proprietary Fund Type 

The proprietary fund is used to account for the Board's ongoing operations and activities, which are 
similar to those often found in the private sector.  The proprietary fund is accounted for using a flow 
of economic resources measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, all assets and all 
liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net position.  
Net position is segregated into amounts invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted for 
debt service, restricted for capital projects, and unrestricted. The Board’s restricted assets are 
expendable for their purposes.  The Board utilizes available unrestricted assets before utilizing 
restricted assets.  The operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) 
in net position.  The Board maintains one proprietary fund type – the enterprise fund. The enterprise 
fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to 
private business enterprises--where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, 
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis 
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance.   

Operating revenues include all charges for service; other revenues include reconnection fees and 
other miscellaneous charges.  Operating expenses include the costs associated with providing water, 
sewerage, and drainage services.  Interest income, interest expense, and tax revenues are presented 
as non-operating items.   

The enterprise fund is presented in the government-wide financial statements. 

Fiduciary Fund Type 

The fiduciary fund is used to account for assets held by the Board in a trustee capacity or as an agent 
for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds.  The Board 
maintains one fiduciary fund type - the pension trust fund.  The pension trust fund uses the flow of 
economic resources measurement focus.  All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of 
this fund are included in the statement of plan net assets. The pension trust fund is used to account 
for the activity of the Board's employee retirement plan, which is a blended component unit of the 
Board as defined by Section 2100 of the GASB Codification. 

The pension trust fund is presented in the fund financial statements. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. Basis of Accounting 

The enterprise fund and the pension trust fund prepare their financial statements on the accrual basis 
of accounting.  Unbilled utility service charges are not recorded as management considers the effect 
of not recording such unbilled receivables as not material.  Property taxes are recorded as revenue 
in the year for which they are levied. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in 
which contributions are due. Employer contributions to the pension plan are recognized when due 
and the employer has made a commitment to provide the contributions.  Benefits and refunds are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

E. Investments 

Investments are recorded at fair value, except for short-term investments (maturity of one year or 
less), which are recorded at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.  Securities traded in a 
national or international exchange are valued at the last recorded sales price at current exchange 
rates. Investments that do not have an established market are recorded at estimated fair value.  
Investment income and expenses, including changes in the fair value of the investments, are 
recognized in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 

F. Inventory of Supplies 

Inventory of supplies is valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the weighted 
average cost method. 

G. Vacation and Sick Pay 

Vacation (annual leave) and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when earned.  Annual leave is accrued 
at the rate of .6923 of a workday for each bi-weekly accrual period for all employees on the payroll 
as of December 31, 1978.  Employees hired after that date earn leave at a rate of .5 of a workday 
per bi-weekly pay period.  

All employees on the payroll as of December 31, 1978 receive three bonus days each year; all 
employees hired after that date receive three bonus days each year for five through nine calendar 
years of continuous service; six bonus days each year for ten through fourteen years; nine bonus 
days each year for fifteen through nineteen years; and, twelve days for twenty or more years of 
continuous service.  Civil Service's policy permits employees a limited amount of earned but unused 
annual leave which will be paid to employees upon separation from the Board.  The amount shall 
not exceed ninety days for employees hired before January 1, 1979, and forty-five days for 
employees hired after December 31, 1978. 

Sick leave is accumulated on a bi-weekly basis by all employees hired prior to December 31, 1978 
at an accrual rate of .923 of a workday.  For employees hired subsequent to December 31, 1978, the 
accrual rate is .5 of a workday for each bi-weekly period, plus a two-day bonus each year for 
employees with six through fifteen calendar years of continuous service, and seven bonus days each 
year for employees with sixteen or more calendar years of continuous service.  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

F. Vacation and Sick Pay (continued) 

Upon separation from the Board, an employee can elect to convert unused sick leave for retirement 
credits or cash.  The conversion to cash is determined by a rate ranging from one day of pay for five 
days of leave for the 1st through 100th leave day to one day of pay for one day of leave for all days 
in excess of the 400th leave day.  The total liability for unconverted sick leave as of December 31, 
2018 and 2017 is approximately $13,258,512 and $12,996,493, respectively.  The amount included 
in the statements of net position as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is $9,693,790 and $8,000,124, 
respectively, which represents the annual leave and the converted sick leave for cash since virtually 
all employees convert their sick leave to cash.  The Board books the compensated absences as a 
long-term liability. The amounts for compensated absences include the salary cost as well as certain 
salary related costs, such as the Board's share of social security expense.  The following table 
summarizes changes in the Board’s vacation and sick pay liability. 

    Current Year     
  Beginning of   Earned and Changes    End of  

Year  Year Liability  in Estimate  Payments  Year Liability 
2018  $           8,000,124 $                   5,711,446  $         (4,017,780) $     9,693,790 
2017  $           9,822,495 $                   1,440,948  $         (3,263,319) $     8,000,124 
   

G. Property, Plant, and Equipment 

Property, plant, and equipment are carried at historical cost.  The Board capitalizes moveable 
equipment with a value of $10,000 or greater, stationary, network, and other equipment with a value 
of $5,000 or greater and all real estate.  The cost of additions includes contracted work, direct labor, 
materials, and allocable cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at their acquisition value at the 
date of donation.   

Interest is capitalized on property, plant, and equipment acquired and/or constructed with tax 
exempt debt. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life 
of the asset. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in revenue 
for the period. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to operations as incurred, and 
significant renewals and betterments are capitalized.  Deductions are made for retirements resulting 
from renewals or betterments.  

H. Self-Insurance/Risk Management 

The Board is self-insured for general liability, workers’ compensation, unemployment 
compensation, and hospitalization benefits and claims.  The accrued liability for the various types 
of claims represents an estimate by management of the eventual loss on the claims arising prior to 
year-end, including claims incurred and not yet recorded including estimates of both future 
payments of losses and related claims adjustment and expense. Estimated expenses and recoveries 
are based on a case by case review.   
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

I. Bond Issuance Costs and Refinancing Gains (Losses) 

Costs related to issuing bonds are expensed when incurred.  Premiums and discounts associated 
with bond issues are amortized over the interest yield method. 

J. Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to future periods 
and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.  The deferred charge 
on refunding recorded on the statements of net position results from the difference in carrying value 
of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter 
of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.  

Deferred inflows and outflows have been recognized for the net difference between the projected 
and actual investment earnings, this amount is deferred and amortized over a period of five years. 
In addition, deferred inflows and outflows have been recognized for the differences between the 
actuarial expectation and the actual economic experience and changes in actuarial assumptions 
related to the defined benefit pension plan and the other post-retirement benefit plan. These amounts 
are deferred and amortized over the average of the expected service lives of pension plan members. 
See Note 8 and Note 9 for additional information on deferred inflows and outflows related to the 
pension plan and the other post-retirement benefits plan, respectively.  

K. Pension

The Board may fund all or part of the accrued pension cost, depending on the resources that are 
available at the time of contribution, for its contributory pension plan which covers substantially all 
employees.  Annual costs are actuarially computed using the entry age normal cost method. 

L. Drainage System  

In 1903, the Legislature gave the Board control of and responsibility for the City's drainage system.  
The Drainage System was established as a department of the enterprise fund to account for the 
revenues from three-mill, six-mill, and nine-mill ad valorem taxes designated exclusively for 
drainage services.  These revenues have been supplemented by inspection and license fees collected 
by the Board. There exists a potential for additional financing by additional user service charges. 
Expenditures from the system are for the debt service of three-mill, six-mill, and nine-mill tax bonds 
and drainage related operation, maintenance, and construction. 

M. Capital Contributions 

Contributions from developers and others, and receipts of Federal, State, and City grants for 
acquisition of property, plant, and equipment are recorded as capital contributions in the statements 
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

N. Net Position Flow Assumption 

Sometimes the Board will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g. restricted 
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources.  In order to calculate the amounts to report as 
restricted net position and unrestricted net position, a flow assumption must be made about the order 
in which the resources are considered to be applied.  The Board’s policy is to consider restricted net 
position to have been depleted before unrestricted-net position is applied. 

O. Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding debt attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds 
at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in this 
component of net position. Rather, that portion of debt is included in the same component of net 
position as the unspent proceeds.  

Restricted – This net position component reports externally imposed constraints placed on their use 
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.

Unrestricted – Unrestricted net position is the balance (deficit) of all other elements in a statement 
of net position remaining after net investment in capital assets and restricted net position. 

P. Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, only cash on hand and on deposit at financial 
institutions is considered to be cash equivalents.  Certificates of deposits, treasury bills, and other 
securities are considered investments. 

Q. Operating and Nonoperating Revenues 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection 
with principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the Board are charges to 
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are recorded as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

R. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the recorded amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as 
of the date of the financial statements and the recorded amounts of revenue and expenditures during 
the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

S. Reclassifications 

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative 
purposes to conform to the presentation in the current-year financial statements. This 
reclassification had no effect on previously reported change in net position. 

2. Cash and Investments 

The Board’s investments and cash consist primarily of investments in direct obligations of the United 
States or agencies thereof and deposits with financial institutions. 

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits – Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, 
the government’s deposits may not be returned to it. Statutes require that the Board’s cash and 
certificates of deposit be covered by federal depository insurance or collateral. At December 31, 2018, 
the Board’s interest bearing deposits with banks consisted of cash and money market funds totaling 
$93,431,241 and certificates of deposit of $275,567.  At December 31, 2017, the Board’s interest 
bearing deposits with banks consisted of cash and money market funds totaling $166,677,175 and 
certificates of deposit of $273,708. The Board's cash bank balances and all certificates of deposit for 
2018 and 2017 were covered by federal depository insurance or collateral held by custodial agents of 
the financial institutions in the name of the Board. 
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2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

The following are the components of the Board's cash and investments as of December 31 for the 
Enterprise Fund: 

 Unrestricted  Restricted  Total 
Cash and money market funds  $       67,541,203  $       66,843,063  $     134,384,266 
Certificates of deposit               275,567  -  $           275,567 

         67,816,770          66,843,063         134,659,833 
Investments - LAMP            3,250,000            2,641,723            5,891,723 
Total cash and investments  $       71,066,770  $       69,484,786  $     140,551,556 

 Unrestricted  Restricted  Total 
Cash and money market funds  $       90,727,883  $     113,695,763  $     204,423,646 
Certificates of deposit               273,708  -               273,708 

         91,001,591         113,695,763         204,697,354 
Investments - LAMP            3,250,000            2,641,723            5,891,723 
Total cash and investments  $       94,251,591  $     116,337,486  $     210,589,077 

2018

2017

A. Fair Value Measurement   

To the extent available, the Board’s investments are recorded at fair value as of December 31, 2018 
and 2017. GASB Statement No. 72 – Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value 
as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. This statement establishes a 
hierarchy of valuation inputs based on the extent to which the inputs are observable in the 
marketplace. Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and take into account the 
assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions. Inputs may include price 
information, credit data, interest and yield curve data, and other factors specific to the financial 
instrument. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources. In contrast, 
unobservable inputs reflect the entity’s assumptions about how market participants would value the 
financial instrument. Valuation techniques should maximize the use of observable inputs to the 
extent available.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following describes the hierarchy of 
inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation methodologies used for financial 
instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 
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2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

A. Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

Investments - Statutes authorize the Board to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, 
and instrumentalities, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poors Corporation or P-1 by 
Moody's Commercial Paper Record, repurchase agreements, and the Louisiana Asset Management 
Pool (LAMP).  In addition, the pension trust fund is authorized to invest in corporate bonds rated 
BBB or better by Standard & Poors Corporation or Baa or better by Moody's Investors Service and 
equity securities. 

A summary of the Board’s investments, including the Pension Trust Fund, along with the Fair value 
hierarchy levels of each type of investment as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

Total

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets 
(Level 1 Inputs)

Significant Other 
Observable 

Inputs (Level 2 
Inputs)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3 
Inputs)

Investment by Fair Value Level:
Equities 106,411,756$     106,411,756$     -$                  -$                  
Debt Securities 79,846,858                             -   79,846,858         
Hedge Funds 16,979,004                             -   16,979,004         

Total Investments at 
   Fair Value Level 203,237,618$     106,411,756$     96,825,862$       -$                  

Investment measured at the
net asset value (NAV):

Money market funds 70,106,275$       
LAMP 18,107,439         
Certificate of Deposit 275,567             

Total Investments at NAV 88,489,281$       

Total Investments at Fair Value 291,726,899$     

2018

II-37



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

_______________________________________________________________________
2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

A. Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

Total

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets 
(Level 1 Inputs)

Significant Other 
Observable 

Inputs (Level 2 
Inputs)

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3 
Inputs)

Investment by Fair Value Level:
Equities 119,549,027$     119,549,027$     -$                  -$                  
Debt Securities 81,607,684                             -   81,607,684         
Hedge Funds 20,968,656                             -   20,968,656         

Total Investments at 
   Fair Value Level 222,125,367$     119,549,027$     102,576,340$     -$                  

Investment measured at the
net asset value (NAV):

Money market funds 165,542,957$     
LAMP 17,502,620         
Certificate of Deposit 273,708             

Total Investments at NAV 183,319,285$     

Total Investments at Fair Value 405,444,652$     

2017

Money market funds, LAMP, and certificate of deposit are measured using NAV as a practical 
expedient. These investments have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy table.  The fair 
value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value 
hierarchy to the line items presented in the statement of net assets available for benefits. 

A reconciliation of the enterprise and pension funds to the total investments at December 31, 2018 
and 2017 is as follows: 

 Enterprise  Pension  Total 
Money market 68,423,413$       1,682,862$         70,106,275$       
LAMP 5,891,723           12,215,716         18,107,439
Certificate of deposit 275,567             -                    275,567
Other investments -                    203,237,618 203,237,618
Total cash and investments 74,590,703$ 217,136,196$     291,726,899$     

2018
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2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

A. Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

A reconciliation of the enterprise and pension funds to the total investments at December 31, 2017 
is as follows: 

 Enterprise  Pension  Total 
Money market 164,567,364$     975,593$           165,542,957$     
LAMP 5,891,723           11,610,897         17,502,620
Certificate of deposit 273,708             -                    273,708
Other investments -                    222,125,367 222,125,367
Total cash and investments 170,732,795$ 234,711,857$     405,444,652$     

2017

Pension trust fund is held in trust and governed pursuant to an indenture between the trustee 
financial institution and the Board. 

B. Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) 

LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana.  Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have 
an investment interest in its pool of assets.  The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe 
environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments.  The LAMP 
portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are 
authorized to invest in accordance with Louisiana R.S. 33:2955.   

GASB Statement No. 40 Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, requires disclosure of credit risk, 
custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk for all 
public entity investments. 

LAMP is an investment pool that, to the extent practical, invests in a manner consistent with GASB 
Statement No. 79. The following facts are relevant for investment pools: 

Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 
Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of 
the pool.  Investments in pools should be disclosed but not categorized because they are not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The public entity's investment 
is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required. 
Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent disclosure 
requirement.  
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2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

B. Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) (continued) 

Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access 
to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disclosure using the 
weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to not 
more than 60 days and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The 
WAM for LAMP's total investments is 89 as of December 31, 2018. 
Foreign currency risk: Not applicable. 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis 
by LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net asset 
value of the pool shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. 
LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. 

C. Credit and Interest Risk 

Credit Risk - State law limits investments in securities issued, or backed by United States Treasury 
obligations, and U.S. Government instrumentalities, which are federally sponsored.  The Board’s 
investment policy does not further limit its investment choices.  LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard 
& Poor’s.  The Pension Trust Fund’s investment policy requires that fixed income investments be 
investment grade (BBB or higher as rated by Standard & Poor’s or Baa or higher as rated by 
Moody’s).  Bonds rated below BBB/Baa are not to exceed 15% of the portfolio, and non-rated 
bonds are not to exceed 1% of the portfolio. 

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment.  In general, the longer the maturity of an investment, the 
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.  The Board has a formal 
investment policy that states that the investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet 
all operating and capital requirements that may be reasonably anticipated and that maturities of 
investments are to be structured concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demand. 

Foreign Currency Risk – The Pension Trust Fund’s exposure to foreign currency risk derives from 
its positions in foreign currency-denominated fixed-income investments. The Pension Trust Fund's 
investment policy permits it to invest up to 5 percent of total investments in foreign currency-
denominated fixed-income investments. The Pension Trust Fund's current position is 2.0 percent. 
The investments in foreign currency-denominated corporate bonds were rated by Standard & Poor's. 
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2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

C. Credit and Interest Risk (continued) 

Following are the credit risk ratings of the Pension Trust Fund’s investments in debt securities as 
of December 31, 2018: 

Rating  Corporate Bonds 
 Foreign 

Government Bonds 

 Government 
Bonds and U.S. 
Treasury Notes  Other  Total 

 Percentage 
of Total 

AAA -$                        77,436$                 29,680,165$        19,836,544$  49,594,145$      62.11%
AA+ -                          -                            -                           4,568             4,568                 0.01%
AA 52,304                214,378                 -                           73,752           340,434             0.43%
AA- 832,954              17,339                   -                           13,810           864,103             1.08%
A+ 1,238,783           -                            70,087                 -                     1,308,870          1.64%
A 3,063,443           -                            31,900                 401,221         3,496,564          4.38%
A- 4,433,541           102,295                 -                           145,759         4,681,595          5.86%
BBB+ 2,646,483           1,782,272              -                           129,144         4,557,899          5.71%
BBB 3,738,728           105,312                 -                           164,878         4,008,918          5.02%
BBB- 3,945,209           101,140                 17,006                 709,902         4,773,257          5.98%
BB+ 815,168              52,055                   -                           160,445         1,027,668          1.29%
BB 724,745              559,172                 10,840                 171,100         1,465,857          1.84%
BB- 513,814              142,769                 -                           155,164         811,747             1.02%
B+ 336,640              184,666                 -                           61,441           582,747             0.73%
B 432,304              571,415                 -                           206,084         1,209,803          1.52%
B- 265,336              349,440                 -                           194,628 809,404             1.01%
CCC+ 79,931                -                            -                           2,888             82,819               0.10%
CCC 42,516                118                        -                           17,260           59,894               0.08%
CCC- -                          -                            -                           -                     -                         0.00%
CC -                          233                        -                           -                     233                    0.00%
C -                          -                            -                           37,849           37,849               0.05%
Not Rated 128,484              -                            -                           -                     128,484             0.16%

Total  $       23,290,383  $           4,260,040  $        29,809,998  $  22,486,437  $      79,846,858 100.00%
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2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

C. Credit and Interest Risk (continued) 

Following are the credit risk ratings of the Pension Trust Fund’s investments in debt securities as 
of December 31, 2017: 

Rating  Corporate Bonds 
 Foreign 

Government Bonds 

 Government 
Bonds and U.S. 
Treasury Notes  Other  Total 

 Percentage 
of Total 

AAA -$                        3,972$                   42,361,399$        4,119,108$     $    46,484,479 56.96%
AA+ -                          -                            -                           2,941,468               2,941,468 3.60%
AA 70,751                24,515                   -                           85,784                       181,050 0.22%
AA- 271,697              -                            268,882               28,352                       568,931 0.70%
A+ 902,153              102,119                 -                           60,441                    1,064,713 1.30%
A 4,238,695           39,467                   -                           189,587                  4,467,749 5.47%
A- 3,970,964           55,935                   -                           136,085                  4,162,984 5.10%
BBB+ 3,274,255           1,551,202              93,272                 85,519                    5,004,248 6.13%
BBB 3,877,270           162,662                 764,000               182,689                  4,986,621 6.11%
BBB- 4,154,975           130,372                 -                           643,716                  4,929,063 6.04%
BB+ 1,293,997           141,649                 -                           82,703                    1,518,349 1.86%
BB 565,246              724,579                 -                           136,414                  1,426,239 1.75%
BB- 788,982              116,821                 -                           135,962                  1,041,765 1.28%
B+ 608,821              318,374                 -                           12,534                       939,729 1.15%
B 510,817              197,479                 -                           141,002                     849,298 1.04%
B- 259,496              294,479                 -                           110,154                     664,129 0.81%
CCC+ 108,203              3,602                     -                           26,581                       138,386 0.17%
CCC 128,426              10,203                   -                           45,857                       184,486 0.23%
CCC- -                          7,805                     -                           7,423                         15,228 0.02%
CC -                          7,120                     -                           7,330                           14,450 0.02%
Not Rated -                          -                            -                           24,319                         24,319 0.03%

Total  $       25,024,748  $           3,892,355  $        43,487,553  $    9,203,028  $    81,607,684 100%
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2. Cash and Investments (continued) 

D. Pension Trust Fund Investments  

As of December 31, 2018, the Pension Trust Fund had the following investments in debt securities 
and maturities: 

Investment Type
 Less than 1 

Year  1 - 5 Years  6 - 10 Years 
 Greater Than 

10 Years 
 Duration Not 

Available  Total 

Corporate Bonds 757,368$      10,462,955$ 8,523,696$ 3,518,539$   972$              $ 23,263,530 
Foreign Government

Bonds 322,621        2,374,111 820,195 743,113        -                      4,260,040 
Government Bonds 

and U.S. Treasury 
Notes 123,736        17,338,937 7,301,201 5,046,124     -                    29,809,998 

Other 1,406,747 11,745,698 9,275,301 -                85,544              22,513,290 

Total  $   2,610,472 $ 41,921,701 $ 25,920,393 $   9,307,776  $        86,516 $ 79,846,858 

 Duration 

As of December 31, 2017, the Pension Trust Fund had the following investments in debt securities 
and maturities: 

Investment Type
 Less than 1 

Year  1 - 5 Years  6 - 10 Years 
 Greater Than 

10 Years 
 Duration Not 

Available  Total 

Corporate Bonds 2,315,819$    11,068,192$  9,009,756$    2,535,874$    95,107$         $ 25,024,748 
Foreign Government

Bonds 125,426        1,502,993      992,511        1,172,130      99,295                3,892,355 
Government Bonds 

and U.S. Treasury 
Notes 884,858        28,907,286    10,309,032    3,386,377      -                   43,487,553 

Other 3,992,328      2,215,261      705,127        2,228,621      61,691                9,203,028 

Total  $   7,318,431  $ 43,693,732  $ 21,016,426  $   9,323,002  $      256,093  $ 81,607,684 

 Duration 

E. Security Lending 

Under the provisions of its benefit plan and state law, the Board’s pension benefit trust engages in 
securities lending to broker dealers and other entities for cash collateral that will be returned for the 
same securities in the future. The cash collateral cannot be liquidated by the Board unless the 
borrower defaults.  Cash collateral is initially pledged at 102.73% of the market value of securities 
lent and additional collateral is provided by the next business day if the value falls to less than 100% 
of the market value of the securities lent.  No collateral exposure existed at December 31, 2018 and 
2017.  The value of securities lent at December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $38,867,570 and 
$31,264,473, respectively.  The market value of the cash collateral at December 31, 2018 and 2017 
was $39,740,372 and $32,001,957, respectively.  
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3. Customer Receivables 

Customer receivables as of December 31 consist of the following: 

Customer 
Accounts

Allowance
for Doubtful

Accounts Net
Water  $       38,104,851  $       18,184,910  $       19,919,941 
Sewer 40,847,768 20,384,047 20,463,721

 $       78,952,619  $       38,568,957  $       40,383,662 

Customer 
Accounts

Allowance
for Doubtful

Accounts Net
Water  $       25,764,357  $       11,867,730  $       13,896,627 
Sewer 26,340,384 8,970,383 17,370,001

 $       52,104,741  $       20,838,113  $       31,266,628 

2018

2017

4. Property, Plant, and Equipment 

The useful lives of property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following: 

Power and pumping stations - buildings 57 years 
Power and pumping stations - machinery 40 years 

                         Distribution systems 75 years 
 Sewerage collection 75 years 
 Canals and subsurface drains 75 to 100 years 

Treatment plants 50 years 
Connections and meters 50 years 
Power transmission 50 years 
General plant 12 years 
General buildings 25 years 
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4. Property, Plant and, Equipment (continued) 

Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31: 

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Reclassifications Balance

Cost
Real estate rights, non depreciable 13,633,314$       154,243$           -$                  13,787,557$       
Power and pumping stations - buildings 392,628,067     3,975,631         -                   396,603,698      
Power and pumping stations - machinery 352,957,605       13,815,272         -                    366,772,877       
Distribution systems 318,178,664       46,768,402         (2,664,244)         362,282,822       
Sewerage collection 616,199,180       129,175,333       (2,679,099)         742,695,414       
Canals and subsurface drainage 894,121,872     22,688,678       -                   916,810,550      
Treatment plants 206,081,699       995,748             -                    207,077,447       
Connections and meters 105,461,284       1,611,336           (158,155)            106,914,465       
Power transmission 36,491,223       870,406           -                   37,361,629        
General plant and buildings 311,898,675     22,081,238       (443,619)           333,536,294      

Total property, plant, and equipment in 
service 3,247,651,583     242,136,287       (5,945,117)         3,483,842,753     

Construction in progress 748,072,327     253,270,472     (242,136,287)    759,206,512      
Total property, plant, and equipment 3,995,723,910     495,406,759       (248,081,404)      4,243,049,265     

Accumulated Depreciation
Power and pumping stations - buildings 152,824,897     6,940,565         -                   159,765,462      
Power and pumping stations - machinery 186,124,471       9,168,242           -                    195,292,713       
Distribution systems 55,009,815         4,947,305           (2,664,244)         57,292,876         
Sewerage collection 66,080,583       10,379,263       (2,679,097)       73,780,749        
Canals and subsurface drainage 102,067,331     9,304,163         -                   111,371,494      
Treatment plants 76,756,379         4,141,549           -                    80,897,928         
Connections and meters 40,212,101         2,138,289       (158,155)            42,192,235         
Power transmission 17,028,057       731,797           -                   17,759,854        
General plant and buildings 280,527,479       15,750,017         (443,619)            295,833,877       

Total accumulated depreciation 976,631,113       63,501,190         (5,945,115)         1,034,187,188     

Net property, plant, and equipment 3,019,092,797$   431,905,569$     (242,136,289)$    3,208,862,077$

2018
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4. Property, Plant, and Equipment (continued) 

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Reclassifications Balance

Cost
Real estate rights, non depreciable 13,547,277$       86,037$             -$                  13,633,314$       
Power and pumping stations - buildings 379,432,414       13,195,653         -                    392,628,067       
Power and pumping stations - machinery 322,649,434       30,308,171         -                    352,957,605       
Distribution systems 270,088,600       50,786,128         (2,696,064)         318,178,664       
Sewerage collection 519,874,279       99,555,275         (3,230,374)         616,199,180       
Canals and subsurface drainage 705,506,297       188,615,575       -                    894,121,872       
Treatment plants 200,711,986       5,369,713           -                    206,081,699       
Connections and meters 100,243,678       5,492,216           (274,610)            105,461,284       
Power transmission 31,817,948         4,673,275           -                    36,491,223         
General plant and buildings 284,595,466       28,465,281         (1,162,072)         311,898,675       

Total property, plant, and equipment in 
service 2,828,467,379     426,547,324       (7,363,120)         3,247,651,583     

Construction in progress 840,768,438       333,851,213       (426,547,324)      748,072,327       
Total property, plant, and equipment 3,669,235,817     760,398,537       (433,910,444)      3,995,723,910     

Accumulated Depreciation
Power and pumping stations - buildings 145,953,194       6,871,703           -                    152,824,897       
Power and pumping stations - machinery 177,301,655       8,822,816           -                    186,124,471       
Distribution systems 53,474,103         4,231,776           (2,696,064)         55,009,815         
Sewerage collection 61,115,508         8,195,449           (3,230,374)         66,080,583         
Canals and subsurface drainage 93,086,279         8,981,052           -                    102,067,331       
Treatment plants 72,634,745         4,121,634           -                    76,756,379         
Connections and meters 38,531,995         1,954,716           (274,610)          40,212,101         
Power transmission 16,319,111         708,946             -                    17,028,057         
General plant and buildings 266,127,567       15,561,984         (1,162,072)         280,527,479       

Total accumulated depreciation 924,544,157       59,450,076         (7,363,120)         976,631,113       

Net property, plant, and equipment 2,744,691,660$   700,948,461$     (426,547,324)$    3,019,092,797$

2017

Interest capitalized was as follows for the years ended December 31: 

2018 2017
Interest income 2,955,770$         3,487,177$         
Interest expense (23,685,923)        (24,951,780)
Net interest capitalized (20,730,153)$ (21,464,603)$      

5. Due to City of New Orleans 

The Board bills and collects sanitation charges on behalf of the City of New Orleans (the City). The 
Board is not liable for any uncollected sanitation charges.  Additionally, amounts included in accounts 
payable due to the City for works performed by the Department of Public Works on behalf of the Board, 
were $5,988,758 and $706,646 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.   
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6. Long-Term Obligations 

A. Bonds Payable 

Bonds payable consisted of the following as of December 31: 

2018 2017

0.45% sewerage service subordinate revenue bonds, 
series 2011 (initial average interest cost 0.95%); due 
in annual principal installments ranging from $411,000 
to $491,000; final payment due December 1, 2032. 6,475,000           6,906,000           

2.00% to 4.00% drainage system limited tax bonds,
series 2014 (initial average interest cost 1.88%); due
in annual principal installments ranging from $535,000
to $2,000,000; final payment due December 1, 2022. 7,665,000           9,410,000           

2.00% to 5.00% sewerage service revenue bonds,
series 2014 (initial average interest cost 3.86%); due
in annual principal installments ranging from
$1,970,000 to $12,970,000; final payment due June 1,
2044. 110,440,000       122,365,000       

5.00% water revenue bonds, series 2014 (initial 
average interest cost 4.43%); due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $325,000 to $6,225,000; 
final payment due December 1, 2044. 98,000,000         100,660,000       

4.98% water revenue bonds, series 2015 (initial 
average interest cost 4.38%); due in annual principal 
installments ranging from $325,000 to $6,225,000; 
final payment due December 1, 2045. 99,300,000         100,000,000       

5.00%  sewerage service revenue bonds, series 2015 
(initial average interest cost 4.39%); due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $325,000 to 
$6,225,000; final payment due December 1, 2045. 100,000,000       100,000,000       

421,880,000       439,341,000       
     Plus: bond premiums 37,717,050         40,285,497         
     Total 459,597,050       479,626,497       
     Less: current maturities (16,900,000)        (17,461,000)        
     Bond payable, long-term 442,697,050$     462,165,497$     

Principal Balances
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6. Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

A. Bonds Payable (continued) 

 The changes in long-term debt were as follows: 

2018 2017
Balance, beginning of year 439,341,000$     456,968,000$     
Payments (17,461,000)        (17,627,000)        
Balance, end of year 421,880,000$     439,341,000$     

The annual requirements to amortize bonds payable as of December 31, 2018, are as follows:  

Year  Principal  Interest  Total 
2019 16,900,000$       20,203,929$       37,103,929$       
2020 17,819,000         19,389,996         37,208,996         
2021 17,453,000         18,581,121         36,034,121         
2022 16,087,000         17,836,752         33,923,752         
2023 10,756,000         17,215,265         27,971,265         

2024-2028 51,212,000         78,779,854         129,991,854       
2029-2033 62,473,000         65,674,090         128,147,090       
2034-2038 79,380,000         48,788,613         128,168,613       
2039-2043 101,595,000       26,574,250         128,169,250       
2044-2045 48,205,000         3,066,125           51,271,125         

421,880,000$     316,109,995$     737,989,995$     
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6. Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

A. Bonds Payable (continued) 

The annual requirements to pay principal revenue bonds and tax bonds payable as of December 31, 
2018, are as follows: 

Year  Revenue Bonds  Tax Bonds  Total 
2019 15,085,000$       1,815,000$         16,900,000$       
2020 15,924,000         1,895,000           17,819,000         
2021 15,498,000         1,955,000           17,453,000         
2022 14,087,000         2,000,000           16,087,000         
2023 10,756,000         - 10,756,000         

2024-2028 51,212,000                       - 51,212,000         
2029-2033 62,473,000                           - 62,473,000         
2034-2038 79,380,000         - 79,380,000         
2039-2043 101,595,000       - 101,595,000       
2044-2045 48,205,000         - 48,205,000         

414,215,000$     7,665,000$         421,880,000$     

The indentures under which these bonds were issued provide for the establishment of restricted 
funds for debt service as follows: 

1. Debt service funds are required for the payment of interest and principal on the revenue and tax 
bonds.  Monthly deposits on revenue bonds, excluding bond anticipation notes, are required to 
be made into this fund from operations in an amount equal to 1/6 of the interest falling due on 
the next interest payment date, and an amount equal to 1/12 of the principal falling due on the 
next principal payment date.  All debt service funds are administered by the Board of 
Liquidation.  The required amount to be accumulated in this fund was $27,634,803 and 
$28,198,557 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively; the accumulated balance at 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $27,634,803 and $28,198,557 respectively.

2. The water bonds require an amount equal to the largest amount required in any future calendar 
year to pay the principal of and interest on outstanding bonds. The sewer bonds require an 
amount equal to 125% of average aggregate debt service. The amounts required to be 
accumulated in this fund were $18,407,782 at December 31, 2018 and 2017; the accumulated 
balance at December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $18,407,782. 

Operating revenues, net of operating expenses, are pledged as security for all revenue bond issues. 
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6. Long-term Obligations (continued) 

B. Sewerage Service Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 

The City entered into an agreement with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality 
(LDEQ) whereby the LDEQ has committed to loan the Board $9,000,000 to fund sewer main 
replacements, point repairs, replacement of associated service connections and laterals, sewer line 
rehabilitation by cured in-place pipe lining and manhole rehabilitation.  The loan is to be advanced 
in incremental amounts as project costs are incurred. The indebtedness to the LDEQ will be 
evidenced through the Sewerage Service Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series 2011. Upon issuance 
of subsequent bonds, the indebtedness was to spring from subordinate to a senior lien status.  That 
conversion took place with the issuance of the Series 2014 bonds. Annual principal payments are 
due beginning November 1, 2013 continuing through December 1, 2032.  Interest on the bonds is 
incurred at the rate of 0.45%, and the LDEQ administrative fee rate is 0.5%. Interest and 
administrative fee payments began on May 1, 2012 and are due semi-annually thereafter.  As of 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, $6,475,000 and $6,906,000 is included as bonds payable, 
respectively. 

C. Series 2014 Bonds 

During 2014, the Board refunded the Series 1997, 1998, 2000, 2000B, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, and 
2009 Sewerage bonds. The Board issued $158,990,000 in Series 2014 Sewerage Service Revenue 
and Refunding Bonds with a final maturity of June 1, 2044. The bond proceeds, less issuance costs, 
and investments were used to refund the outstanding principle balance of the sewerage bonds in the 
amount of $121,870,000.  By refunding these bonds, the Board estimated $20,696,313 in future 
savings related to future interest and principal payments.  The Board estimated an economic gain 
of approximately $18,397,306.  The cost of issuance of the Series 2014 Sewerage Bonds totaled 
$1,345,380, and the deferred loss on refunding was $4,708,925.  Bond proceeds of $47,300,000 
were restricted for capital projects.  

During 2014, the Board refunded the Series 1998 and 2002 Water Bonds. The Board issued 
$103,525,000 in Series 2014 Water Revenue and Refunding Bonds with a final maturity of 
December 1, 2044. The bond proceeds, less issuance costs, and investments were used to refund 
the outstanding principle balance of the Water Bonds in the amount of $27,655,000.  By refunding 
these bonds, the Board estimated $1,359,352 in future savings related to future interest and 
principal payments.  The Board estimated an economic gain of approximately $2,738,262.  The 
cost of issuance of the Series 2014 Water Bonds totaled $1,040,131 and the deferred loss on 
refunding was $34,901.  Bond proceeds of $77,000,000 were restricted for capital projects. 

During 2014, the Board refunded the Series 1998 and 2002 Drainage Bonds. The Board issued 
$14,900,000 in Series 2014 Drainage Refunding Bonds with a final maturity of December 1, 2022. 
The bond proceeds, less issuance costs, and investments were used to refund the outstanding 
principle balance of the Drainage Bonds in the amount of $16,205,000.  By refunding these bonds, 
the Board estimated $2,968,676 in future savings related to future interest and principal payments.  
The Board estimated an economic gain of approximately $2,846,558.  The cost of issuance of the 
Series 2014 Drainage Refunding Bonds totaled $263,828, and the deferred loss on refunding was 
$347,533. 
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6. Long-term Obligations (continued) 

D. Series 2015 Bonds 

During 2015, the Board issued $100,000,000 in Series 2015 Water Revenue Bonds with an original 
issue premium of $12,686,122 and a final maturity of December 1, 2045. In addition, the Board 
issued $100,000,000 in Series 2015 Sewerage Revenue Bonds with an original issue premium of 
$12,826,410 and a final maturity date of December 1, 2045. Proceeds from such bonds were used 
to finance capital improvements. 

E. Debt Service Assistance 

In July 2006, the Board and the State of Louisiana (the State) entered into a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement whereby the State agreed to lend up to $77,465,247 from State funds on deposit in the 
Debt Service Assistance Fund, authorized by the Gulf Opportunity Zone Act of 2005 and Act 41 of 
the First Extraordinary Session of the Louisiana Legislature of 2006, to assist in payment of debt 
service requirements from 2006 through 2008 due to disruption of tax bases and revenue streams 
caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.  Draw downs on the loan were made as debt service 
payments became due.  No principal or interest was payable during the initial five-year period of 
the loan.  After the expiration of the initial five-year period, the loan shall bear interest at a fixed 
rate of 4.64 percent.  Principal payments on the bonds began in July 2012, and the loan will mature 
in July 2026.  Interest is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 beginning January 2012.  
The loan may be prepaid without penalty or premium. 

As of December 31, 2018, debt service requirements relating to the bonds are as follows: 

Year  Principal  Interest  Total 
2019  $        5,067,022  $        2,216,164  $        7,283,186 
2020            5,301,601            1,981,078            7,282,679 
2021            5,547,595            1,735,083            7,282,678 
2022            5,805,003            1,477,675            7,282,678 
2023            6,074,355            1,208,323            7,282,678 

2024-2026          19,961,333            1,880,950          21,842,283 
 $      47,756,909  $      10,499,273  $      58,256,182 
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6. Long-term Obligations (continued) 

F. Southeast Louisiana Project 

In 2010, the Coastal Protection and Restoration Authority of Louisiana entered into agreements 
(SELA PPA and SELA DPA) with the Department of the Army for the Southeast Louisiana, 
Louisiana Project in Jefferson and Orleans Parishes (the Project).  The purpose of the Project is to 
provide flood damage reduction and interior drainage for Orleans and Jefferson Parishes in 
southeast Louisiana.  The agreements set forth the obligations of the federal government and non-
federal sponsors, including the Board, regarding the construction and the operation, maintenance, 
repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of the Project.  For the projects, the federal government is 
responsible for 65% of the project costs and the non-federal sponsors are responsible for the 
remaining 35%.   

Under the agreement, the Department of the Army, subject to the availability of funds appropriated 
by the Congress of the United States, shall design and construct specified work at 100% federal 
expense.  The Board will be allowed to defer payment of its required non-federal contribution of 
funds of 35% and to pay said contribution of funds with interest over a period of not more than 30 
years from the date of completion of the project or separable element of the project.  The interest 
rate to be used in computing the interest shall be determined by the Secretary of the Treasury, taking 
into consideration average market yields on outstanding marketable obligations of the United States 
with remaining periods of maturity comparable to the payment period during the month preceding 
the Government fiscal year in which the first federal construction contract for such separable 
element is awarded to the SELA PPA, plus a premium of one-eighth of one percentage point for 
transaction costs. The amount due, including accrued interest, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 
is $227,139,545 and $201,926,585, respectively. Total amount due is expected to increase through 
October 2021, estimated project completion date. 

At December 31, 2018, the Board is responsible for 35% of construction costs incurred for the 
Project that consists of 16 contracts, grouped in 5 basins. Expected project completion date, 
payment start date, as well as interest rate for each basin are as follows: 

Basin
Expected 

Completion Date  Payment Start Date  Interest Rate 
OP-2  October 2021  February 2022  3.000% 
OP-3  April 2019  August 2019  4.375% 
OP-4  August 2020  August 2020  4.375% 
OP-5  March 2020  April 2020  3.000% 
OP-6  March 2020  April 2020  3.500% 

During 2012 through 2018, the Board accrued approximately $26.5 million of interest on 
construction costs incurred to date. Final amount due for each basin will be determined by the 
Department of Army upon project completion.  
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6. Long-term Obligations (continued) 

F. Southeast Louisiana Project (continued) 

As of December 31, 2018, projected debt service requirements relating to the total amount due are 
as follows: 

Year  Principal  Interest  Total 
2019 (189,044)$          1,178,236$         989,192$           
2020 (1,483,327)         6,099,521           4,616,194           
2021 1,664,751           2,951,443           4,616,194           
2022 (8,289,455)         21,560,846         13,271,391         
2023 5,539,932           7,731,459           13,271,391         

2024 - 2028 30,343,384         36,013,569         66,356,953         
2029 - 2033 35,293,932         31,063,022         66,356,954         
2034 - 2038 41,089,015         25,267,939         66,356,954         
2039 - 2043 47,875,397         18,481,557         66,356,954         
2044 - 2048 55,825,934         10,531,020         66,356,954         
2049- 2050 19,469,026         846,943             20,315,969         

227,139,545$     161,725,555$     388,865,100$     

*Note: Future payments are first applied toward interest accrued to-date since inception, resulting 
negative principal payments in year 2019, 2020, and 2022. 

7. Defined Benefit Pension Plan  

A. Plan Descriptions 

The Board has a single-employer contributory retirement plan covering all full-time employees, 
the Pension Trust Fund (PTF).  The Board's payroll for current employees covered by the PTF for 
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $50,679,697 and $41,822,648, respectively; such 
amounts exclude overtime and standby payroll.  At December 31, the PTF membership consisted 
of:

2018 2017 
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and 
  terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet 
  receiving them       1,034 892
Current employees:  1,210  1,083
    Total        2,244  1,975
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7. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

A. Plan Descriptions (continued) 

Benefits Provided 

The benefit provisions were established by action of the Board in 1956 in accordance with Louisiana 
statutes. The Board retains exclusive control over the plan through the Pension Committee of the 
Board.  Effective January 1, 1996, the plan became qualified under Internal Revenue Code Section 
401(a) and thus is tax exempt. 

The plan provides for retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.  All benefits vest 
after five years of service.  Employees who retire at or after age 65 with ten years of credited service 
are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable biweekly for life, in an amount equal to two 
percent of their average compensation for each year of credited service up to ten years, increasing 
by (1) one-half percent per year for service years over ten years, (2) an additional one-half percent 
per year for service years over twenty years and (3) an additional one percent per year for service 
years over thirty years, for a maximum of four percent for each year of credited service. Average 
compensation is the average annual earned compensation (prior to 2002, less $1,200) for the period 
of 36 successive months of service during which the employee's compensation was the highest. 
Employees with thirty years or more of credited service may retire without a reduction in benefits. 
Employees may retire prior to age 62 without 30 years of service with a reduction in benefits of 
three percent for each year of age below the age of 62.  If an employee leaves covered employment 
or dies before three years of credited service, the accumulated employee contributions plus related 
investment earnings are refunded to the employee or designated beneficiary.  

The retirement allowance for retirees over age 65 is subject to a cost of living adjustment each 
January 1, provided that the member retired on or after January 1, 1984.  The adjustment is based 
on the increase in the Consumer Price Index for all urban wage earners published by the U.S. 
Department of Labor but is limited to an annual maximum of two percent on the first $10,000 of 
initial retirement benefits.

Effective September 23, 1993, employers may transfer credit between the Board's plan and the City 
of New Orleans’ retirement system with full credit for vested service.  The Board and its employees 
are obligated under plan provisions to make all required contributions to the plan.  The required 
contributions are actuarially determined.  Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates 
is determined using the entry age normal actuarial funding method.  Employees are required to 
contribute four percent of their regular salaries or wages. 
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7. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

A. Plan Descriptions (continued) 

Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) 

Beginning in 1996, the Board offered employees a “Deferred Retirement Option Plan” (DROP), an 
optional retirement program which allows an employee to elect to freeze his or her retirement 
benefits but continue to work and draw a salary for a minimum period of one year to a maximum 
period of five years.  While continuing employment, the retirement benefits are segregated from 
overall plan assets available to other participants.  As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, 116 and 116 
employees, respectively, participated in the plan.  The amount of plan assets segregated for these 
individuals was $9,774,961 and $9,294,547 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

B. Funding Policy 

The actuary determined contribution requirement for the Board was 20.170% and 31.175% for 2018 
and 2017.  The contribution requirement for employees for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 
2017 was 6.0%. The actual Board’s and employees’ contributions (including contributions for 
transferred employees from other pension plans) for the years ended December 31 were as follows: 

2018 2017
Employer and other transfers 8,651,896$         9,655,509$         
Employee 2,535,027           2,139,705           
Total contributions 11,186,923$       11,795,214$       

C. Net Pension Liability 

The Board’s Net Pension Liability was measured as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. The Total 
Pension Liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined as of that date. 

D. Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018 and 
2017, using the following actuarial assumptions:   

2018 2017
Investment rate of return 7.00% 7.00%
Inflation 2.50% 2.00%
Salary increases including inflation 5.00% 5.00%
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7. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

D. Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by an asset allocation percentage which is based on the nature 
and mix of current and expected plan investments and by adding expected inflation.  Best estimates 
of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Pension Trust Fund’s 
current and expected asset allocation as of December 31, 2018 are summarized in the following 
table:

Long-Term Expected 
Asset Class Real Rate of Return 

Equities  8.5% 
Fixed Income  6.5% 

Alternative  7.0% 
Cash and Equivalents  --

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7% for the 2018 and 2017 plan 
years.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions 
from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that the plan’s contributions 
will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and 
the member rate.  Based on those assumptions, the PTF’s fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.   

Investment Rate of Return 

The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, 
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.  For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 
2017, the annual money-weighted rates of return on pension plan investments, net of pension plan 
investment expenses, were -3.31% and 10.52%, respectively.  
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7. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

E. Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Change in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the Board as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
calculated using the discount rate of 7%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6%) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (8%) than the current rate. 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase

6% 7% 8%
December 31, 2018
Total pension liability  $     372,533,875  $     339,153,248  $     310,824,053 
Fiduciary net position         215,279,783         215,279,783         215,279,783 
Net pension liability         157,254,092         123,873,465          95,544,270 

December 31, 2017
Total pension liability  $     347,528,250  $     318,218,035  $     296,691,527 
Fiduciary net position         235,284,317         235,284,317         235,284,317 
Net pension liability         112,243,933          82,933,718          61,407,210 
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F. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

Total Pension 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Net Pension 
Liability

(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances at 318,218,035$     235,284,317$     82,933,718$       

December 31, 2017
Changes for the year:

Service cost 4,354,989           -                    4,354,989           
Interest 21,763,800         -                    21,763,800
Difference between expected 

and actual experience (5,689,086)         -                    (5,689,086)
Changes of assumptions 23,596,233         -                    23,596,233
Contributions – employer -                    8,419,441           (8,419,441)
Contributions – employee -                    2,535,027           (2,535,027)
Contributions – fines -                    -                    -                    
Net investment income -                    (7,868,279)         7,868,279           
Benefit payments, including 

refunds of employee 
contributions (23,323,178)        (23,323,178)        -                    

Other 232,455             232,455             -                    
Administrative expense -                    -                    -                    

Net changes 20,935,213         (20,004,534) 40,939,747
Balances at 

December 31, 2018 339,153,248$ 215,279,783$ 123,873,465$     
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7. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

F. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 

Total Pension 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Net Pension 
Liability

(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances at 305,105,919$     224,356,261$     80,749,658$       

December 31, 2016
Changes for the year:

Service cost 3,797,316           -                    3,797,316           
Interest 21,357,414         -                    21,357,414         
Difference between expected 

and actual experience 9,734,775           -                    9,734,775           
Changes of assumptions -                    -                    -                    
Contributions – employer -                    7,239,467           (7,239,467)         
Contributions – employee -                    2,139,705           (2,139,705)         
Contributions – fines -                    -                    -                    
Net investment income -                    23,326,273         (23,326,273)        
Benefit payments, including 

refunds of employee 
contributions (24,193,431)        (24,193,431)        -                    

Other 2,416,042           2,416,042           -                    
Administrative expense -                    -                    -                    

Net changes 13,112,116         10,928,056         2,184,060           
Balances at 

December 31, 2017 318,218,035$     235,284,317$     82,933,718$       

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Board recognizes a pension expense of 
$21,377,012 and $9,882,526, respectively, in payroll related expense on the statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position. 
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F. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 

On December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Board recorded Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of 
Resources

December 31, 2018
Differences between expected and actual experience 8,093,186$         5,606,319$         
Changes of assumptions 17,697,175         -                    
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 19,406,829         -                    
Total 45,197,190$       5,606,319$         

December 31, 2017
Differences between expected and actual experience 9,279,166$         1,867,968$         
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 4,197,497           -                    
Total 13,476,663$       1,867,968$         

Amounts recorded as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related 
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

2019  $ 12,889,879 
2020         8,831,249 
2021         8,551,819 
2022  5,968,663 
2023  1,185,981 
2024  1,081,642 
2025  1,081,638 
  $ 39,590,871 

G. The Board’s Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

A separate report on the pension trust fund is not issued. 
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8. Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Plan Description – The Board’s post-employment benefit plan is a single-employer defined benefit 
plan. The Board’s post-employment medical benefits for retirees are provided through a self-insured 
medical plan and are made available to employees upon actual retirement.  

Participation – All active Employees as defined in the Rules and Regulations of the Employees’ 
Retirement System of the Board, which is generally an employee who regularly works more than 17.5 
hours per week, are eligible to participate in the plan. 

Employees covered by benefit terms – At December 31, 2018, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 659
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -
Active employees 1,326

1,985

Total OPEB Liability 

The Board’s total OPEB liability of $158,612,265 was measured as of December 31, 2018, and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. 

Actuarial Assumptions and other inputs – The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 2.5% 
Salary increases 5.0%, including inflation 
Discount rate 4.1% 
Healthcare cost trend rates 7.0% for FY20 decreasing 0.5% per year to an ultimate 
 rate of 4.5% for FY25 and later years 
Mortality 1994 Uninsured Pensioner (UP-94) mortality table, 
 projected to 2002 using Scale AA, gender distinct 

The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB Liability as of December 31, 2018 was 4.10%. 
The discount rate used to determine the Total OPEB Liability as of December 31, 2017 was 3.44%. 

Municipal Bond Rate: 4.10% as of December 31, 2018 and 3.44% as of December 31, 2017; the 
source of the municipal bond rate is the Bond Buyer Index of general obligation bonds with 20 
years to maturity and mixed credit quality. In describing their index, the Bond Buyer notes that the 
bonds’ average credit quality is roughly equivalent to Moody’s Investors Service’s Aa2 rating and 
Standard & Poor’s Corp.’s AA.  
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The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018 valuation were based on the results of 
ongoing evaluations of the assumptions from December 31, 2017 to December 31, 2018.  

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at December 31, 2017 170,658,516$     

Changes for the year:
Service cost 5,134,251           
Interest 5,926,129           
Changes of benefit terms -                    
Differences between expected and actual experience -                    
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (16,063,510)
Benefits Payments (employer) (7,043,121)         
Other -                    

Net changes (12,046,251)

Balance at December 31, 2018 158,612,265$     

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate – The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the Board, as well as what the Board’s total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.10%) or 1-percentage-point higher 
(5.10%) than the current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease 
(3.10%)

Current
Discount Rate 

(4.10%)
1.0% Increase 

(5.10%)
Total OPEB liability  $ 183,952,950 $ 158,612,265  $ 138,332,446

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates – The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the Board, as well as what the Board’s total OPEB liability would 
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (6.00%) or 
1-percentage-point higher (8.00%) than the current healthcare trend rates:

1.0% Decrease 
(6.00%)

Current
Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rate 
(7.00%)

1.0% Increase 
(8.00%)

Total OPEB liability  $ 138,545,322 $ 158,612,265  $ 183,379,817
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Board recognized OPEB expense of $7,044,502. At 
December 31, 2018, the Board reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:  

  Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources  

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Changes of assumptions or other inputs  $ -  $ 12,047,631 
Total  $ -  $ 12,047,631 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:  

2019  $ (4,015,878) 
2020  (4,015,878) 
2021  (4,015,875) 

$ (12,047,631) 

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Total OPEB Liability 
Service cost  $                  5,134,251 
Interest                      5,926,129 
Changes of benefit terms                                   -   
Differences between expected and actual experience                                   - 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs                 (16,063,510)  
Benefit payments (employer)                   (7,043,121) 
Net change in total OPEB liability                 (12,046,251)

Total OPEB liability - beginning                 170,658,516

Total OPEB liability - ending (a)  $             158,612,265

Covered-employee payroll  $               50,679,697 
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of  

covered payroll 312.97%
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Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (continued) 

Notes to Schedule: 
This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as 
they become available. 

Information is presented using measurement date which is the same as the fiscal year end. 

No assets are accumulated in a trust to pay related benefits. 

Benefit Changes: There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Changes of Assumptions or other inputs: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the 
changes in the discount rate each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period: 

End of FY2018:             4.10% 
Beginning of FY2018:   3.44%

9. Commitments 

A. Capital Improvements 

At December 31, 2018, the Board's budget for its ten-year capital improvements program totaled 
approximately $3 billion, which includes $166.7 million in capital expenditures for the year ending 
December 31, 2019 and provides for the following activities: 

Continue Joint Infrastructure Recovery Road in conjunction with City of New Orleans 
Department of Public Works;  
Comply with regulatory requirements under the Sewer Consent Decree; 
Complete second tower of Water Hammer project;  
Participate in drainage system improvements in coordination with SELA Program;  
Initiate Automated Meter Infrastructure project. 

Due to certain regulatory and legislative changes, additional capital improvements will probably 
be required.  Future capital improvement program expenditures may require the issuance of 
additional debt depending on the amount and timing of expenditures.  As of December 31, 2018, 
the Board has committed or appropriated $9,975,167 in investments for use in future capital 
projects and has $21,245,567 of cash and cash equivalents restricted for future capital projects. 
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B. Self-insurance

The Board is self-insured for general liability, workers’ compensation, and hospitalization benefits 
and claims.  Settled claims have not exceeded excess coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
Hospitalization benefits are charged to payroll related expense. 

General liability claims are segregated internally by "claims" and "suits" depending on the scope 
and type of claim and are handled by the Office of the Special Counsel and Administrative Services.  
Individual general liability losses have ranged from $100 to $7,500,000, illustrating the volatility 
of this exposure.  The claims expense (recovery) provision for 2018 and 2017 amounted to 
($10,544,357) and $41,847,195, respectively.   

Worker's compensation expense provision for 2018 and 2017 amounted to $4,228,002 and 
$3,111,359, respectively.  

The medical claims for our self-insured health plan are administered by “The Health Plan,” our 
third party administrator.  The Board's expense provision in excess of employee contributions for 
2018 and 2017 was $21,562,359 and 19,160,641, respectively, and is included in payroll related 
expenses.

Changes in the claims payable amount are as follows (health payments are reflected net): 

    2018  2017 
Beginning of Year  $ 59,160,395  $ 17,204,771 

Current Year Claims and Estimate Change 15,246,004  64,029,192
Claim Payments   (25,983,657)   (22,073,568)

End of Year $ 48,422,742 $ 59,160,395

The composition of claims payable is as follows: 

   2018  2017 
Short-term:    

Workers' compensation $ 2,129,709 $ 1,859,956
Health insurance 2,225,002  2,197,500
Total short-term 4,354,711  4,057,456

Long-term:   
Workers' compensation 757,437  1,236,344
General liability 43,310,594  53,866,595
Total long-term 44,068,031  55,102,939
Total  $ 48,422,742 $ 59,160,395

II-65



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

_______________________________________________________________________
9. Commitments (continued) 

C. Regulatory Matters 

The Sewer System Evaluation and Rehabilitation Program (SSERP) was initially estimated to cost 
the Board $408.2 million by the original Consent Decree with an end date of 2015.  However, the 
Board has negotiated, and continues to negotiate with U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA), extensions beyond the original Consent Decree deadline. Consequently, the original 
Consent Decree has been modified to currently provide an end date of October 2025. 

The Board participates in a number of federal programs which are governed by various rules and 
regulations.  Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by 
the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the Board has not complied with the rules and 
regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received and the collectability of any 
related receivable as of December 31, 2018 might be impaired.  In management’s opinion, there 
are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations 
governing state and federal grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying 
financial statements for such contingencies.  Audits of prior years have not resulted in any 
significant disallowed costs or refunds.  Any costs that would be disallowed would be recognized 
in the period agreed upon by the grantor agency and the Board. 

10. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457.  This plan, available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of 
their salary until future years.  The deferred compensation is not available to employees until 
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.  All amounts of compensation deferred 
under the plan, all property, and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to 
those amounts, property or rights are held in trust for the employees, therefore the assets of the plan are 
not included in these financial statements. 

11. Budgets

Operating and capital expenditure budgets are adopted by the Board on a basis consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  While not legally required, this 
budgetary information is employed as a management control device during the year.  Comparison 
between actual and budgeted expenses is not a required presentation for an Enterprise Fund. 

12. Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied by the City of New Orleans.  Taxes on real and personal property attach as an 
enforceable lien on the property as of January 1.  Taxes are levied on January 1, payable on January 1, 
and delinquent on February 1. 
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12. Property Taxes (continued) 

The assessed value of the property is determined by an elected Assessor.  The assessed value for 2018 
and 2017 was $3,799,114,380 and 3,789,022,670, respectively.  The combined tax rate dedicated for 
the Board for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $16.43 per $1,000 of assessed 
valuation.  These dedicated funds are available for operations, maintenance, construction, and extension 
of the drainage system (except for subsurface systems). 

13. Tax Abatement Agreement 

The local government is subject to certain property tax abatements granted by the Louisiana State Board 
of Commerce and Industry (the “State Board”), a state entity governed by board members representing 
major economic groups and gubernatorial appointees. Abatements to which the government may be 
subject include those issued for property taxes under the Restoration Tax Abatement Program 
(“RTAP”). For the year ending December 31, 2018, the government participated in the Restoration Tax 
Abatement Program.  

Under the RTAP, as authorized by Article 7, Section 21(H) of the Louisiana Constitution and Louisiana 
Revised Statutes 47:4311, companies that expand, restore, improve or develop an existing structure or 
structures in a downtown, historic, or economic development district can apply to the State Board and 
the local governing authority for a property tax exemption.  The exemptions are granted for a 5-year 
term and are renewable for an additional 5-year term upon the approval of the State Board and the local 
governing authority.  The property tax abatements have resulted in reductions of property taxes, which 
the tax assessor administers as a temporary reduction in the assessed value of the property involved. 
The abatement agreements stipulate a percentage reduction of property taxes, which can be as much as 
100 percent. The local government may recapture abated taxes if a company fails to expand facilities 
or otherwise fail to fulfill its commitments under the agreement. 

During 2018, the City Council of the City of New Orleans approved tax abatement projects with a total 
investment value of $8,815,317 of which $859,622 was for the Board.  

14. Segment Information 

The Board issued revenue bonds to finance its water and sewerage departments which operate the 
Board’s water and sewerage treatment plants and distribution and collection systems.  These bonds are 
accounted for in a single fund; however, investors in the revenue bonds rely solely on the revenue 
generated by the individual activities for repayment. 
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14. Segment Information (continued) 

Summary financial information for these departments as of and for the years ended December 31 is as 
follows:

(Restated) (Restated)
2018 2017 2018 2017

Assets:
Current unrestricted assets 65,037,267$       63,813,646$       77,056,592$       113,547,412$     
Restricted assets 28,234,279         72,808,009         40,471,502         38,430,565         
Other assets 7,450,374           12,262,715         17,965               17,965               
Property, plant and equipment 615,022,462       551,884,397       1,088,136,124     1,045,224,045     
Total assets 715,744,382       700,768,767       1,205,682,183     1,197,219,987     

Deferred outflows of resources: 15,080,978         4,511,832           17,847,392         7,547,612           
Total assets and deferred outflows 730,825,360$     705,280,599$     1,223,529,575$   1,204,767,599$   

Liabilities:
Current 52,809,779$       54,049,598$       52,746,080$       41,352,658$       
Current liabilities payable from

restricted assets 5,183,196         4,724,507         14,624,635       16,030,513         
Noncurrent liabilities 329,238,177       324,673,347       365,314,515       371,867,597       
Total liabilities 387,231,152       383,447,452       432,685,230       429,250,768       

Deferred inflows of resources: 5,884,650           622,656             5,884,650           622,656             

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 411,583,789       388,634,912       860,979,966       801,653,793       
Restricted 16,805,167         16,808,027         29,175,408         29,730,016         
Unrestricted (90,679,398)        (84,232,448)        (105,195,679)      (56,489,634)        
Total net position 337,709,558       321,210,491       784,959,695       774,894,175       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and 
net position 730,825,360$     705,280,599$     1,223,529,575$   1,204,767,599$   

Condensed Statements of Net Position
Water Sewer
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14. Segment Information (continued) 

2018 2017 2018 2017
Service charges, pledged 

against bonds 92,518,944$       92,469,196$       115,777,622$ 111,883,028$     
Depreciation expense (12,349,399)        (12,216,937)        (26,744,088)        (23,620,139)        
Other operating expenses (94,075,558)        (88,030,009)        (95,538,207)        (71,439,888)        

Operating income (loss) (13,906,013)        (7,777,750)         (6,504,673)         16,823,001         
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment earnings 1,723,942           1,923,464           1,922,205           2,109,401           
Other 1,498,085           (3,455,197)         2,517,871           (4,857,483)         
Interest expense (1,305,859)         (1,660,954)         (1,770,690)         (1,731,807)         
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,916,168           (3,192,687)         2,669,386           (4,479,889)         

Capital contributions 28,488,912         24,053,899         13,900,807         2,411,782           
Change in net position 16,499,067         13,083,462         10,065,520         14,754,894         

Beginning net position 321,210,491       337,110,237       774,894,175 792,100,836       
Change in accounting principle -                    (28,983,208)        -                    (31,961,555)        
Ending net position 337,709,558$     321,210,491$     784,959,695$ 774,894,175$     

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Condensed Statements of

Water Sewer

2018 2017 2018 2017
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities (13,855,629)$      25,093,695$       36,460,285$       26,141,957$       
Noncapital financing activities 343,336             264,874             330,010             329,395             
Capital and related financing

activities (24,098,561)        (83,441,074)        (58,767,363)        (92,333,117)        
Investing activities 1,984,794           2,523,821           2,048,676           2,314,561           
Net increase (35,626,060)        (55,558,684)        (19,928,392)        (63,547,204)        
Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning of year 96,774,062         152,332,746       91,278,866         154,826,070       
End of year 61,148,002$       96,774,062$       71,350,474$       91,278,866$       

Water Sewer
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
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15. Natural Disaster 

During the years ended, December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Board has cumulatively received 
approximately $459.0 million and $367.0 million, respectively, of cash reimbursements from the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  Included in accounts receivable as of December 
31, 2018 and 2017 are $280,906 and $1,532,795, respectively, of reimbursements due from FEMA 
under the Disaster Grants program.  Eligible FEMA grants totaling in excess of $812.3 million are in 
various stages of the approval process and include amounts for system repairs, building repairs, vehicle 
and equipment repairs, and replacements, temporary power, supplies and other costs. 

On June 29, 2007, the Board entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the State of 
Louisiana, City of New Orleans, Louisiana, and the Louisiana Public Facilities Authority (LPFA). The 
LPFA agreed to issue its bonds to provide the cash capital investment to pay for capital improvements 
of the City of New Orleans and the Board.  The establishment of the construction fund permits the 
Board and City of New Orleans to publicly bid contracts that are subject to a Project Worksheet that 
has been obligated by FEMA or for which an award letter has been received and encumber such 
amounts.  The State of Louisiana, City of New Orleans, and Sewerage and Water Board agree that as 
FEMA pays any reimbursement amounts related to projects for which disbursements have been made, 
or the City or the Sewerage and Water Board receives monies related to the hazard mitigation grant 
program for which disbursements have been made from the construction fund; the full amount of such 
projects shall be deposited in the construction fund and used to fund additional projects until all City 
of New Orleans and Sewerage and Water Board improvements are completed.  The total amount made 
available to the Board under the agreement was $100,000,000.  The agreement also permits 
disbursements from the construction fund for projects with a Project Worksheet that have not been 
obligated by FEMA, and as a result, will not be reimbursed by FEMA.  The Board is not required to 
reimburse the construction fund for these unobligated projects. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the 
Board had an outstanding obligation under the agreement of $11,221,710 and $13,241,146 included as 
a liability in due to other governments on the statements of net position, which represent amounts not 
yet reimbursed by FEMA for obligated projects and deposited back into the construction fund.  
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16. Change in Accounting Principles 

The GASB issued Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions in June 2015. This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement 45 and 
requires governments to report a liability on the face of the financial statements for the OPEB that they 
provide. Statement 75 requires governments in all types of OPEB plans to present more extensive note 
disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) about their OPEB liabilities. Among the new 
note disclosures is a description of the effect on the reported OPEB liability of using a discount rate 
and a healthcare cost trend rate that are one percentage point higher and one percentage point lower 
than assumed by the government. The new RSI includes a schedule showing the causes of increases 
and decreases in the OPEB liability and a schedule comparing a government’s actual OPEB 
contributions to its contribution requirements.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.  The Board implemented 
GASB 75 in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

The Board also implemented Statement 75 retrospectively effective December 31, 2017. The impact is 
as follows: 

Previously reported net position as of December 31, 2017  $ 2,263,264,565
Adjustment as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75   (94,273,121)
Net position as of December 31, 2017, as restated  $ 2,168,991,444

Other post-employment benefits expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 is not restated and the 
disclosures for other post-employment benefits in Note 9 are not comparative because detailed 
information for the year ended December 31, 2017 is not available. The actuarial valuation performed 
under GASB Statement No. 75 is for the most recent fiscal year only. 

The GASB issued Statement 82, Pension Issues – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68 
and No. 73 in March 2016. This Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-
related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the 
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting 
purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) 
contribution requirements.  The majority of the requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.  The Board implemented GASB 82 in the financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. 
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17. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying 
fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) 
whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with 
whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component 
units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. An activity meeting the 
criteria should be recorded in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. Governments with 
activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of 
changes in fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-type 
activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less. This Statement describes 
four fiduciary funds that should be recorded, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee benefit) 
trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. 
Therefore, if applicable, the Board will implement this guidance in 2019. 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs 
of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. 
This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were 
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on 
the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the 
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this 
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, 
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. This is a 
significant change in accounting principles and may impact the net position of the Board. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 
Therefore, as applicable, the Board will implement this guidance in 2020. 

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period. The Statement objectives include (1) enhancing the relevance and comparability of information 
about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) simplifying accounting for 
interest costs incurred before the end of a construction period. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Board will implement this 
guidance in 2020. 
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18. Current Operating Environment 

The Board’s Drainage System experienced a significant increase in expenditures in 2017 and into 2018 
as a result of significant flooding in the New Orleans area in 2017 and the increase in the estimate for 
general liability claims in 2017 which has negatively impacted the Drainage System’s liquidity.   The 
Sewerage System has made advances to the Drainage System to pay for expenditures of the Drainage 
System.  The Board is considering ways to increase revenues for the Drainage System including 
additional tax revenues, increased drainage fees, applying for new government grants, and the 
apportionment of revenues from the Sewerage and Water Systems to the Drainage System.  These new 
sources of revenue are intended to increase revenues to a level that will cover expenditures and begin 
to allow the repayment of advances from the Sewerage System to the Drainage System.  However, if 
these revenue levels are not achieved, the Board will further deplete its cash and investment levels.  The 
Board’s management and Board of Directors are working to review and secure more consistent revenue 
sources for drainage operations as discussed in Note 21. 

19. Examination by Federal Agency 

During 2017, the Board was notified by the Office for Inspector General (the OIG) of the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security that the OIG would be conducting an audit of FEMA Public 
Assistance Grant Funds awarded to the Board for the period from August 29, 2005 to September 30, 
2017. The objective of the audit is to determine whether the Board accounted for and expended FEMA 
funds according to Federal regulations and FEMA guidelines. As of May 30, 2019, the audit is listed 
as an on-going project by the OIG, and results of this audit have not being finalized or communicated 
to the Board. 

20. Revenue Bonds Debt Service Coverage (Unaudited) 

Each of the General Bond Resolutions governing the Series 2014 Bonds and the Series 2015 Bonds 
have certain covenant requirements regarding net revenue available for debt service.  The net revenue 
available for debt service in the Board’s debt service coverage calculations presented in Section III, 
Statistical Information (Unaudited), is increased in the amount of $8,916,109 related to its water bonds 
and $9,947,600 related to its sewer bonds, as detailed below. These amount are opined to be 
extraordinary, non-recurring and non-continuing expenses by a Qualified Independent Consultant 
(QIC) as provided for in each respective General Bond Resolutions. 

Water Sewer
21,205$             35,342$             

Winter storm Inga 4,026,039           -                    
4,868,865           9,912,258           

Total extraordinary expenses 8,916,109$         9,947,600$         

Operating expenses related to August 2017 flood

Provision for doubtful accounts

The definition of extraordinary used by the QIC varies from that used in the preparation of the financial 
statements under generally accepted accounting principles.  It should be noted that Revenues and 
Operating Expenses as reported in the schedules in Section III are consistent with the terms of the 
General Bond Resolutions and may differ from the amounts reported in the financial statements. 
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20. Revenue Bonds Debt Service Coverage (Unaudited) (continued) 

In addition, for the water bonds, the net revenue available for debt service in the Board’s debt service 
coverage calculation presented in Section III, Statistical Information (Unaudited) is increased by 
$8,927,277 in estimated additional revenues in accordance with Section 7.01(c) of the General Water 
Revenue Bond Resolution derived from a rate increase that went into effect January 1, 2019. 

The Board is in compliance with these particular covenants after consideration of the above, as provided 
for in the respective General Bond Resolutions. 

21. Subsequent Event 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were 
available to be issued, June 28, 2019, and determined that the following item require disclosure. No 
events occurring after this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these financial statements. 

In May 2019, in an effort to replenish funding for the Board, Mayor LaToya Cantrell led the 
charge to obtain $50 million in one-time funding to support various operations and capital 
needs of the Board.  In addition, the Mayor was able to secure ongoing funding under House 
Bills 522, 617 & 43 which is anticipated to result in $20 - $26 million in recurring tax revenue. 
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For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

SCHEDULE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

Plan Fiduciary
Actuarial Net Position Net Pension

Valuation Employer's as a % of Liability as a
Date Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension Total Pension Covered Percentage

December 31 Liability Net Position Liability Liability Payroll of  Payroll

2018 339,153,248$    215,279,783$    123,873,465$    63.48% 50,679,697$      244.42%
2017 318,218,035 235,284,317 82,933,718 73.94% 41,822,648 198.30%
2016 305,105,919 224,356,261 80,749,658 73.53% 35,363,156 228.34%
2015 299,395,091 222,427,527 76,967,564 74.29% 33,672,902 228.57%
2014 296,244,723 236,556,671 59,688,052 79.85% 31,378,001 190.22%
2013 290,919,481 234,358,565 56,560,916 80.56% 29,706,715 190.40%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions
in Relation to Contributions

Actuarially the Actuarial Contribution as a % of 
Year Determined Determined Deficiency Covered Payroll Covered

Ended Contribution Contribution (Excess) Contribution Payroll

2018 8,435,598$        8,419,441$        16,157$             50,679,697$      16.61%
2017 10,545,867        7,239,467          3,306,400          41,822,648        17.31%
2016 11,024,398        6,407,201          4,617,197 35,363,156 18.12%
2015 10,799,993 6,506,652 4,293,341 33,672,902 19.32%
2014 11,171,823 6,055,890 5,115,933 31,378,001 19.30%
2013 11,086,546 5,946,614 5,139,932 29,706,715 20.02%
2012 9,127,658 6,287,658 2,840,000 29,074,529 21.63%
2011 9,815,606 5,564,936 4,250,670 29,774,937 18.69%
2010 8,358,739 5,140,096 3,218,643 29,670,378 17.32%
2009 7,591,495 5,188,175 2,403,320 39,947,906 12.99%

Actuarial cost method Entry age 
Amortization method Level dollar, open
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method 7-year smoothed market
Inflation 2.5%
Salary increases 5.0%, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.0%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Retirement age Earliest eligibility age, plus one year if under age 55
Mortality 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table for males and females

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS

Net 
Year Money-Weighted

Ended Rate of Return

2018 -3.31%
2017 10.52%
2016 5.42%
2015 -1.79%
2014 4.94%

(Continued)

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
Required Supplementary Information Under GASB Statement No. 67, 68, and 71

Note to schedule: 
Valuation Date: January 1, 2018
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of January 1, 2018, which is the most recent valuation date prior to the end of the fiscal 
year in which contributions are reported.

Note to schedule: 
Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is available. History prior to 
2013 is not shown in this report but is maintained in the records of the employer.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Total Pension Liability
Service cost 4,354,989$        3,797,316$        3,030,912$        2,788,621$        3,417,599$        
Interest on total pension liability 21,763,800 21,357,414 20,957,657 20,737,131 20,364,364
Effect of plan changes - - - - -
Effect of economic/demographic gains or (losses) (5,689,086) 9,734,775 834,712 (1,978,038) (1,721,210)
Effect of assumption changes or inputs 23,596,233 - - - -
Benefit payments (23,323,178) (21,777,389) (19,112,455) (18,397,344) (16,735,511)
Other 232,455 - - - -
Net change in total pension liability 20,935,213 13,112,116 5,710,826 3,150,370 5,325,242

Total pension liability, beginning 318,218,035 305,105,919 299,395,093 296,244,723 290,919,481
Total pension liability, ending (a) 339,153,248 318,218,035 305,105,919 299,395,093 296,244,723

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions 8,419,441 7,239,467 6,407,201 6,506,652 6,055,890
Employee contributions 2,535,027 2,139,705 2,063,122 1,847,259 1,535,723
Investment income net of investment expenses (7,868,279) 23,326,273 12,570,866 (4,085,711) 11,342,004
Benefit payments (23,323,178) (21,777,389) (19,112,455) (18,397,344) (16,735,511)
Administrative expenses - - - - -
Other 232,455 - - - -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position (20,004,534) # 10,928,056 # 1,928,734          # (14,129,144) 2,198,106

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 235,284,317 224,356,261 222,427,527 236,556,671 234,358,565
Plan fiduciary net position, ending (b) 215,279,783$    235,284,317$    224,356,261$    222,427,527$    236,556,671$    

Board's net pension liability, ending = (a) - (b) 123,873,465$    82,933,718$      80,749,658$      76,967,566$      59,688,052$      

Plan fiduciary net position as a % of total pension liability 63.48% 73.94% 73.53% 74.29% 79.85%

Covered payroll 50,679,697$      41,822,648$      35,363,156$      33,672,902$      31,378,001$      

Board's net pension liability as a % of covered payroll 244.42% 198.30% 228.34% 228.57% 190.22%

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

1. This schedule is prepared using the optional format of combining the required schedules in Paragraph Nos. 46.a. and 46.b. of GASB No. 68. Until a full 10-year trend is 
compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is available. Amounts recognized in the fiscal year represent changes between the current 
and prior measurement dates. History prior to 2015 is not shown in this report but is maintained by the employer.
2. Information is presented using a December 31, 2018 measurement date as permitted under Paragraph No. 20 of GASB No. 68.
3. Assumed retirement age updated and mortality updated to gender distinct 1994 Uninsured Pensioner (UP-94) mortality table, projected to 2002 using Scale AA.
4. City annuity and other transfers in; prior to 2018, these amounts were combined with “Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions”.
5 Total compensation (not just pensionable compensation, if different) based on census used in the valuation per Q/A No. 106 of the Guide to Implementation of GASB Statement 
68 .

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
Required Supplementary Information Under GASB Statement No. 67, 68, and 71

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
(continued)

Notes to Schedules: 
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Financial
Statement

Reporting Date
Measurement

Date Service Cost Interest
Changes of 

Benefit Terms

Difference
Between

Expected and
Actual

Experience

Changes of 
assumptions or 

other imputs

Benefit
Payments

(employer)

Net Change in
Total OPEB

Liability

Total OPEB
Liability -
Beginning

Total OPEB
Liability -

Ending
Covered
Payroll

Total OPEB
Liability as a
Percentage of

Covered
Payroll

12/31/18 12/31/18 5,134,251$          5,926,129$          -$                     -$                     (16,063,510)$       (7,043,121)$         (12,046,251)$       170,658,516$      158,612,265$      50,679,697$        312.97%

Notes to Schedule:
1. This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
2. There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of paragraph 4 of GASB 75 for this OPEB plan.
3. Benefit Changes. There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended December 31, 2018.
4. Changes of Assumptions. Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the changes in the discount rate each period. The following are the discount rates using in each period:

End of year 2018 4.10%
Beginning of year 2018 3.44%

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
Required Supplementary Information Under GASB Statement No. 75

For the year ended December 31, 2018

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
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Schedule 1
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY DEPARTMENT
ENTERPRISE  FUND

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017 (Restated) 2018 2017 (Restated) 2018 2017 (Restated) 2018 2017 (Restated)

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 31,321,022$          17,561,011$          30,935,972$          52,905,301$          1,382,352$            11,545,514$          63,639,346$          82,011,826$          
Accounts receivable:

Customers, net of allowance 19,919,941            13,896,627            20,463,721            17,370,001            -                         -                         40,383,662            31,266,628
Taxes -                         -                         -                         -                         6,493,108              9,652,824              6,493,108              9,652,824
Interest -                         -
Grants 14,749,165            40,629,167            6,052,105              13,761,561            6,009,076              9,924,583              26,810,346            64,315,311
Miscellaneous 258,425                 330,674                 1,523,141              270,312                 3,949,877              1,443,778              5,731,443              2,044,764

Due from (to) other internal departments (3,872,868)             (11,573,807)           16,500,755            27,544,854            (10,632,887)           (15,971,047)           1,995,000              -
Inventory of supplies 2,390,127              2,530,089              1,464,006              1,410,080              1,034,569              1,039,912              4,888,702              4,980,081
Prepaid expenses 271,455                 439,885                 116,892                 285,303                 148,832                 233,048                 537,179                 958,236

Total unrestricted and undesignated 65,037,267            63,813,646            77,056,592            113,547,412          8,384,927              17,868,612            150,478,786          195,229,670

Total current assets 65,037,267            63,813,646            77,056,592            113,547,412 8,384,927 17,868,612 150,478,786 195,229,670

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash, cash equivalents, and investments
Cash and cash equivalents restricted for capital projects 10,648,879 55,238,711 10,579,291 7,974,833 17,397 4,320,102 21,245,567 67,533,646
Health insurance reserve 780,233 761,271 716,803 725,716 699,598 710,513 2,196,634 2,197,500
Debt service reserve 16,805,167 16,808,027 29,175,408 29,730,016 62,010 68,297 46,042,585 46,606,340

Total restricted cash, cash equivalents, and investments 28,234,279 72,808,009 40,471,502 38,430,565 779,005 5,098,912 69,484,786 116,337,486

Property, plant and equipment 970,675,961 898,188,980 1,396,493,756 1,329,691,358 1,875,879,548 1,767,843,572 4,243,049,265 3,995,723,910
Less: accumulated depreciation 355,653,499 346,304,583 308,357,632 284,467,313 370,176,057 345,859,217 1,034,187,188 976,631,113

Property, plant, and equipment, net 615,022,462 551,884,397 1,088,136,124 1,045,224,045 1,505,703,491 1,421,984,355 3,208,862,077 3,019,092,797

Other assets
Funds from/for customer deposits 7,427,424 12,239,765 - - - - 7,427,424 12,239,765
Deposits 22,950 22,950 17,965 17,965 10,400 10,400 51,315 51,315

Total other assets 7,450,374 12,262,715 17,965 17,965 10,400 10,400 7,478,739 12,291,080

Total noncurrent assets 650,707,115 636,955,121 1,128,625,591 1,083,672,575 1,506,492,896 1,427,093,667 3,285,825,602 3,147,721,363

Total assets 715,744,382 700,768,767 1,205,682,183 1,197,219,987 1,514,877,823 1,444,962,279 3,436,304,388 3,342,951,033

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 15,065,730 4,492,221 15,065,730 4,492,221 15,065,730 4,492,221 45,197,190 13,476,663
Deferred loss on bond refunding 15,248 19,611 2,781,662 3,055,391 128,985 182,508 2,925,895 3,257,510

Total deferred outflows of resources 15,080,978 4,511,832 17,847,392 7,547,612 15,194,715 4,674,729 48,123,085 16,734,173

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 730,825,360$ 705,280,599$ 1,223,529,575$ 1,204,767,599$ 1,530,072,538$ 1,449,637,008$ 3,484,427,473$ 3,359,685,206$

(Continued)

ASSETS AND DEFERED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Water System Sewerage System Drainage System Total
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Schedule  1 (Continued)
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION BY DEPARTMENT, CONTINUED
ENTERPRISE  FUND

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017 (Restated) 2018 2017 (Restated) 2018 2017 (Restated) 2018 2017 (Restated)

Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable 32,505,962$          33,173,919$          39,814,320$          25,934,140$          28,441,519$          25,566,215$          100,761,801$        84,674,274$          
Due to City of New Orleans 842,664                 556,149                 -                         -                         -                         -                         842,664                 556,149
Disaster Reimbursement Revolving Loan 9,116,772              8,347,355              1,687,174              4,248,077              417,764                 645,714                 11,221,710            13,241,146
Retainers and estimates payable 4,743,155              6,078,810              3,081,481              3,390,277              2,521,087              1,852,006              10,345,723            11,321,093
Due to other fund 56,664                   97,513                   26,527                   45,701                   33,185                   56,527                   116,376                 199,741
Accrued salaries 471,562                 553,775                 284,858                 243,296                 236,603                 324,364                 993,023                 1,121,435
Claims payable 1,482,000              1,381,256              1,446,390              1,345,701              1,426,321              1,330,499              4,354,711              4,057,456
Total OPEB liability, due within one year 2,347,707              -                         2,347,707              -                         2,347,707              -                         7,043,121              -
Debt Service Assistance Fund loan payable 445,347                 425,599                 4,337,950              4,145,594              283,725                 271,144                 5,067,022              4,842,337
Advances from federal government 2,775,563              3,343,457              1,976,305              1,976,305              -                         -                         4,751,868              5,319,762
Other liabilities 370,090                 91,765                   91,075                   23,567 6,294 2,880 467,459 118,212

Total Current liabilities (payable from current assets): 55,157,486 54,049,598 55,093,787 41,352,658 35,714,205 30,049,349 145,965,478 125,451,605

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets):
Accrued interest 907,571 929,454 1,742,994 1,881,177 74,671 86,253 2,725,236 2,896,884
Bonds payable 3,575,000 3,360,000 11,510,000 12,356,000 1,815,000 1,745,000 16,900,000 17,461,000
Retainers and estimates payable 700,625 435,053 1,371,641 1,793,336 - - 2,072,266 2,228,389

Total current liabilities (payable from restricted assets): 5,183,196 4,724,507 14,624,635 16,030,513 1,889,671 1,831,253 21,697,502 22,586,273

Total current liabilities 60,340,682 58,774,105 69,718,422 57,383,171 37,603,876 31,880,602 167,662,980 148,037,878

Long-term liabilities:
Claims payable 4,351,534 5,375,837 4,672,055 4,202,857 35,044,442 45,524,245 44,068,031 55,102,939
Accrued vacation and sick pay 3,884,837 3,202,218 3,702,175 3,053,065 2,106,778 1,744,841 9,693,790 8,000,124
Net pension liability 41,291,155 27,644,573 41,291,155 27,644,573 41,291,155 27,644,572 123,873,465 82,933,718
Total OPEB liability 50,523,048 56,886,172 50,523,048 56,886,172 50,523,048 56,886,172 151,569,144 170,658,516
Bonds payable, net of current maturities 210,512,552 215,128,196 226,225,449 239,189,085 5,959,049 7,848,216 442,697,050 462,165,497
Southeast Louisiana Project liability - - - - 227,139,545 201,926,585 227,139,545 201,926,585
Debt Service Assistance Fund loan payable, 

net of current maturities 3,749,704 4,196,586 36,552,926 40,891,845 2,387,257 2,672,341 42,689,887 47,760,772
Customer deposits 12,577,640 12,239,765 - - - - 12,577,640 12,239,765

Total long-term liabilites 326,890,470 324,673,347 362,966,808 371,867,597 364,451,274 344,246,972 1,054,308,552 1,040,787,916

Total liabilities 387,231,152 383,447,452 432,685,230 429,250,768 402,055,150 376,127,574 1,221,971,532 1,188,825,794

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred amounts related to net pension liability 1,868,773 622,656 1,868,773 622,656 1,868,773 622,656 5,606,319 1,867,968
Deferred amounts related to total OPEB liability 4,015,877 - 4,015,877 - 4,015,877 - 12,047,631 -

Total deferred inflows of resources 5,884,650 622,656 5,884,650 622,656 5,884,650 622,656 17,653,950 1,867,968

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 411,583,789 388,634,912 860,979,966 801,653,793 1,270,807,294 1,214,784,656 2,543,371,049 2,405,073,361
Restricted for debt service 16,805,167 16,808,027 29,175,408 29,730,016 62,010 68,297 46,042,585 46,606,340
Unrestricted (90,679,398) (84,232,448) (105,195,679) (56,489,634) (148,736,566) (141,966,175) (344,611,643) (282,688,257)

Total net position 337,709,558 321,210,491 784,959,695 774,894,175 1,122,132,738 1,072,886,778 2,244,801,991 2,168,991,444

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and net position 730,825,360$ 705,280,599$ 1,223,529,575$ 1,204,767,599$ 1,530,072,538$ 1,449,637,008$ 3,484,427,473$ 3,359,685,206$

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 

Water System Sewerage System Drainage System Total
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Schedule 2
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY DEPARTMENT
ENTERPRISE  FUND

For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Water System
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Operating revenues:
Sales of water and delinquent fees 90,287,081$           90,464,810$           -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        90,287,081$           90,464,810$
Sewerage service charges -                          -                          114,614,157           111,063,719           -                          -                          114,614,157           111,063,719
Plumbing inspection and license fees 319,127                  297,115                  329,205                  291,215                  -                          -                          648,332                  588,330
Other revenues 1,912,736               1,707,271               834,260                  528,094                  2,940,207               1,215,909               5,687,203               3,451,274

Total operating revenues 92,518,944             92,469,196             115,777,622           111,883,028           2,940,207               1,215,909               211,236,773           205,568,133

Operating Expenses:
Power and pumping 2,530,094               3,353,409               5,425,556               3,455,301               23,918,812             29,743,813             31,874,462             36,552,523
Treatment 9,294,004               7,298,509               13,664,971             18,238,266             -                          115,132                  22,958,975             25,651,907
Transmission and distribution 24,912,011             20,616,130             17,666,548             15,028,132             3,951,459               765,297                  46,530,018             36,409,559
Customer accounts 2,607,756               2,226,491               2,607,781               2,226,486               27,739                    7,178                      5,243,276               4,460,155
Customer service 2,209,330               2,049,950               2,209,324               2,068,365               57,760                    99,228                    4,476,414               4,217,543
Administration and general 10,227,572 8,667,448 11,972,725 8,338,645 6,053,021 7,337,611 28,253,318 24,343,704
Payroll related expenses 18,691,737 15,902,266 18,604,235 12,642,752 12,120,609 9,581,304 49,416,581 38,126,322
Maintenance of general plant 15,533,798 16,301,541 8,061,802 2,599,670 5,217,885 7,198,971 28,813,485 26,100,182
Depreciation 12,349,399 12,216,937 26,744,088 23,620,139 24,407,703 23,613,000 63,501,190 59,450,076
Provision for doubtful accounts 7,584,815 8,769,597 13,355,926 5,523,536 1,476 33,578 20,942,217 14,326,711
Provision for claims 484,441 2,844,668 1,969,339 1,318,735 (9,656,464) 41,109,418 (7,202,684) 45,272,821

Total operating expenses 106,424,957 100,246,946 122,282,295 95,060,027 66,100,000 119,604,530 294,807,252 314,911,503

Operating income (loss) (13,906,013) (7,777,750) (6,504,673) 16,823,001 (63,159,793) (118,388,621) (83,570,479) (109,343,370)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Three-mill tax - - - - 15,504,589 15,309,309 15,504,589 15,309,309
Six-mill tax - - - - 15,576,221 16,229,098 15,576,221 16,229,098
Nine-mill tax - - - - 23,570,261 23,881,671 23,570,261 23,881,671
Two-mill tax - - - - 553 2,735 553 2,735
Other taxes 264,567 264,074 329,965 329,350 - - 594,532 593,424
Federal noncapital grants 78,769 800 45 45 - - 78,814 845
Interest income 1,723,942 1,923,464 1,922,205 2,109,401 142,751 244,250 3,788,898 4,277,115
Interest expense (1,305,859) (1,660,954) (1,770,690) (1,731,807) (127,690) (144,575) (3,204,239) (3,537,336)
Provision for grants 1,154,749 (3,720,071) 2,187,861 (5,186,878) (158,969) - 3,183,641 (8,906,949)

Total non-operating revenues 1,916,168 (3,192,687) 2,669,386 (4,479,889) 54,507,716 55,522,488 59,093,270 47,849,912

Income (expenses) before capital contributions (11,989,845) (10,970,437) (3,835,287) 12,343,112 (8,652,077) (62,866,133) (24,477,209) (61,493,458)

Capital contributions 28,488,912 24,053,899 13,900,807 2,411,782 57,898,037 69,870,394 100,287,756 96,336,075

Change in net position 16,499,067 13,083,462 10,065,520 14,754,894 49,245,960 7,004,261 75,810,547 34,842,617

Net position, beginning of year 321,210,491 337,110,237 774,894,175 792,100,836 1,072,886,778 1,099,210,875 2,168,991,444 2,228,421,948
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - (28,983,208) - (31,961,555) - (33,328,358) - (94,273,121)
Net position, beginning of year, restated 321,210,491 308,127,029 774,894,175 760,139,281 1,072,886,778 1,065,882,517 2,168,991,444 2,134,148,827

Net position, end of year 337,709,558$ 321,210,491$ 784,959,695$ 774,894,175$ 1,122,132,738$ 1,072,886,778$ 2,244,801,991$ 2,168,991,444$

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Drainage SystemSewerage System Total
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Schedule 3
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT BY DEPARTMENT
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017

Water Sewer Drainage Total
Real estate rights, non depreciable 3,065,632$                1,949,159$                8,772,766$                13,787,557$
Power and pumping stations - buildings 74,522,290                53,795,104                268,286,304              396,603,698
Power and pumping stations - machinery 163,760,165              67,311,682                135,701,030              366,772,877
Distribution systems 362,282,823              -                             -                             362,282,823
Sewerage collection -                             742,695,414              -                             742,695,414
Canals and subsurface drainage -                             -                             916,810,550              916,810,550
Treatment plants -                             207,077,447              -                             207,077,447
Connections and meters 75,358,211                31,556,254                -                             106,914,465
Power transmission 10,727,059                13,079,397                13,555,173                37,361,629
General plant and buildings 142,007,198              107,490,272              84,038,828                333,536,298

Total property, plant and 
equipment in service 831,723,378              1,224,954,729           1,427,164,651           3,483,842,758

Construction in progress 138,952,583              171,539,027              448,714,897              759,206,507

Total property, plant and equipment 970,675,961 1,396,493,756 1,875,879,548 4,243,049,265

Accumulated depreciation 355,653,499 308,357,632 370,176,057 1,034,187,188

Net property, plant and eqiupment 615,022,462$ 1,088,136,124$ 1,505,703,491$ 3,208,862,077$

Water Sewer Drainage Total
Real estate rights, non depreciable 2,934,901$ 1,925,647$ 8,772,766$ 13,633,314$
Power and pumping stations - buildings 72,165,740 52,660,008 267,802,319 392,628,067
Power and pumping stations - machinery 157,622,824 62,827,545 132,507,236 352,957,605
Distribution systems 318,178,664 - - 318,178,664
Sewerage collection - 616,199,180 - 616,199,180
Canals and subsurface drainage - - 894,121,872 894,121,872
Treatment plants - 206,081,699 - 206,081,699
Connections and meters 74,799,449 30,661,835 - 105,461,284
Power transmission 10,727,059 12,208,991 13,555,173 36,491,223
General plant and buildings 134,114,040 98,395,924 79,388,711 311,898,675

Total property, plant and 
equipment in service 770,542,677 1,080,960,829 1,396,148,077 3,247,651,583

Construction in progress 127,646,303 248,730,529 371,695,495 748,072,327

Total property, plant and equipment 898,188,980 1,329,691,358 1,767,843,572 3,995,723,910

Accumulated depreciation 346,304,583 284,467,313 345,859,217 976,631,113

Net property, plant and eqiupment 551,884,397$ 1,045,224,045$ 1,421,984,355$ 3,019,092,797$

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

2018

2017
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Schedule 4
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

SCHEDULE OF BONDS PAYABLE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

Annual Interest  Final Outstanding Outstanding
Interest Payment Issue  Maturity as of New Debt Payments as of 
Rates Dates Date Date 12/31/17 in 2018 in 2018 12/31/18

Drainage System Bonds, 2014 (9-Mills) 4.53% (6/1;12/1) 12/01/14 06/01/22 9,410,000$          -$ 1,745,000$ 7,665,000$          

9,410,000 - 1,745,000 7,665,000

Sewer Revenue Bonds, 2011 0.95% (5/1; 11/1) 12/01/11 12/01/32 6,906,000 - 431,000 6,475,000

Sewer Revenue Bonds, 2014 4.87% (6/1;12/1) 12/01/14 06/01/44 122,365,000 - 11,925,000 110,440,000

Sewer Revenue Bonds, 2015 5.00% (6/1;12/1) 12/17/15 12/01/45 100,000,000 - - 100,000,000

229,271,000 - 12,356,000 216,915,000

Water Revenue Bonds, 2014 5.00% (6/1;12/1) 12/01/14 06/01/44 100,660,000 - 2,660,000 98,000,000

Water Revenue Bonds, 2015 4.98% (6/1;12/1) 12/17/15 02/01/30 100,000,000 - 700,000 99,300,000

200,660,000 - 3,360,000 197,300,000

TOTAL 439,341,000$      -$ 17,461,000$ 421,880,000$      

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Schedule 5
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
DEBT SERVICE AND DEBT SERVICE RESERVE

REQUIRED BY BOND RESOLUTION
For the year ended December 31, 2018

Water Sewer Drainage Water Sewer
Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue
Bonds Bonds Bonds Total Bonds Bonds Total

Cash and investments at beginning of year 9,108,027$          19,022,233$        68,297$                28,198,557$        7,700,000$          10,707,782$        18,407,782$        

Cash receipts:
Bond proceeds and accrued interest -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Transfers from operating cash 

and debt service reserve 13,978,578          28,828,700          2,429,617             45,236,895          -                        -                        -                        
Excess debt service reserve fund applied to

BANS 2006 Maturity -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total receipts 13,978,578          28,828,700          2,429,617             45,236,895          -                        -                        -                        

Cash disbursements:
Principal and interest payments, 

cost of issuance and transfers 13,981,438          29,383,307          2,435,904             45,800,649          -                        -                        

Total cash disbursements 13,981,438          29,383,307          2,435,904             45,800,649          -                        -                        -                        

Cash and investments at end of year 9,105,167$          18,467,626$        62,010$                27,634,803$        7,700,000$          10,707,782$        18,407,782$        

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Debt Service Account Debt Service Reserve Accounts
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Schedule 6
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

CHANGES IN SELF-INSURANCE LIABILITIES BY DEPARTMENT
For the year ended December 31, 2018

Beginning Current Year
of Claims and End of

Year Estimate Change Payments Year
WATER
Short-term:

Workers' compensation 619,984$                   1,867,651$                1,777,732$                709,903$
Health insurance 761,272                     8,549,934                  8,539,109                  772,097

Total short-term 1,381,256                  10,417,585                10,316,841                1,482,000

Long-term:
Workers' compensation 412,116                     (159,637)                    -                             252,479
General liability 4,963,721                  (864,666)                    -                             4,099,055

Total long-term 5,375,837                  (1,024,303)                 -                             4,351,534

Total 6,757,093$                9,393,282$                10,316,841$              5,833,534$

SEWERAGE
Short-term:

Workers' compensation 619,984$                   1,676,723$                1,586,804$                709,903$
Health insurance 725,717                     8,526,691                  8,515,921                  736,487

Total short-term 1,345,701                  10,203,414                10,102,725                1,446,390

Long-term:
Workers' compensation 412,116                     (159,637)                    -                             252,479
General liability 3,790,741                  628,835                     -                             4,419,576

Total long-term 4,202,857                  469,198                     -                             4,672,055

Total 5,548,558$                10,672,612$              10,102,725$              6,118,445$

DRAINAGE
Short-term:

Workers' compensation 619,988$                   1,162,535$                1,072,620$                709,903$
Health insurance 710,511                     4,485,734                  4,479,827                  716,418

Total short-term 1,330,499                  5,648,269                  5,552,447                  1,426,321

Long-term:
Workers' compensation 412,112                     (159,633)                    -                             252,479
General liability 45,112,133                (10,308,526)               11,644                       34,791,963

Total long-term 45,524,245                (10,468,159)               11,644                       35,044,442

Total 46,854,744$              (4,819,890)$               5,564,091$                36,470,763$

TOTAL
Short-term:

Workers' compensation 1,859,956$                4,706,909$                4,437,156$                2,129,709$
Health insurance 2,197,500                  21,562,359                21,534,857                2,225,002

Total short-term 4,057,456                  26,269,268                25,972,013                4,354,711

Long-term:
Workers' compensation 1,236,344                  (478,907)                    -                             757,437
General liability 53,866,595                (10,544,357)               11,644                       43,310,594

Total long-term 55,102,939                (11,023,264)               11,644                       44,068,031

Total 59,160,395$              15,246,004$              25,983,657$              48,422,742$

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Schedule 7
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER
PAYMENTS TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Marcie Edwards, Interim Executive Director January 2018 - May 2018
Jade Brown-Russell, Interim Executive Director May 2018 - August 2018
David Callahan, Interim Executive Director August 2018 - September 2018
Ghassan Korban, Executive Director September 2018 - December 2018

Purpose
Marcia

Edwards
Jade

Brown-Russell
David

Callahan
Ghassan
Korban

Salary 111,923$       141,984$       22,050$         77,461$         
Benefits-hospitalization -                 -                 -                     -                     
Benefits-life insurance -                 -                 -                     46                  
Benefits-retirement -                 -                 -                     4,648             
Reimbursements 235                991                80                  -                     
Relocation/Housing 22,450           -                 -                     8,958             

Total 134,608$       142,975$       22,130$         91,113$         

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Amount
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
SUMMARY OF STATISTICAL INFORMATION 

December 31, 2018 
(Unaudited)

This part of the Board’s Comprehensive Annual Financial report presents detailed information as 
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statement, note disclosure, and 
required supplementary information says about the Board’s overall financial health. 

Financial Trends: 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
Board’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity: 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Board’s most 
significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity: 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
Board’s current levels of outstanding debt and the Board’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information: 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the Board’s financial activities take place. 

Operating Information: 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the Boards financial report relates to the services the Board 
provides and the activities it performs. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited - accrual basis of accounting)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Business-type activities

Net investment in capital assets 2,543,371,049$    2,405,073,361$       2,251,197,095$    2,009,322,572$    2,013,060,377$    1,919,436,757$    1,762,389,823$    1,602,767,538$    1,481,320,632$    1,367,130,463$    

Restricted for debt service 46,042,585           46,606,340              47,217,981           46,199,659           30,846,959           33,405,265           35,186,883           33,137,542           32,774,880           30,040,670           

Unrestricted (344,611,643)       (282,688,257)           (69,993,128)         27,166,084           (114,602,287)       (175,395,265)       (135,165,032)       (97,925,662)         (82,369,095)         (81,717,627)         

Total business-type activities net position 2,244,801,991$    2,168,991,444$       2,228,421,948$    2,082,688,315$    1,929,305,049$    1,777,446,757$    1,662,411,674$    1,537,979,418$    1,431,726,417$    1,315,453,506$    

Source: Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

Year
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited - accrual basis of accounting)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Operating revenues:
  Sales of water and delinquent fees 90,287,081$             90,464,810$             83,158,940$             78,007,937$             70,818,255$             64,398,609$             60,256,304$             59,890,312$             55,079,772$             50,677,054$             
  Sewerage service charges 114,614,157             111,063,719             104,795,184             95,636,966               86,553,262               78,535,785               71,407,835               70,358,076               69,534,779               66,102,946               
  Plumbing inspection and license fees 648,332                    588,330                    638,502                    610,768                    678,352                    643,036                    687,806                    758,072                    746,426                    484,448                    
  Other revenue 5,687,203                 3,451,274                 4,078,380                 8,290,157                 5,024,480                 5,119,368                 4,626,276                 8,581,123                 4,702,753                 3,814,564                 

          Total operating revenues 211,236,773             205,568,133             192,671,006             182,545,828             163,074,349             148,696,798             136,978,221             139,587,583             130,063,730             121,079,012             

Operating Expenses:
  Power and pumping 31,874,462               36,549,229               13,499,216               13,139,255               13,227,389               12,572,620               11,951,746               11,787,614               12,606,851               12,950,788               
  Treatment 22,958,975               25,651,907               20,300,344               18,740,637               19,527,000               18,143,049               18,906,540               18,081,523               19,029,752               19,910,557               
  Transmission and distribution 46,530,018               36,409,559               37,174,706               35,878,137               27,186,606               23,323,900               26,019,713               27,216,035               15,915,361               21,466,523               
  Customer accounts 5,243,276                 4,460,155                 4,151,027                 3,807,405                 3,514,360                 3,425,934                 3,334,652                 3,369,643                 3,314,887                 3,044,936                 
  Customer service 4,476,414                 4,217,543                 4,271,555                 3,973,344                 3,717,925                 3,464,197                 3,332,300                 3,320,100                 3,386,338                 3,417,239                 
  Administration and general 28,253,318               24,343,704               18,506,107               16,848,253               16,976,430               17,333,945               15,879,736               16,054,154               16,060,032               13,504,125               
  Payroll related 49,416,581               38,126,322               43,990,879               36,349,834               32,488,264               34,928,822               33,980,859               34,770,439               33,616,025               35,085,953               
  Maintenance of general plant 28,813,485               26,100,182               23,979,309               27,148,505               28,178,593               27,647,127               24,480,560               25,185,237               30,723,060               24,969,819               
  Depreciation 63,501,190               59,450,076               52,060,674               51,661,651               50,157,869               43,648,267               39,011,955               34,772,279               35,216,611               34,692,628               
  Provision for doubtful accounts 20,942,217               14,326,711               3,413,404                 2,466,117                 1,940,782                 2,052,096                 1,676,511                 867,460                    4,855,325                 889,811                    
  Provision for claims (7,202,684)                45,272,821               6,450,805                 2,435,209                 2,444,878                 1,801,114                 130,704                    (4,680,454)                3,186,714                 58,860                       

          Total operating expenses 294,807,252             314,908,209             227,798,026             212,448,347             199,360,096             188,341,071             178,705,276             170,744,030             177,910,956             169,991,239             

Operating loss (83,570,479)              (109,340,076)           (35,127,020)              (29,902,519)              (36,285,747)              (39,644,273)              (41,727,055)              (31,156,447)              (47,847,226)              (48,912,227)              

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
  Two-mill tax 553 2,735 7,526 4,960 1,193 - - 4,870 1,045 -                                 
  Three-mill tax 15,504,589               15,309,309               16,043,825               14,139,193               13,481,526               13,175,711               12,497,723               11,129,376               10,378,060               10,302,545               
  Six-mill tax 15,576,221               16,229,098               16,215,799               14,290,667               13,626,539               13,317,505               12,630,977               11,242,927               10,498,580               10,410,524               
  Nine-mill tax 23,570,261               23,881,671               23,762,398               21,421,102               20,425,388               19,962,114               18,933,290               16,855,081               15,672,791               15,485,030               
 Other taxes 594,532                    593,424                    564,050                    581,395                    572,083                    494,106                    278,394                    316,079                    333,795                    371,006                    

  Operating and maintenance grants 78,814 845 24,738 2,405 1,502 2,054,492                 7,624,526                 11,479,664               9,367,940                 19,373,185               
  Interest income 3,788,898                 4,273,821                 4,667,470                 2,511,032                 811,263                    353,630                    401,387                    426,870                    274,323                    885,723                    
  Bond issuance costs - - - (1,510,657)                (2,649,339) - - - - -                                 
  Interest expense (3,204,239)                (3,537,336)                (32,471)                     (53,518)                     - (371,349)                   (737,893)                   (736,878)                   (1,687,603)                (1,766,553)                
  Recovery (provision) for grants 3,183,641                 (8,906,949)                - - - - - - - -                                 
  Forgiveness of Community Disaster Loan - - - - - 30,061,368               - - 41,438,410               -                                 

          Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 59,093,270               47,846,618               61,253,335               51,386,579               46,270,155               79,047,577               51,628,404               50,717,989               86,277,341               55,061,460               

Income (loss) before capital contributions (24,477,209)              (61,493,458)              26,126,315               21,484,060               9,984,408                 39,403,304               9,901,349                 19,561,542               38,430,115               6,149,233                 

Capital contributions 100,287,756             96,336,075               119,607,318             131,899,206             141,873,884             114,317,636             114,530,907             115,575,107             48,959,148               60,298,230               

Change in net position 75,810,547               34,842,617               145,733,633             153,383,266             151,858,292             153,720,940 124,432,256             135,136,649             87,389,263               66,447,463               

Net position:
  Beginning of year 2,168,991,444          2,228,421,948          2,082,688,315          1,929,305,049          1,777,446,757          1,662,411,674          1,537,979,418          1,402,842,769          1,315,453,506          1,249,006,043          
  Change in accounting principle - (94,273,121)              - - - (38,685,857)              - - - -                                 
  Beginning of year, as restated 2,168,991,444          2,134,148,827          2,082,688,315          1,929,305,049          1,777,446,757          1,623,725,817          1,537,979,418          1,402,842,769          1,315,453,506          1,249,006,043          

  End of year 2,244,801,991$       2,168,991,444$       2,228,421,948$       2,082,688,315$       1,929,305,049$       1,777,446,757$       1,662,411,674$       1,537,979,418$       1,402,842,769$       1,315,453,506$       

Source: Audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports - Information available for nine years
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
REVENUE AND EXPENSES BY SOURCE

ENTERPRISE FUND
Last Ten Years

(Unaudited)

Revenues 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Charges for service 117,264,448$      125,360,977$      131,006,460$      132,351,945$      143,577,430$      158,049,869$      174,255,671$      188,592,626$      202,116,859$      205,549,570$      
Dedicated taxes 36,198,099          36,549,431          39,227,384          44,061,990          46,455,330          47,533,453          49,850,962          56,022,022          55,420,078          54,651,071          
Two-mill tax -                      1,045                  4,870                  -                      -                      1,193                  4,960                  7,526                  2,735                  553                     
Interest on investments 885,723               274,323               426,870               401,387               353,630               811,263               2,511,046            4,667,470            4,273,821            3,788,898            
Other taxes and revenue 23,558,755          55,842,898          20,376,866          12,529,196          37,729,334          5,598,065            7,363,300            4,667,168            4,045,543            6,360,549            

177,907,025$      218,028,674$      191,042,450$      189,344,518$      228,115,724$      211,993,843$      233,985,939$      253,956,812$      265,859,036$      270,350,641$      

Expenses 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Personnel services 74,540,678$        72,725,464$        73,834,142$        74,358,288$        75,998,997$        76,009,536$        81,094,850$        88,422,754$        85,643,784$        107,582,424$      
Services and utilities 50,787,395          47,125,394          42,417,785          40,621,806          44,686,711          46,739,864          46,321,849          48,095,715          56,047,431          51,770,073          
Materials and supplies 8,880,950            12,535,610          23,532,818          22,906,012          20,153,886          22,067,167          28,468,671          29,354,674          54,170,680          58,214,032          
Depreciation and 
     amortization 34,833,545          35,381,030          34,850,026          39,011,955          43,648,267          50,157,869          51,661,651          52,060,674          59,450,076          63,501,190          
Provision for doubtful
     accounts 889,811               4,855,325            867,460               1,676,511            2,052,096            1,940,782            2,466,131            3,413,404            14,326,711          20,942,217          
Provision for claims 58,860                3,186,714            (4,680,454)          130,704               1,801,114            2,444,878            2,435,209            6,450,805            45,272,821          (7,202,684)          
Provision for grants -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      8,906,949            (3,183,641)          
Bond issuance costs -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,649,339            1,510,657            -                      -                      -                      
Interest 1,766,553            1,687,603            736,878               737,893               371,349               -                      53,518                32,471                3,537,336            3,204,239            

171,757,792$      177,497,140$      171,558,655$      179,443,169$      188,712,420$      202,009,435$      214,012,536$      227,830,497$      327,355,788$      294,827,850$      
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Ratio of Total
Net Assessed

Total Net to Total
Fiscal Assessed Total Estimated Estimated
Year Real Estate Personal Property  Value Actual Value (1) Actual Value

2009 2,042,426               557,039                  2,599,465 21,974,841             11.8%
2010 2,489,813               387,334                  2,877,147 21,974,841             13.1%
2011 2,584,334               385,700                  2,970,034 21,974,841             13.5%
2012 2,760,973               390,952                  3,151,925 21,974,841             14.3%
2013 2,920,015               413,120                  3,333,135 21,974,841             15.2%
2014 3,065,164               405,514                  3,470,678 21,974,841             15.8%
2015 3,202,063               431,355                  3,633,418 21,974,841             16.5%
2016 3,376,001               456,454                  3,832,455 30,873,272             12.4%
2017 3,481,746               471,986                  3,953,732 35,475,355             11.1%
2018 3,592,392               497,655                  3,789,022 35,475,355             10.7%

(1) Last available information is 2017.

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited - amounts in thousands)

Net Assessed Value
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Sewerage &
Orleans Water Board Orleans Audubon

Fiscal City of Levee District Algiers of Parish Park &
Year New Orleans Eastbank Levee District New Orleans School Board Zoo Total

2009 61.34 10.95 12.76       16.03** 38.47 3.31 130.10
2010 64.31 11.67 12.76       16.43** 44.12 3.31 140.93
2011 72.05 11.67 12.76       16.43** 44.12 3.31 148.67
2012 72.05 11.67 12.76       16.43** 43.6 3.31 148.15
2013 72.05 11.67 12.36       16.43** 44.81 3.31 136.60
2014 72.05 11.67 12.76       16.43** 45.31 3.31 147.58
2015 71.95 11.67 12.56       16.43** 45.31 3.31 149.56
2016 74.45 12.28 6.21       16.43** 45.31 3.31  145.71
2017 60.98 12.28 12.56       16.43** 45.31 3.31 134.44
2018 60.98 12.28 12.56       16.43** 45.31 3.31 134.44

Source:  City of New Orleans

**3 mills adopted in 1967 expires in 2046

**6 mills adopted in 1978 expires in 2027

**9 mills adopted in 1982 expires in 2032

(Per $1,000 of  assessed value)

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Number of Mills
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 Percentage
 2018 of Total

Type of Assessed Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Business Value Value

Entergy Service Electric & Gas Utilities  114,443$        3.02%
Capital One Bank Financial Institution 47,329            1.25%
Marriott Hotel Hospitality 32,944            0.87%
Bellsouth Telephone Utilities 31,241            0.82%
WhitneyBk/Hancock Bk Financial Institution 30,697            0.81%
Harrah"s Entertainment Hospitality & Gaming 26,582             0.70%
J P Morgan Chase Bank Financial Institution 22,067            0.58%
Folgers Coffee Coffee Roasting Plant 19,740            0.52%
International Rivercenter Real Estate 18,105            0.48%
Sheraton Hotel Hospitality 16,898            0.45%

360,046$        9.50%

 Percentage
 2008 of Total

Type of Assessed Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Business Value Value

Entergy Service Electric & Gas Utilities  63,919$          2.53%
Bellsouth Telecommunications Telephone Utilities 57,127            2.26%
Capital One/Hibernia Bank Financial Institution 46,409            1.83%
Whitney National Bank Financial Institution 35,163            1.39%
Harrah"s Entertainment Hospitality & Gaming 41,221            1.63%
J P Morgan Chase Bank Financial Institution 19,173            0.76%
CS&M Association (Sheraton) Managed Care 19,197             0.76%
International Rivercenter Real Estate 19,907            0.79%
Marriott Hotel Properties Hospitality 13,723            0.54%
Hertz Properties Real Estate 10,877            0.43%

326,716$        12.92%

Source: City of New Orleans Department of Finance Bureau of the Treasury

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS

 December 31, 2018 and Ten Years Ago 2008
(Amount in thousands)

(Unaudited)
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Collections in
Subsequent

Fiscal Years Percentage
Year Total Levied Amount Percent Amount Amount of Levy

Real Estate Taxes:

2009 275,869$     257,219$     93.24% 17,061$        274,280$    99.42%
2010 309,800       291,078       93.96% 16,641          307,719      99.33%
2011 339,370       320,437       94.42% 16,394          336,831      99.25%
2012 362,262       342,248       94.48% 17,109          359,357      99.20%
2013 382,902       363,026       94.81% 16,730          379,756      99.18%
2014 393,304       375,815       95.55% 13,527          389,342      98.99%
2015 422,306       397,843       94.21% 20,637          418,480      99.09%
2016 457,800       442,153       96.58% 10,381          452,534      98.85%
2017 480,924       458,767       95.39% 15,233          474,000      98.56%
2018 497,718       481,642       96.77% -                   481,642      96.77%

Personal Property Taxes:

2009 69,935$       63,118$       90.25% 6,762$          69,880$      99.92%
2010 74,530         68,508         91.92% 6,022            74,530        100.00%
2011 78,996         74,204         93.93% 4,637            78,841        99.80%
2012 81,685         78,275         95.83% 3,251            81,526        99.81%
2013 87,058         84,410         96.96% 981               85,391        98.09%
2014 84,620         81,926         96.82% 797               82,723        97.76%
2015 86,961         81,773         94.03% 2,961            84,734        97.44%
2016 92,428         88,797         96.07% 966               89,763        97.12%
2017 96,441         92,123         95.52% 242               92,365        95.77%
2018 101,280      94,862         93.66% -                   94,862        93.66%

Source:  City of New Orleans

Fiscal year of the Levy

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
PROPERTY TAX

LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS  BY THE CITY OF NEW ORLEANS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited - Amounts in Thousands)

Collected within Total Collections to Date
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
WATER AND SEWER RATES

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Water Sewer

Year
Monthly

Base Rate
First 3,000 

Gallons
Next 17,000 

Gallons

Next
980,000
Gallons

All Gallons 
Over

1,000,000
Monthly

Base Rate

Rate per 
1,000

Gallons

2009 3.70$         2.47$         4.21$         3.31$         2.78$         11.60$       4.04$         
2010 3.90$         2.59$         4.42$         3.48$         2.92$         11.60$       4.04$         
2011 4.05$         2.69$         4.60$         3.62$         3.04$         11.60$       4.04$         
2012 4.05$         2.69$         4.60$         3.62$         3.04$         11.60$       4.04$         
2013 4.91$         2.96$         5.06$         3.98$         3.34$         14.04$       4.44$         
2014 4.91$         3.26$         5.57$         4.38$         3.67$         14.04$       4.88$         
2015 5.40$         3.59$         6.13$         4.82$         4.04$         15.44$       5.37$         
2016 5.94$         3.95$         6.74$         5.30$         4.44$         16.98$       5.91$         
2017 6.53$         4.35$         7.41$         5.83$         4.88$         18.68$       6.50$         
2018 7.18$         4.79$         8.15$         6.41$         5.37$         20.55$ 7.15$         

Note: Rates are based on 5/8" meter, which is the standard household meter size.

Rate per 1,000 Gallons
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Special Debt Service
Personal Community Assistance Percentage

Fiscal Income (1) Population Revenue Special Tax LDHH Disaster Loan Fund Total of Personal Debt per
Year (in thousands) (2) Bonds Bonds Bonds Payable Loan Debt Income Capita

2009 15,260,613$       354,850 221,958,520$       21,525,000$       -$            61,956,747$ 77,460,393$ 382,900,660$ 3.99% 1,079$         
2010 15,260,613 347,907 208,422,155         20,290,000         632,842      25,166,747 77,460,393 331,972,137 4.60% 954              
2011 15,260,613 360,740         194,330,103         18,990,000         1,503,834   25,166,747 77,465,247 317,455,931 4.81% 880              
2012 15,346,678 369,250         186,832,906         17,630,000         1,998,636   25,166,747 73,776,967 305,405,256 5.03% 827              
2013 15,888,893 378,715         172,192,129         16,205,000         3,865          - 69,917,529 258,318,523 6.15% 682              
2014 16,437,492 378,715 292,068,863 14,870,042 3,865          - 41,317,444 348,260,214 4.72% 920              
2015 18,032,254 389,617 504,808,633 12,750,000 -              - 61,653,139 579,211,772 3.11% 1,487           
2016 14,094,612 391,495 488,835,158 11,100,000 -              - 57,230,725 557,165,883 2.53% 1,423           
2017 ` 14,094,612 393,292 488,835,158 9,410,000 -              - 52,604,006 550,849,164 2.56% 1,401           
2018 14,094,612         (3) 393,292         (4) 451,932,050 7,665,000 -              - 47,756,909 507,353,959 2.78% 1,290           

(1) Source:  Bureau of Economic Analysis.
(2) Source:  www.census.gov/popest.
(3) Most recent available is as of 2016
(4)

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Most recent available is as of 2017

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
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Net
Outstanding Percentage Overlapping

        Debt Overlapping            Debt           

Direct debt:

    Sewerage and Water Board, 6,475,000$         100% 6,475,000$              
     net of debt service funds
     (tax bonds only)

Overlapping debt:
    City of New Orleans 535,177,062       100% 535,177,062             
    Audubon Park Commission 13,590               100% 13,590                     
    Orleans Parish School Board (1) 10,405               100% 10,405                     

Total overlapping debt 535,201,057       100% 535,201,057             

Total direct and overlapping debt 541,676,057$     100% 541,676,057$           

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

December 31, 2018
(Unaudited)

(1)    The fiscal year of the Orleans Parish School Board is June 30th;  The overlapping debt is based on June 
30.

III-10



(3)
Direct Net Revenue

Fiscal Operating Operating Available for
Year Revenue Expenses Debt Services Principal Interest Total Coverage

2014 74,221,260 66,607,501 7,613,759 - 2,829,414 2,829,414 2.69

2015 (1) 82,957,551 71,168,572 11,788,979 - 3,500,000 3,500,000 3.37

2016 (1) 88,366,278 75,002,591 13,363,687 325,000 7,646,525 7,971,525 1.68

2017 94,657,534 77,838,026 16,819,508 2,540,000 10,100,550 12,640,550 1.33

2018 (2) 103,514,199 80,839,797 22,674,402 3,360,000 9,973,550 13,333,550 1.70

(1) The 2015 and 2016 Debt Service Coverage Ratios have been recast based upon the opinion of  
the Qualifed Independent Consultant

(2) See Note 20 to the financial statements

(3) Total operating expenses less depreciation, change in total OPEB liability, net pension liability 
and related amortization of deferred inflows and outflows of resources.

Debt Services Requirements

 SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
REVENUE BONDS DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

WATER REVENUE BONDS
Last Five Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
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(3)
Direct Net Revenue

Fiscal Operating Operating Available for
Year Revenue Expenses Debt Services Principal Interest Total Coverage

2014 88,756,831 45,943,518 42,813,313 13,695,000 5,445,799 19,140,799 2.24

2015 (1) 98,166,699 50,196,374 47,970,325 11,644,000 4,750,603 16,394,603 2.93

2016 (1) 108,241,219 57,142,277 51,098,942 12,852,000 10,463,838 23,315,838 2.19

2017 114,318,485 64,686,410 49,632,075 13,392,000 11,413,498 24,805,498 2.00

2018 (2) 118,029,837 81,270,955 36,758,882 12,356,000 10,783,057 23,139,057 1.59

(1) The 2015 and 2016 Debt Service Coverage Ratios have been recast based upon the opinion of  
the Qualifed Independent Consultant

(2) See Note 20 to the financial statements

(3) Total operating expenses less depreciation, change in total OPEB liability, net pension liability 
and related amortization of deferred inflows and outflows of resources.

Debt Services Requirements

 SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
REVENUE BONDS DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

 SEWER REVENUE BONDS
Last Five Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
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Fiscal
 Year

Cash
 Balance

One Day 
O&M Measurement

2014 32,497,474$ 188,711$ 172.21

2015 39,253,304 194,982 201.32

2016 38,383,800 205,487 186.79

2017 29,823,726 213,255 139.85

2018 38,771,396 221,479 175.06

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
WATER SYSTEM UNRESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

DAYS OF OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE AT YEAR END
Last Five Fiscal Years

(unaudited)
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Fiscal
 Year

Cash
 Balance

One Day 
O&M Measurement

2014 26,736,696 130,990 204.11

2015 40,267,802 137,524 292.80

2016 62,584,566 156,554 399.76

2017 52,923,266 177,223 298.63

2018 30,953,937 222,660 139.02

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
SEWER SYSTEM UNRESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

DAYS OF OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE AT YEAR END
Last Five Fiscal Years

(unaudited)
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Personal
Fiscal Income(2) Per Capita Unemployment 
Year Population(1) (in thousands) Personal Income Rate (3)

2009 354,850 15,260,613$    35,507$           6.80%
2010 354,850 15,260,613$    35,507$           8.50%
2011 343,829 13,264,235$     38,578$           7.30%
2012 369,250           15,346,678$    41,562$           5.50%
2013 378,715           15,888,893$    41,955$           4.20%
2014 378,715           16,437,492$    43,403$           7.50%
2015 389,617           18,032,254$    46,282$           6.00%
2016 391,495           14,094,612$    36,792$           5.40%
2017 393,292            14,094,612$    35,838$           5.41%
2018 393,292           (4) 14,094,612$    (4) 35,838$           (4) 3.09%

(1)  www.census.gov/popest.
(2) Estimates- Bureau of Economic Analysis.
(3) U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.
(4) Most recent available is 2017.

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years
 (Unaudited)

III-15



( 1 ) ( 2 ) ( 2 ) ( 2 ) ( 2 )
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Acme Truck Line Inc. 8 / 2,500 10 / 3,100 10 / 3,100 10 / 3,100 10 / 3,100 10 / 3,100
Al Copeland Investments 7 / 2,000 7 / 2,000 9 / 2,200 9 / 2,000
Boh Bros. Construction 9 / 1,500 9 / 1,500
Boomtown Casino Westbank
Capital One Bank N.A. 6 / 2,150 6 / 2,150 8 / 2,150
City of New Orleans
Dow Chemical Company 8 / 2,000 8 / 2,000 10 / 2,000
East Jefferson General Hospital 5 / 3,150
Harrah's New Orleans Casino 5 / 2,200 5 / 2,200 7 / 2,700 7 / 2,200 7 / 2,700
Hilton New Orleans 10 / 1,400 10 / 1,400 4 / 5,000 4 / 5,000 4 / 5,000 4 / 5,000 4 / 5,000
Hope Haven Center
Houma Industries
Ingalls Shipbuilding 3 / 6,000 3 / 6,000 3 / 6,000 3 / 6,000 3 / 6,000
JCC Holding Co. LLC
Lockheed Martin Manned Space Systems 4 / 2,832 4 / 2,832 7 / 2,800
Louisiana Children's Medical Center 7 / 4,500 7 / 4,500 7 / 4,500 7 / 4,500 7 / 4,500
LSU Health Sciences Center New Orleans 2 / 7,000 3 / 5,000 2 / 7,000 2 / 7,000 2 / 7,000 2 / 7,000 2 / 7,000 2 / 7,000
LSU Public Hospital 5 / 5,000 5 / 5,000 5 / 5,000 5 / 5,000 5 / 5,000
NASA Michoud 10 / 2,000 9 / 2,000
North Oaks Health System 7 / 2,700
Northrup Grumman Avondale 2 / 5,400 2 / 5,400 3 / 6,000 2 / 5,400 3 / 6,000
Ochsner Medical Institutions / Health System 1 / 9,107 1 / 9,107 1 / 9,800 1 / 9,100 1 / 9,100 1 / 9,800 1 / 9,800 1 / 9,800 1 / 9,800 1 / 9,800
Superior Energy Services, Inc.
Textron Marine & Land Systems
Tulane University 3 / 4,410 3 / 4,410 4 / 5,000 4 / 4,400 4 / 5,000 6 / 4,700 6 / 4,700 6 / 4,700 6 / 4,700 6 / 4,700
University of New Orleans 6 / 3,114 6 / 3,114 9 / 3,100 9 / 3,100 9 / 3,100 9 / 3,100 9 / 3,100
US Post Office 5 / 4,000 6 / 2,900 5 / 4,000 8 / 4,000 8 / 4,000 8 / 4,000 8 / 4,000 8 / 4,000
USDA, National Finance Center
West Jefferson Medical Center 10 / 1,904

( 1 ) Source: Greater New Orleans Inc. and New Orleans City Business
( 2 ) Most recent available is as of March 2014.

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
NEW ORLEANS AREA PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Rank / Number of Employees
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT

ENTERPRISE FUND
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Year Water Sewer Drainage Total

2009 22,465,931               56,010,946               47,185,424               125,662,301

2010 32,248,119               58,682,400               51,465,065               142,395,584

2011 20,374,785               53,662,611               66,821,905               140,859,301

2012 33,888,620               60,658,231               90,435,159               184,982,010

2013 37,552,122               63,172,589               79,811,759               180,536,470

2014 46,604,884               58,870,182               152,172,018             257,647,084

2015 42,638,486               56,387,080               152,172,018             251,197,584

2016 46,106,462               48,975,578               167,051,515             262,133,555

2016 89,887,813               85,066,607               151,533,673             326,488,093

2018 72,486,981               66,802,398               108,035,976             247,325,355

1 Includes contributed assets
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Series
2014

Series
2015

All Bonds
Issues

2019 Principal 2,800,000$     775,000$        3,575,000$     
Interest 4,900,000       4,919,550       9,819,550       

2020 Principal 2,930,000       895,000          3,825,000       
Interest 4,760,000       4,888,550       9,648,550       

2021 Principal 3,070,000       935,000          4,005,000       
Interest 4,613,500       4,852,750       9,466,250       

2022 Principal 3,225,000       970,000          4,195,000       
Interest 4,460,000       4,815,350       9,275,350       

2023 Principal 2,230,000       2,155,000       4,385,000       
Interest 4,298,750       4,786,250       9,085,000       

2024 Principal 2,345,000       2,260,000       4,605,000       
Interest 4,187,250       4,678,500       8,865,750       

2025 Principal 2,460,000       2,375,000       4,835,000       
Interest 4,070,000       4,565,500       8,635,500       

2026 Principal 2,585,000       2,490,000       5,075,000       
Interest 3,947,000       4,446,750       8,393,750       

2027 Principal 2,715,000       2,615,000       5,330,000       
Interest 3,817,750       4,322,250       8,140,000       

2028 Principal 2,850,000       2,750,000       5,600,000       
Interest 3,682,000       4,191,500       7,873,500       

2029 Principal 2,990,000       2,885,000       5,875,000       
Interest 3,539,500       4,054,000       7,593,500       

2030 Principal 3,140,000       3,030,000       6,170,000       
Interest 3,390,000       3,909,750       7,299,750       

2031 Principal 3,300,000       3,180,000       6,480,000       
Interest 3,233,000       3,758,250       6,991,250       

2032 Principal 3,460,000       3,345,000       6,805,000       
Interest 3,068,000       3,599,250       6,667,250       

2033 Principal 3,635,000       3,510,000       7,145,000       
Interest 2,895,000       3,432,000       6,327,000       

2034 Principal 3,820,000       3,680,000       7,500,000       
Interest 2,713,250       3,256,500       5,969,750       

2035 Principal 4,010,000       3,865,000       7,875,000       
Interest 2,522,250       3,072,500       5,594,750       

2036 Principal 4,210,000       4,060,000       8,270,000       
Interest 2,321,750       2,879,250       5,201,000       

2037 Principal 4,420,000       4,265,000       8,685,000       
Interest 2,111,250       2,676,250       4,787,500       

2038 Principal 4,645,000       4,475,000       9,120,000       
Interest 1,890,250       2,463,000       4,353,250       

2039 Principal 4,875,000       4,700,000       9,575,000       
Interest 1,658,000       2,239,250       3,897,250       

2040 Principal 5,120,000       4,930,000       10,050,000     
Interest 1,414,250       2,004,250       3,418,500       

2041 Principal 5,370,000       5,185,000       10,555,000     
Interest 1,158,250       1,757,750       2,916,000       

2042 Principal 5,645,000       5,435,000       11,080,000     
Interest 889,750          1,498,500       2,388,250       

2043 Principal 5,925,000       5,710,000       11,635,000     
Interest 607,500 1,226,750       1,834,250       

2044 Principal 6,225,000       5,995,000       12,220,000     
Interest 311,250          941,250          1,252,500       

2045 Principal -                  12,830,000     12,830,000     
Interest -                  641,500          641,500          

Total Principal 98,000,000     99,300,000     197,300,000   
Total Interest 76,459,500     89,876,950     166,336,450   
Total Future Debt Payments 174,459,500$ 189,176,950$ 363,636,450$

Water Revenue Bonds 

SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT PAYMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Unaudited)

III-18



SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT PAYMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Unaudited)

Series Series Series 
2011 2014 2015 Total

2019 Principal 435,000$           11,075,000$      -$                   11,510,000$      
Interest 28,379               5,142,450          5,000,000          10,170,829        

2020 Principal 439,000             11,660,000        -                     12,099,000        
Interest 26,421               4,574,075          5,000,000          9,600,496          

2021 Principal 443,000             9,050,000          2,000,000          11,493,000        
Interest 24,446               4,056,325          4,950,000          9,030,771          

2022 Principal 447,000             7,445,000          2,000,000          9,892,000          
Interest 22,452               3,643,950          4,850,000          8,516,402          

2023 Principal 451,000             3,920,000          2,000,000          6,371,000          
Interest 20,440               3,359,825          4,750,000          8,130,265          

2024 Principal 456,000           3,760,000        2,000,000        6,216,000          
Interest 18,412             3,167,825        4,650,000        7,836,237          

2025 Principal 460,000             1,970,000          2,125,000          4,555,000          
Interest 16,360             3,024,575        4,546,875        7,587,810          

2026 Principal 464,000             2,070,000          2,235,000          4,769,000          
Interest 14,290               2,923,575          4,437,875          7,375,740          

2027 Principal 469,000             2,175,000          2,350,000          4,994,000          
Interest 12,202               2,817,450          4,323,250          7,152,902          

2028 Principal 473,000             2,280,000          2,480,000          5,233,000          
Interest 10,090 2,706,075 4,202,500        6,918,665          

2029 Principal 478,000             2,395,000          2,610,000          5,483,000          
Interest 7,962                 2,589,200          4,075,250          6,672,412          

2030 Principal 482,000           2,515,000        2,735,000        5,732,000          
Interest 5,812                 2,475,881          3,941,625          6,423,318          

2031 Principal 487,000             2,620,000          2,880,000          5,987,000          
Interest 3,642                 2,366,762          3,801,250          6,171,654          

2032 Principal 491,000             2,735,000          3,025,000          6,251,000          
Interest 1,450                 2,252,969          3,653,625          5,908,044          

2033 Principal -                     2,850,000          3,695,000          6,545,000          
Interest -                     2,134,287          3,485,625          5,619,912          

2034 Principal -                     2,970,000          3,885,000          6,855,000          
Interest -                     2,010,613          3,296,125          5,306,738          

2035 Principal -                     3,095,000          4,100,000          7,195,000          
Interest -                     1,870,125          3,096,500          4,966,625          

2036 Principal -                     3,250,000          4,315,000          7,565,000          
Interest -                     1,711,500          2,886,125          4,597,625          

2037 Principal -                     3,415,000          4,540,000          7,955,000          
Interest -                     1,544,875          2,664,750          4,209,625          

2038 Principal -                     3,585,000          4,775,000          8,360,000          
Interest -                     1,369,875          2,431,875 3,801,750          

2039 Principal -                     3,765,000          5,025,000          8,790,000          
Interest -                     1,186,125          2,186,875          3,373,000          

2040 Principal -                     3,950,000          5,290,000          9,240,000          
Interest -                     993,250             1,929,000          2,922,250          

2041 Principal -                     4,150,000          5,565,000          9,715,000          
Interest -                     790,750             1,657,625          2,448,375          

2042 Principal -                     4,360,000          5,855,000          10,215,000        
Interest -                     578,000             1,372,125          1,950,125          

2043 Principal -                     4,575,000          6,165,000          10,740,000        
Interest -                     354,625             1,071,625          1,426,250          

2044 Principal - 4,805,000 6,485,000 11,290,000        
Interest -                     120,125             755,375             875,500             

2045 Principal -                     -                     11,865,000        11,865,000        
Interest -                     -                     296,625             296,625             

Total Principal 6,475,000          110,440,000      100,000,000      216,915,000      
Total Interest 212,358             59,765,087        89,312,500        149,289,945      
Total Future Debt Payments 6,687,358          170,205,087      189,312,500      366,204,945      

Sewer Revenue Bonds 

SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
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Series
2014

All Bonds
Issues

2019 Principal 1,815,000$        1,815,000$      

Interest 213,550             213,550           

2020 Principal 1,895,000          1,895,000        

Interest 140,950             140,950           

2021 Principal 1,955,000          1,955,000        

Interest 84,100               84,100             

2022 Principal 2,000,000          2,000,000        

Interest 45,000               45,000             

Total Principal 7,665,000          7,665,000        

Total Interest 483,600             483,600           

Total Future Debt Payments 8,148,600$        8,148,600$      

(Unaudited)

DECEMBER 31, 2018

SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT PAYMENTS

SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

Drainage Special Tax Bonds
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Water Sewer Drainage Total

2019 Principal 3,575,000$           11,510,000$         1,815,000$           16,900,000$         
Interest 9,819,550            10,170,829          213,550               20,203,929          

2020 Principal 3,825,000            12,099,000          1,895,000            17,819,000          
Interest 9,648,550            9,600,496            140,950               19,389,996          

2021 Principal 4,005,000            11,493,000          1,955,000            17,453,000          
Interest 9,466,250            9,030,771            84,100                 18,581,121          

2022 Principal 4,195,000            9,892,000            2,000,000            16,087,000          
Interest 9,275,350            8,516,402            45,000                 17,836,752          

2023 Principal 4,385,000            6,371,000            -                       10,756,000          
Interest 9,085,000            8,130,265            -                       17,215,265          

2024 Principal 4,605,000            6,216,000            -                       10,821,000          
Interest 8,865,750            7,836,237            -                       16,701,987          

2025 Principal 4,835,000            4,555,000            -                       9,390,000            
Interest 8,635,500            7,587,810            -                       16,223,310          

2026 Principal 5,075,000            4,769,000            -                       9,844,000            
Interest 8,393,750            7,375,740            -                       15,769,490          

2027 Principal 5,330,000            4,994,000            -                       10,324,000          
Interest 8,140,000            7,152,902            -                       15,292,902          

2028 Principal 5,600,000            5,233,000            -                       10,833,000          
Interest 7,873,500            6,918,665            -                       14,792,165          

2029 Principal 5,875,000 5,483,000            -                       11,358,000          
Interest 7,593,500            6,672,412            -                       14,265,912          

2030 Principal 6,170,000            5,732,000            -                       11,902,000          
Interest 7,299,750            6,423,318            -                       13,723,068          

2031 Principal 6,480,000            5,987,000            -                       12,467,000          
Interest 6,991,250            6,171,654            -                       13,162,904          

2032 Principal 6,805,000            6,251,000            -                       13,056,000          
Interest 6,667,250            5,908,044            -                       12,575,294          

2033 Principal 7,145,000            6,545,000            -                       13,690,000          
Interest 6,327,000            5,619,912            -                       11,946,912          

2034 Principal 7,500,000            6,855,000            -                       14,355,000          
Interest 5,969,750            5,306,738            -                       11,276,488          

2035 Principal 7,875,000            7,195,000            -                       15,070,000          
Interest 5,594,750            4,966,625            -                       10,561,375          

2036 Principal 8,270,000            7,565,000            -                       15,835,000          
Interest 5,201,000            4,597,625            -                       9,798,625            

2037 Principal 8,685,000            7,955,000            -                       16,640,000          
Interest 4,787,500            4,209,625            -                       8,997,125            

2038 Principal 9,120,000            8,360,000            -                       17,480,000          
Interest 4,353,250            3,801,750            -                       8,155,000            

2039 Principal 9,575,000            8,790,000 -                       18,365,000          
Interest 3,897,250            3,373,000            -                       7,270,250            

2040 Principal 10,050,000          9,240,000            -                       19,290,000          
Interest 3,418,500            2,922,250            -                       6,340,750            

2041 Principal 10,555,000          9,715,000            -                       20,270,000          
Interest 2,916,000            2,448,375            -                       5,364,375            

2042 Principal 11,080,000          10,215,000          -                       21,295,000          
Interest 2,388,250            1,950,125            -                       4,338,375            

2043 Principal 11,635,000          10,740,000          -                       22,375,000          
Interest 1,834,250            1,426,250            -                       3,260,500            

2044 Principal 12,220,000          11,290,000          -                       23,510,000          
Interest 1,252,500            875,500               -                       2,128,000            

2045 Principal 12,830,000          11,865,000          -                       24,695,000          
Interest 641,500               296,625               -                       938,125               

Total Principal 197,300,000        216,915,000        7,665,000            421,880,000        
Total Interest 166,336,450        149,289,945        483,600               316,109,995        
Total Future Debt Payments 363,636,450$       366,204,945$       8,148,600$           737,989,995$       

All Departments

SEWERAGE & WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
SCHEDULE OF FUTURE DEBT PAYMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Unaudited)
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New Commercial New Residential
Construction (1) Construction (1) Bank

Fiscal Number Value Number Value deposits (2)
Year of units (in thousands) of units (in thousands) (in thousands)

2009 364 220,748$ 1,862 227,714$ 10,480,561$
2010 349 549,906 1,102 160,331 12,175,831
2011 365 266,981 1,047 161,875 10,024,118
2012 10,862,390
2013 15,738,913
2014 16,043,233
2015 11,211,760
2016 16,706,112
2017 16,701,964
2018 15,293,912

(1) City of New Orleans (2011 latest year for which information is available).

(2) Summary of Deposits (as of June 30, 2018) - bank branches located in New Orleans, Federal Depository Insurance Corpora

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
PROPERTY VALUE, NEW CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Water:

Water Lines [miles] 1,587         1,590         1,597         1,599         1,805         1,812         1,819         1,823         1,826         1,834         
Water Manholes 29,741       29,957       30,150       30,194       30,297       30,402       30,463       30,508       30,586       30,650       
Water Valves 29,277       29,366       29,611       29,521       29,629       29,730       29,791       29,831       29,940       29,990       
Fire Hydrants 22,894       22,989       23,045       23,078       23,099       23,117       23,130       23,146       23,214       23,264       

Sewer:
Sewer Lines [miles] 1,512         1,518         1,519         1,520         1,536         1,547         1,561         1,568         1,585         1,602         
Sewer Manholes 22,998       23,047       22,977       22,983       22,987       23,042       23,051       23,115       23,158       23,208       

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
 ANNUAL REPORT 2018 - FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
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Year Number of Active Employees

2018 1210

2017 1083

2016 1108

2015 1183

2014 1060

2013 1025

2012 991

2011 994

2010 974

2009 964

  Source:  Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans.

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
NUMBER OF ACTIVE EMPLOYEES

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
ANALYSIS OF PUMPING AND POWER DEPARTMENT

POWER PURCHASED AND PRODUCED
NATURAL GAS AND FUEL OIL CONSUMED

TEN YEARS 2009 THROUGH 2018

ELECTRIC POWER ESTIMATED ELECTRIC POWER   NATURAL GAS & FUEL OIL USED
YEAR PURCHASED GENERATED BY TO GENERATE ELECTRIC POWER

THE S&WB NATURAL GAS        FUEL OIL
KW-HRS $ AMOUNT KW-HRS $ AMOUNT MCF $ AMOUNT GALLONS $ AMOUNT

2009 67,889,778 $6,422,589 37,716,720 $10,651,094 1,449,540 $10,651,094 0 $0
2010 70,609,461 $6,653,752 39,090,720 $9,719,013 1,332,770 $9,669,414 12,883 $49,600
2011 70,049,094 $6,180,373 27,351,600 $10,721,624 1,552,330 $10,721,356 315 $268
2012 63,873,900 $5,941,992 44,819,460 $9,180,160 1,605,720 $9,174,678 1,459 $5,482
2013 67,980,940 $6,725,811 35,005,422 $11,648,150 1,830,890 $11,648,148 9 $34
2014 68,632,618 $7,052,078 32,407,296 $12,442,213 1,643,347 $12,442,282 9 $69
2015 73,123,062 $6,660,862 29,217,520 $9,483,132 1,780,110 $9,483,132 0 $0
2016 69,736,118 $7,081,051 33,182,519 $9,082,988 1,854,370 $9,082,988 0 $0
2017 70,728,827 $7,969,494 32,540,663 $10,183,627 1,817,671 $10,183,627 84,040 $252,120
2018 72,722,564 $7,985,028 34,262,650 $10,476,819 1,896,920 $10,476,819 0 $0

   TOTALS 695,346,362 68,673,030 345,594,570 103,588,819 16,763,668 103,533,537 98,715 307,572
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW 
ORLEANS POWER PURCHASED AND 

PRODUCED
NATURAL GAS AND FUEL OIL CONSUMED - 2018

KW-HOURS COST 
ELECTRIC POWER PURCHASED 72,722,564 $7,985,028.21
ELECTRIC AND STEAM POWER
GENERATED BY THE S.& W.B.* 34,262,650 $10,476,818.82

TOTAL 106,985,214 $18,461,847.03

NOTE: *NATURAL GAS CONSUMED IN OPERATION WAS 1,896,920 MCF 
AT A COST OF $10,476,819. FUEL OIL CONSUMED WAS 0 GALLONS
AT A COST OF $0 
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Month Consumption

January 980,095,400

February 1,020,374,000

March 1,118,645,600

April 906,431,300

May 957,630,000

June 890,082,400

July 998,092,900

August 1,202,002,700

September 1,146,198,300

October 1,351,968,600

November 1,067,222,300

December 1,024,741,700

Total Customer Water Metered 12,663,485,200

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
PAY WATER CONSUMPTION (IN GALLONS)

December 31, 2018
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
                 MONTHLY WATER CHARGES COLLECTED - 2018

Water Service Delinquent
Months Charges & Fees Fees Total

January  6,337,561$            46,835$              6,384,396$          
February 6,485,484              32,656                6,518,140            
March 7,777,853              35,236                7,813,089            
April 7,233,873              18,097                7,251,970            
May 6,949,781              15,720                6,965,501            
June 6,136,949              13,531                6,150,480            
July 6,913,765              10,871                6,924,636            
August 8,506,938              40,961                8,547,899            
September 5,682,593              49,523                5,732,116            
October 8,453,533              89,783                8,543,316            
November 7,515,785              95,375                7,611,160            
December 6,883,864              99,417                6,983,281            

84,877,979$          548,005$           85,425,984$        

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
MONTHLY SEWERAGE CHARGES COLLECTED - 2018

Sewerage Service Delinquent
Months  Charges Fees Total

January  6,935,022$            55,118$              6,990,140$          
February 7,125,459              40,926                7,166,385            
March 8,743,857              41,957                8,785,814            
April 8,381,499              21,831                8,403,330            
May 8,830,640              18,079                8,848,719            
June 7,122,277              13,688                7,135,965            
July 7,463,188              12,922                7,476,110            
August 9,133,585              49,328                9,182,913            
September 6,867,583              64,599                6,932,182            
October 9,302,746              107,035              9,409,781            
November 8,152,232              123,716              8,275,948            
December 7,824,529              128,698              7,953,227            

95,882,617$          222,404$           96,560,514$        
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E. coli
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Certified
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Certified
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DESTROYED OR REMAINING IN REMAINING IN
ORIGINAL ABANDONED BUILT THE SYSTEM THE SYSTEM

CONSTRUCTION IN 2018 IN 2018 AS OF 12/31/2018 AS OF 12/31/2018
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) (FEET) (MILES)

8,368,782.1 38,009.7 129,234.8 8,460,007.2 1,602.274

ORIGINAL REMOVED BUILT
CONSTRUCTION IN 2018 IN 2018

23,158 71 121

ITEMS BOARD FUNDED BY OTHERS TOTAL FEET TOTAL MILES
6" PVC 19,933.5 1,454.0 21,387.5 4.051
8" PVC 80,856.0 1,526.0 82,382.0 15.603
10" PVC 1,436.3 0.0 1,436.3 0.272
12" PVC 8,083.2 0.0 8,083.2 1.531
15" PVC 1,600.3 0.0 1,600.3 0.303
18" PVC 14,316.5 0.0 14,316.5 2.711
21" PVC 29.0 0.0 29.0 0.005

TOTAL SEWER LINES
CONSTRUCTED IN 2018

SEWER MANHOLES BOARD FUNDED BY OTHERS
CONSTRUCTED IN 2018 103 18

129,234.8 24.5

121

         SEWER LINES DISCARDED AND INSTALLED IN 2018

         SEWER MANHOLES REMOVED AND INSTALLED IN 2018

AS OF 12/31/2018
REMAINING IN THE SYSTEM

23,208

DETAILS OF SEWER LINES AND SEWER MANHOLES INSTALLED (CONSTRUCTED) IN 2018

TOTAL MANHOLES BUILT IN 2018

126,254.8 2,980.0

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 - FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

SEWER TABULATION NUMBER  1
SEWER LINES AND MANHOLES IN THE SYSTEM AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018
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72" Steel 29,182.4 29,182.4 24" Steel 87.0 87.0
68" Steel 9,061.9 9,061.9 24" Reinforced Concrete 26,537.0 26,537.0
66" Steel 28,979.7 28,979.7 24" Asbestos Cement 4,924.2 4,924.2
66" Concrete 13,740.7 13,740.7 24" P.V.C. 5,949.6 5,949.6
60" Steel 2,577.7 2,577.7 21" Reinforced Concrete 10,609.1 10,609.1
60" Concrete 722.8 722.8 21" P.V.C. 5,815.4 29.0 5,844.4
57" Concrete 1,766.8 1,766.8 20" Ductile Iron Pipe 1,991.4 1,991.4
54" Steel 44,014.5 44,014.5 18" P.V.C. 20,360.0 14,316.5 34,676.5
54" Concrete 7,030.4 7,030.4 16" Steel 120.0 120.0
51" Concrete 755.9 755.9 16" Asbestos Cement 28,460.9 28,460.9
50" Steel 135.0 135.0 16" Plastic 1,913.1 1,913.1
48" Steel 21,147.2 21,147.2 15" Vitrified Clay 98,019.1 1,600.3 96,418.8
48" Concrete 10,127.6 10,127.6 15" P.V.C. 15,181.4 1,600.3 16,781.7
48" Fiberglass Reinforced 10,900.2 10,900.2 15" Plastic Truss 1,334.6 3.0 1,331.6
48" P.V.C. 3,663.4 3,663.4 12" Vitrified Clay 107,829.6 141.0 107,688.6
45" Concrete 3,048.4 3,048.4 12" P.V.C. 70,890.3 8,083.2 78,973.5
42" Steel 3,580.2 3,580.2 10" Vitrified Clay 148,345.1 629.5 147,715.6
42" Concrete 19,121.2 19,121.2 10" Steel 130.0 130.0
39" Brick 832.8 832.8 10" Concrete 45,348.4 45,348.4
39" Concrete 3,871.8 3,871.8 10" Asbestos Cement 4,356.2 4,356.2
36" Vitrified Clay 1,894.9 1,894.9 10" P.V.C. 140,895.2 1,436.3 142,331.5
36" Cast Iron 431.0 431.0 10" Plastic Truss 4,677.5 4,677.5
36" Steel 332.6 332.6 8" Terra Cotta 309,000.4 382.0 308,618.4
36" Pretressed Concrete 11,273.0 11,273.0 8" Vitrified Clay 3,945,257.9 32,628.9 3,912,629.0
36" Reinforced Concrete 9,312.7 9,312.7 8" Cast Iron 32,036.2 32,036.2
36" P.V.C. 10,604.0 10,604.0 8" Ductile Iron 2,233.0 2,233.0
33" Brick 3,080.9 3,080.9 8" Concrete 265,663.9 265,663.9
33" Vitrified Clay 562.3 562.3 8" Asbestos Cement 3,437.9 660.0 2,777.9
33" Reinforced Concrete 1,381.4 1,381.4 8" P.V.C. 975,692.3 82,382.0 1,058,074.3
30" Brick 2,763.0 2,763.0 8" Plastic Truss 61,911.8 61,911.8
30" Vitrified Clay 7,538.5 7,538.5 8" Plastic 690,729.1 790.0 689,939.1
30" Cast Iron 4,305.9 4,305.9 6" Terra Cotta 8,730.9 8,730.9
30" Steel 3,535.2 3,535.2 6" Vitrified Clay 76,522.4 1,175.0 75,347.4
30" Prestressed Concrete 484.0 484.0 6" Cast Iron 4,204.4 4,204.4
30" Reinforced Concrete 33,920.5 33,920.5 6" Asbestos Cement 4,493.9 4,493.9
30" Fiberglass Reinforced 16,400.0 16,400.0 6" P.V.C. 457,819.8 21,387.5 479,207.3
30" P.V.C. 996.0 996.0 6" Plastic Truss 1,763.3 1,763.3
27" Vitrified Clay 24,428.4 24,428.4 6" Plastic 364,867.8 364,867.8
27" Reinforced Concrete 13,336.4 13,336.4 4" Cast Iron 874.2 874.2
27" P.V.C. 4,634.0 4,634.0 4" Ductile Iron 180.4 180.4
24" Vitrified Clay 31,572.2 31,572.2 4" P.V.C. 5,525.7 5,525.7
24" Cast Iron 16,269.2 16,269.2 4" Plastic 126.0 126.0
24" Ductile Iron 619.0 619.0 Total Linear Feet 8,368,782.1 38,009.7 129,234.8 8,460,007.2

Total Miles 1,584.997 7.199 24.476 1,602.274

SIZE & MATERIAL OF 
SEWER

TOTAL LENGTH IN 
SYSTEM AS OF 

12/31/2017

DESTROYED OR 
ABANDONED IN 

2018

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 - FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

SEWER TABULATION NUMBER  2
LENGTH OF SEWER LINES OF EACH SIZE AND MATERIAL DISCARDED, BUILT, AND NOW REMAINING IN THE SYSTEM

BUILT IN 2018
NOW REMAINING IN 
THE SYSTEM AS OF 

12/31/2018

NOW REMAINING IN 
THE SYSTEM AS OF 

12/31/2018

SIZE & MATERIAL OF 
SEWER

TOTAL LENGTH IN 
SYSTEM AS OF 

12/31/2017

DESTROYED OR 
ABANDONED IN 

2018
BUILT IN 2018
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DESTROYED OR REMAINING IN REMAINING IN
ORIGINAL ABANDONED BUILT THE SYSTEM THE SYSTEM

CONSTRUCTION IN 2018 IN 2018 AS OF 12/31/2018 AS OF 12/31/2018
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) (FEET) (MILES)

9,643,586.2 47,882.4 87,590.8 9,683,294.6 1,833.957

ORIGINAL REMOVED BUILT
CONSTRUCTION IN 2018 IN 2018

30,586 70 134

ORIGINAL REMOVED INSTALLED
CONSTRUCTION IN 2018 IN 2018

29,940 110 160

ORIGINAL REMOVED INSTALLED
CONSTRUCTION IN 2018 IN 2018

23,214 110 160

ITEMS BOARD FUNDED BY OTHERS TOTAL FEET TOTAL MILES
2" PVC 3,332.3 960.2 4,292.5 0.813
4" PVC 1,464.0 501.0 1,965.0 0.372
4" Ductile Iron 650.8 170.0 820.8 0.155
6" PVC 11,014.0 622.9 11,636.9 2.204
6" Ductile Iron 3,240.0 100.0 3,340.0 0.633
8" PVC 41,687.8 689.0 42,376.8 8.026
8" Ductile Iron 3,550.3 80.0 3,630.3 0.688
12" PVC 19,050.5 21.0 19,071.5 3.612
12" Ductile Iron 402.0 0.0 402.0 0.076
16" PVC 45.0 0.0 45.0 0.009
16" Ductile Iron 10.0 0.0 10.0 0.002

TOTAL WATER LINES
CONSTRUCTED IN 2018

WATER MANHOLES BOARD FUNDED BY OTHERS
CONSTRUCTED IN 2018 120 14

WATER VALVES BOARD FUNDED BY OTHERS
INSTALLED IN 2018 186 33

FIRE HYDRANTS BOARD FUNDED BY OTHERS
INSTALLED IN 2018 56 0 56

REMAINING IN THE SYSTEM
AS OF 12/31/2018

23,264

TOTAL WATER VALVES INSTALLED IN 2018

TOTAL FIRE HYDRANTS INSTALLED IN 2018

16.589

219

TOTAL MANHOLES BUILT IN 2018
134

DETAILS OF WATER LINES, MANHOLES, VALVES, AND FIRE HYDRANTS INSTALLED (CONSTRUCTED) IN 2018

84,446.7 3,144.1 87,590.8

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 - FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018

WATER TABULATION NUMBER  1

REMAINING IN THE SYSTEM
AS OF 12/31/2018

WATER LINES, MANHOLES, VALVES, AND FIRE HYDRANTS IN THE SYSTEM AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018

WATER LINES DISCARDED AND INSTALLED IN 2018

WATER MANHOLES REMOVED AND INSTALLED IN 2018

FIRE HYDRANTS REMOVED AND INSTALLED IN 2018

29,990

REMAINING IN THE SYSTEM
AS OF 12/31/2018

30,650

WATER VALVES REMOVED AND INSTALLED IN 2018
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54" Concrete Pipe 7,535.1 7,535.1 48" 16 16
50" Steel Pipe 88,374.0 88,374.0 42" 4 4
48" Cast Iron Pipe 12,759.3 12,759.3 36" 18 18
48" Steel Pipe 36,637.1 36,637.1 30" 66 66
48" Concrete Pipe 4,982.9 4,982.9 24" 39 39
43" Cast Iron Pipe 11,170.1 11,170.1 20" 133 133
42" Cast Iron Pipe 4,349.6 4,349.6 16" 193 1 1 193
42" Concrete Pipe 9,361.9 9,361.9 14" 3 3
36" Cast Iron Pipe 4,523.3 4,523.3 12" 2,326 11 11 2,326
36" Steel Pipe 16,922.0 16,922.0 10" 72 72
36" Concrete Pipe 37,374.7 37,374.7 8" 6,771 7 102 6,866
36" Prestressed Concrete 675.0 675.0 6" 13,051 44 90 13,097
30" Cast Iron Pipe 59,740.1 59,740.1 4" 7,248 15 7,263
30" Ductile Iron Pipe 296.0 296.0 Total 29,940 63 219 30,096

30" Steel Pipe 19,863.1 19,863.1
30" Concrete Pipe 71,216.4 71,216.4
30" Prestressed Concrete 36,654.4 36,654.4
30" Reinforced Concrete 3,919.6 3,919.6
30" P.V.C. Pipe 3,716.1 3,716.1
24" Cast Iron Pipe 30,090.0 30,090.0
24" P.V.C. Pipe 1,372.0 1,372.0
24" Ductile Iron Pipe 140.0 140.0
24" Concrete Pipe 4,062.5 4,062.5
20" P.V.C. Pipe 12,320.5 12,320.5
20" Cast Iron Pipe 85,767.9 85,767.9
20" Ductile Iron Pipe 10,441.4 10,441.4
20" Concrete Pipe 18,755.8 18,755.8
20" Prestressed Concrete 212.5 212.5
20" Asbestos Cement 12,688.0 12,688.0
18" Reinforced Concrete 970.5 970.5
16" Cast Iron Pipe 112,496.7 55.0 112,441.7
16" Ductile Iron Pipe 6,692.7 10.0 6,702.7
16" Concrete Pipe 5,681.6 5,681.6
16" Asbestos Cement 63,245.6 63,245.6
16" P.V.C. Pipe 14,604.0 45.0 14,649.0
15" Reinforced Concrete 1,069.3 1,069.3
12" Cast Iron Pipe 836,515.7 836,515.7
12" Ductile Iron Pipe 22,185.1 402.0 22,587.1
12" Steel Pipe 1,272.9 1,272.9
12" Asbestos Cement 357,603.6 357,603.6
12" P.V.C. Pipe 240,460.2 19,071.5 259,531.7
10" Cast Iron Pipe 10,271.7 10,271.7
10" Ductile Iron Pipe 670.0 670.0
10" Asbestos Cement 12,763.6 12,763.6
10" P.V.C. Pipe 7,896.0 7,896.0
8" Cast Iron Pipe 114,334.7 5,879.5 108,455.2
8" Ductile Iron Pipe 43,160.0 3,630.3 46,790.3
8" Asbestos Cement 697,824.4 4,746.9 693,077.5
8" P.V.C. Pipe 885,654.8 42,376.8 928,031.6
8" Plastic Pipe 318,036.5 318,036.5
6" Cast Iron Pipe 2,463,410.9 32,480.2 2,430,930.7
6" Ductile Iron Pipe 22,621.6 3,340.0 25,961.6
6" Asbestos Cement 1,038,801.5 4,720.8 1,034,080.7
6" P.V.C. Pipe 304,414.6 11,636.9 316,051.5
6" Plastic Pipe 121,385.5 121,385.5
4" Cast Iron Pipe 1,166,342.5 1,166,342.5
4" Ductile Iron Pipe 5,817.3 820.8 6,638.1
4" Asbestos Cement 22,250.8 22,250.8
4'' P.V.C. Pipe 26,317.4 1,965.0 28,282.4
4" Plastic Pipe 3,833.1 3,833.1
3" Galvanized Steel 3,361.7 3,361.7
2" Cast Iron Pipe 7,909.9 7,909.9
2" Galvanized Steel 9,620.0 9,620.0
2'' P.V.C. Pipe 82,821.9 4,292.5 87,114.4
1'' Galvanized Steel 5,346.6 5,346.6

Total Linear Feet 9,643,586.2 47,882.4 87,590.8 9,683,294.6
Total Miles 1,826.437 9.069 16.589 1,833.957

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

WATER LINES

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 - FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2018
WATER TABULATION NUMBER  2

LENGTH OF WATER LINES OF EACH SIZE AND MATERIAL, NUMBER OF VALVES OF EACH SIZE, BOTH GATE AND CHECK,
ORIGINALLY INSTALLED, THE QUANTITIES DISCARDED OR BUILT, AND THE QUANTITIES NOW REMAINING IN THE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 

REMAINING IN 
SYSTEM AS OF 

12/31/2018

VALVES

BUILT IN 2018
EXISTING IN 

SYSTEM AS OF 
12/31/2017

SIZE
NOW REMAINING IN 
THE SYSTEM AS OF 

12/31/2018

INSTALLED
IN 2018SIZE MATERIAL

TOTAL LENGTH 
IN SYSTEM AS 
OF 12/31/2017

DESTROYED OR 
ABANDONED IN 

2018

REMOVED
IN 2018
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5.16 2.97 8.13 6.17 14.30 1.21 15.51 2.46 17.96 2.40 20.36 3.82 24.18 4.62 28.80 7.45 36.25 7.57 43.82 0.78 44.60 19.81 64.41 5.37 5.11
533.61 532.91 1,068.79 586.85 1,655.64 558.85 2,221.45 557.12 2,778.60 647.91 3,434.55 752.25 4,186.80 682.74 4,869.54 653.48 5,523.00 377.89 5,900.89 422.78 6,326.73 554.65 6,878.73

4.60 4.59 9.21 5.06 14.27 4.82 19.15 4.80 23.95 5.59 29.61 6.48 36.09 5.89 41.98 5.63 47.61 3.26 50.87 3.64 54.54 4.78 59.30
1.75 5.91 7.66 2.74 10.40 2.97 13.37 6.12 19.49 7.24 26.73 5.62 32.35 9.58 41.93 2.26 44.19 0.39 44.58 2.32 46.90 1.58 48.49 4.04 -10.72

535.36 538.82 1,076.45 589.59 1,666.04 561.82 2,234.81 563.24 2,798.09 655.15 3,461.28 757.87 4,219.15 692.32 4,911.47 655.74 5,567.19 378.29 5,945.47 425.10 6,373.64 556.23 6,927.21
4.58 4.61 9.20 5.04 14.24 4.80 19.10 4.81 23.92 5.60 29.58 6.48 36.06 5.92 41.98 5.60 47.58 3.23 50.82 3.63 54.48 4.75 59.21

2.99 1.59 4.59 6.49 11.08 0.27 11.35 0.90 12.25 4.18 16.42 11.48 27.91 1.57 29.48 9.99 39.47 0.14 39.61 1.66 41.27 0.78 42.04 3.50 -17.02
538.35 540.42 1,081.04 596.08 1,677.12 562.09 2,246.17 564.13 2,810.34 659.33 3,477.71 769.35 4,247.06 693.89 4,940.95 665.73 5,606.66 378.43 5,985.08 426.76 6,414.91 557.00 6,969.26

4.56 4.58 9.16 5.05 14.21 4.76 19.04 4.78 23.82 5.59 29.47 6.52 35.99 5.88 41.87 5.64 47.51 3.21 50.72 3.62 54.36 4.72 59.06

1.74 3.38 5.12 6.16 11.28 8.14 19.42 2.45 21.87 4.84 26.71 12.89 39.60 17.79 57.39 3.83 61.22 0.15 61.36 2.13 63.50 2.30 65.80 5.48 6.68

540.09 543.79 1,086.16 602.24 1,688.39 570.23 2,265.58 566.58 2,832.21 664.17 3,504.42 782.25 4,286.66 711.68 4,998.34 669.55 5,667.88 378.57 6,046.45 428.90 6,478.40 559.30 7,035.06
4.54 4.57 9.13 5.06 14.19 4.79 19.04 4.76 23.80 5.58 29.45 6.57 36.02 5.98 42.00 5.63 47.63 3.18 50.81 3.60 54.44 4.70 59.12

5.14 6.82 11.96 0.55 12.51 12.51 25.01 4.51 29.52 4.55 34.08 4.43 38.51 4.58 43.09 5.44 48.53 2.19 50.72 2.81 53.53 4.48 58.01 4.83 -1.10
545.24 550.61 1,098.12 602.78 1,700.90 582.74 2,290.60 571.09 2,861.73 668.72 3,538.49 786.68 4,325.17 716.26 5,041.43 674.99 5,716.41 380.76 6,097.17 431.71 6,531.94 563.78 7,093.07

4.54 4.59 9.15 5.02 14.17 4.86 19.09 4.76 23.85 5.57 29.49 6.56 36.04 5.97 42.01 5.62 47.64 3.17 50.81 3.60 54.43 4.70 59.11

2.72 6.54 9.26 6.44 15.70 2.19 17.89 7.68 25.57 6.41 31.98 6.49 38.47 4.74 43.21 4.20 47.41 1.94 49.35 1.47 50.82 3.70 54.52 4.54 -4.55
547.96 557.15 1,107.37 609.22 1,716.60 584.93 2,308.48 578.78 2,887.30 675.13 3,570.47 793.17 4,363.64 721.00 5,084.64 679.19 5,763.82 382.71 6,146.52 433.17 6,582.76 567.49 7,147.60

4.53 4.60 9.15 5.03 14.19 4.83 19.08 4.78 23.86 5.58 29.51 6.56 36.06 5.96 42.02 5.61 47.63 3.16 50.80 3.58 54.40 4.69 59.07

2015 4.76 1.65 6.41 4.21 10.62 11.29 21.91 6.86 28.78 2.75 31.53 4.32 35.85 2.59 38.45 4.15 42.60 5.21 47.81 5.52 53.33 6.76 60.09 5.01 1.01

total 552.72 558.80 1,113.79 613.43 1,727.22 596.22 2,330.40 585.64 2916.08 677.88 3,602.00 797.50 4,399.50 723.59 5,123.09 683.34 5,806.41 387.92 6,194.33 438.69 6,636.08 574.25 7,207.68
avg. 4.53 4.58 9.13 5.03 14.16 4.887 19.10162 4.80 23.90 5.56 29.52 6.54 36.06 5.93 41.99 5.60 47.59 3.1796 50.7732 3.5958 54.39412 4.707 59.08
2016 4.67 2.48 7.15 6.99 14.14 11.73 25.87 5.62 31.49 8.16 39.65 4.34 43.99 7.63 51.62 3.58 55.20 0.02 55.22 3.92 59.14 4.7 63.84 5.32 4.72

123 total 557.39 561.28 1118.67 620.42 1739.09 607.95 2,356.27 591.26 2947.53 686.04 3633.57 801.84 4,443.49 731.22 5,174.71 686.92 5,861.63 387.94 6,249.57 442.61 6,692.18 578.95 7,271.13
avg. 4.53 4.56 9.09 5.0441 14.14 4.9427 19.15664 4.807 23.9636 5.5775794 29.54121 6.519 36.12592 5.945 42.07081 5.5847 47.65556 3.154 50.809511 3.5985 54.40798 4.7069 59.11488
2017 5.21 1.7 6.91 4.46 11.37 5.5 16.87 10.56 27.43 10.84 38.27 6.79 45.06 14.13 59.19 1.47 60.66 7.16 67.82 0.22 68.04 5.01 73.05 6.09 13.82

124 total 562.60 562.98 1125.58 624.88 1750.46 613.45 2,363.91 601.82 2965.73 696.88 3662.61 808.63 4,471.24 745.35 5,216.59 688.39 5,904.98 395.10 6,300.08 442.83 6,742.91 583.96 7,344.18

avg. 4.54 4.54 9.08 5.0394 14.12 4.9472 19.06377 4.8534 23.9172 5.6200183 29.53717 6.5212 36.05837 6.011 42.06927 5.5516 47.62084 3.1863 50.807096 3.5712 54.37832 4.7093 59.22726
2018 3.52 2.7 6.26 3.83 10.09 5.2 15.31 3.58 18.89 5.60 24.49 6.79 31.28 7.52 38.80 5.80 44.60 6.28 50.88 5.85 56.73 4.67 61.40 5.12 2.29

125 total 566.12 565.72 1131.84 628.71 1760.55 618.67 2,379.22 605.40 2984.62 702.48 3687.10 815.42 4,502.52 752.87 5,255.39 694.19 5,949.58 401.38 6,350.96 448.68 6,799.64 588.63 7,388.27
avg. 4.53 4.53 9.05 5.0300 14.08 4.9500 19.03000 4.8400 23.8800 5.6200000 29.50000 6.5200 36.02000 6.020 42.04000 5.5500 47.60000 3.2100 50.810000 3.5900 54.40000 4.7100 59.11000
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